
Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 and 16

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE, TNR 

411 West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
PO Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854-9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
May 31, 2012 

 

TO:  Don Ward P.E. 

  Division Director, Road Maintenance & Fleet Services 

 

THROUGH: David Greear P.E., 

Program Manager, Traffic Control 

 

FROM: Howard Herrin and Eddie Jones 

Road Maintenance Managers   

 

Subject: Project Updates  for McAngus Road, Elroy Road and Kellam Road 

 

 

The Road Maintenance Division of TNR is currently working on reconstructing two roads near 

Circuit of the Americas located in Precinct Four.   These roads are: 

 

 

McAngus Road  Limits   SH 130 to Elroy Road (1.6 miles) 

   Start Date   April 16, 2012 

   Completion Date June 15, 2012 

   Percent Complete 80% 

 

Elroy Road  Limits  - FM 812 to Fagerquist Road (1.6 miles) 

   Start Date  May 14, 2012 

   Completion Date August 8, 2012   

   Percent Complete 10% 

 

Additionally, the Transportation and Natural Resources Department has entered into an 

agreement for COTA to complete improvements to Kellam Road between Elroy Road and 

Pearce Lane as follows: 

 

Kellam Road  Limits   Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

   Start Date  Early-August 2012 

   Completion Date Mid November 2012 

   Estimated Cost $4,100,000 

 

  

 

  

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 A



 

 

Additional information for McAngus Rd: 

 

The design for McAngus Road includes site preparation and drainage channelization with culvert 

replacement and upgrades as necessary.  The existing roadway surface will be recycled in-place 

down to a depth of 8 inches, cement stabilization will be added and then finished with two levels 

of a chip seal surface treatment.  In October a 1 ½” HMAC Overlay will be added to create a 

smooth finished surface.   

 

McAngus Road is 80% completed at this time.  All drainage improvements are completed and 

the final chip seal surface treatment will be completed by June 15, 2012.  Currently the roadway 

is open to traffic. 

 

 

Additional information for Elroy Rd: 

 

The design for Elroy Road includes site preparation and drainage channelization with culvert 

replacement and upgrades as necessary.  The existing roadway surface will be recycled in-place 

down to a depth of 8 inches. Cement stabilization will be added and then finished with two levels 

of a chip seal surface treatment.  In October a 1 ½” HMAC Overlay will be added to create a 

smooth finished surface. 

 

Work will start on the southern end of Elroy Road where it intersects with FM812 and will 

progress northward.  Site preparation and ROW vegetation removal was completed May 25
th

.  

Drainage improvements are scheduled to begin June 4
th

 and the recycling of the existing 

roadway is scheduled to begin soon after. The final chip seal surface treatment will be completed 

by August 8, 2012. 

 

 

Additional information for Kellam Road 

 

The County executed an agreement with COTA wherein they will acquire right-of-way then 

design and construct improvements to Kellam Road.  The improvements will include 

reconstructing, widening, and extending Kellam between Elroy Road and Pearce Lane. The 

project is currently under design and construction is anticipated to begin in early August and be 

completed before the race event in mid-November.  Once the improvements are completed the 

County will purchase the improvements from COTA. 

 

If you have questions, or require additional information, please contact Don Ward or David 

Greear. 

 

DG: HH/EJ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Austinrrravis County Health and Human Services Department 

Office of the Director 
15 Waller Street 

Austin, TX 78702 

Date: May 30,2012 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT 

FROM: Philip Huang, MD, MPH  , .w- , 
Medical Director/Health Authority 

SUBJECT: Report of the Travis County Health Authority 

Pursuant to Chapter 751, Texas Mass Gathering Act, section 751.005(b), "The county health authority 

shall inquire into preparations for the mass gathering. At least five days before the date on which the 

hearing prescribed by Section 751.006 is held, the county healt

judge a report stating whether the health authority believes th

sanitation prescribed by state and local laws, rules, and orders

Staff of the City of Austin and Travis County Health Departmen

provided by appropriate representatives of Circuit of the Amer

to, food service policies, water and waste water plans and oth

provision of food and other concessions for the public. Further

safety as it relates to the attention to illness or injury on site. 

COTA-Sodexo appear to have policies and practices in place t
accordance with Texas Health and Safety Code provisions, and

751, Texas Mass Gathering Act. 

Please note that this report does not include the actual inspec

mechanisms and staff licenses and/or certifications as provide

Personnel of the City of Austin, acting as agents of Travis Coun

review and assess compliance with Texas statutes governing fo

completed and-or established and prior to services being rend

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.
h authority shall submit to the county 

at the minimum standards of health and 

 will be maintained." 

ts have reviewed various documents 

icas and Sodexo including, but not limited 

er related information regarding the 

, staff have reviewed provisions for public 

hat address the safety of the public, in 
 including, but not limited to, Chapter 

tion of kitchens, food delivery 

d by the Texas Health and Safety Code. 

ty by Inter local agreement, will inspect, 

od and safety as these facilities are 

ered to the pUblic. 

jacksoj2
Typewritten Text

jacksoj2
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1-B-1



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 B 2



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



 

 

Appendix A 

 

COTA – FORMULA 1 

PERMITS ISSUED THROUGH MAY 29, 2012 
 

Main Site  
 Site Permit issued 06/21/2011 

 Private Water Supply Permit issued 06/21/2011 
 

Vinlarek Parking and Drainage 
 Site Permit issued 03/07/2012 

 

Travis 77 Site 
 Site Permit issued 01/05/2012 

 

Grandstand 
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 Underground Fire Line (1) Permit issued 01/12/2012 

 Underground Fire Line (2) Permit issued 04/17/2012 

 Fire Alarm Permit issued 05/16/2012 

 

Event Center  
 No plans or permits at this time  

 

Pit Building  
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 Fire Alarm Permit issued 04/13/2012 

 Sprinkler System Permit issued 05/14/2012 

 Underground Fire Line (1) Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 Underground Fire Line (2) Permit issued 04/17/2012 

 

Media Center 
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

o Building Permit pulled; due to, change in construction. Required to resubmit updated plans for 
review and approval 

 Submitted for Sprinkler System, required to submit updated sprinkler plans with new floor plans 

 Underground Fire Line Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

        T R AVIS C O UN T Y  FI R E M AR SH AL ’S O F F I C E   
HERSHEL LEE, FIRE MARSHAL 

P. O. BOX 1748, AUSTIN, TEXAS  78767 

(512) 854-4621, FAX (512) 854-6471 

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Medical Building  
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 Sprinkler System Permit issued 02/09/2012 

 Submitted Fire Alarm Plans, awaiting updated plans addressing review comments 

 Underground Fire Line Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 

Team Building 31 
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 Sprinkler Permit issued 05/07/2012 

 Underground Fire Line permit issued 05/08/2012 

 

Team Building 32 
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 

Team Building 33 
 Building Permit issued 10/27/2011 

 

LCRA/ Austin Energy Substation  
 Building Permit issued 08/31/2011 

 Submitted Fire Alarm Permit, awaiting updated plans addressing review comments 

 

Amphitheater 
 Building Permit issued 05/01/2012 

 

Observation Tower 
 Building Permit issued 04/16/2012 

 

Concessions and Restroom No. 1 
 Building Permit issued 05/21/2012 

Concessions and Restroom No. 3 
 No plans or permits at this time  

 

Grand Plaza Concessions and Restroom No. 4  
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 

Grand Plaza Concessions Support  
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 Submitted for Underground Fire Line, under review at this time 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



 

Grand Plaza Storefront No. 1 
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 Submitted for Underground Fire Line, under review at this time 

 

Grand Plaza Storefront No. 2 
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 

Grand Plaza Storefront No. 3 
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 

Grand Plaza- Ticket Booth No. 1 
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 Submitted for Underground Fire Line, under review at this time 

 

Grand Plaza- Ticket Booth No. 2 
 Building Permit issued 04/03/2012 

 Submitted for Underground Fire Line, under review at this time 

 

Maintenance Building 
 Building Permit issued 05/03/2012 

 Sprinkler Permit issued 05/23/2012 

 Underground Fire Line permit issued 05/08/2012 

 

Parking/ Maintenance Canopy 
 Building Permit issued 04/25/2012 

RV Laundry/ Shower and Restroom 
 Building Permit issued 05/21/2012 

DSA Building 
 No plans or permits at this time  

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County Authorized Scope of Work: TNR Permit No. 12-0667 
Page 1 of 3 

Formula 1 “Circuit of the Americas”   
Travis County Phases 1 through 4 Site Development Permits: 
 TNR Permit No. 11-0349, Phase 1, Issued June 28, 2011 
 TNR Permit No. 11-1156, Phase 2, Issued July 13, 2011 
 TNR Permit No. 11-1241, Phase 3, Issued July 20, 2011 
 TNR Permit No. 11-1390, Phase 4, Issued October 28, 2011 
 TNR Permit No. 12-0243, Phase 5, Issued February 24, 2012 
 TNR Permit No. 12-0480, Phase 6, Issued March 30, 2012 
 TNR Permit No. 12-0667, Phase 7, Issued April 25, 2012 
 
Initiation and continuation of development of Phases 1, through 6, and 
issuance of permits for future phases are conditioned on the following 
requirements:  
 

1. Satisfactory progress toward addressing transportation, roadway, 
improvement, and traffic management issues raised by County staff 
in review comments submitted to the project engineer dated 
September 28, 2010, November 12, 2010, April 15, 2011, and June 9, 
2011. 

 
2. Prior to the issuance of any additional phases after Phase 6, 

completion and submission of the Roadway Improvement 
Agreement, and approval at Commissioners Court, addressing the 
widening to four lanes of Elroy Road and bridge from where the road 
is currently four lanes to where it intersects Circuit of the Americas’ 
driveway.  

 
3. Prior to the issuance of any additional phases after Phase 6, 

completion and submission to the County of an updated traffic study 
containing strategies to manage traffic during high volume events at 
the Circuit of the Americas facility, including improvements to the 
existing roadway system, plans for offsite parking and shuttling of 
patrons to and from the facility on buses, and the use of parking 
available on site, including an additional 5,000 spaces as required by 
the City of Austin. 

 
4. Continued and satisfactory progress working with the Travis County 

Sheriff’s Office on the public safety plan addressing emergency 
vehicle access, fire protection, emergency medical services, public 
assembly areas, parking, directing of attendees and vehicles, vendor 
and food concessions, and law enforcement. 

 
5. Compliance with all other applicable federal, state, and local 

permitting and other regulatory requirements related to construction 
and occupancy of the Circuit of the Americas facility. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



Travis County Authorized Scope of Work: TNR Permit No. 12-0667 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The permit holder undertakes development of Phases 1 through 6 under 
this permit at the holder’s own risk and without assurance that a permit for 
any subsequent phase will be granted unless there is full compliance with 
the above conditions and all other permitting and regulatory requirements. 

AUTHORIZED for construction: 
 
1. Earthwork, grading, and utility (water, wastewater, and drainage) 

improvements as included in the “Formula 1 United States Site 
Improvements” construction drawings dated June 13, 2011 and 
sealed by Charles Brigance, P.E., except for the exclusions noted 
under “EXCLUSIONS” below; 

 
2. Austin Energy Electric Substation (except for building structure as 

noted under Exclusion 1 below); and, 
 
3. STRUCTURES as they are listed under A through C below (see 

attached list for comprehensive listing): 
 

A.  Tunnel 1 under Track 
B.  Tunnel 2 under Track 
C.  Retaining Walls A, B, C, D, E, F, G, I, K, L, 1, and 3 through 14 
D.      Three Pedestrian Bridges:  Grand Plaza, Turn 3, Turn 16 

 
4. Race track and related safety improvements. Motor racing is 

dangerous.  The design of the track and related safety features are 
beyond the scope of Travis County review.  

 
5. On the basis of FEMA’s letter dated June 28, 2011, work may occur 

within areas that will be outside of the regulatory floodplain upon 
future acceptance by FEMA of the LOMR submitted in relationship to 
the work. 

 
6. Foundations, including drilled piers and poured slabs, may be 
 constructed for the following buildings bringing them up to grade:  
 
  1.  Pit Building 
  2.  Crew Buildings 
  3.  Media Center 
  4.  Medical Center 
  5.  Main Grandstand  

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County Authorized Scope of Work: TNR Permit No. 12-0667 
Page 3 of 3 

7. BUILDINGS as they are listed under 1 through 9 below 
and as permitted by the Travis County Fire Marshal: 

   
 1.  Pit Building 
 2.  Team Buildings 31, 32, and 33 
 3.  Media Center 
 4.  Medical Building 
 5.  Main Grandstand 
 6.  Concession Buildings: 
  Grand Plaza Concessions Support Building 
  Concessions and Restrooms Nos. 1, 3, and 4; 
  Grand Plaza Storefront Nos. 1, 2, 3; and 
  Grand Plaza Ticket Booths No. 1 and 2 
 7.  Maintenance Building  
 8.  Maintenance Canopy 
 9.  Grand Plaza Observation Tower 

 
8. Revision R1 Improvements (Revision R1 Scope is attached, and is 

also included in plan set on Sheet 3) 
 

EXCLUSIONS not authorized for construction: 
 
1. No BUILDINGS that are not specifically listed under 

“AUTHORIZATIONS” above are permitted for construction at this 
time.  Authorization to construct will be given only after the Travis 
County Fire Marshal has issued a permit to construct such building, 
and the building has been included in the scope of a TNR Site 
Development Permit.    

 
2. No STRUCTURES that are not specifically listed under 

“AUTHORIZATIONS” above are permitted for construction.  
Additional structures will be authorized as structural plans and 
geotechnical information is received and accepted by TNR, and the 
structure has been included in the scope of a TNR Site Development 
Permit.   

 
3. Under no circumstances may building construction or site 

construction occur within effective FEMA floodplain, except for 
those areas as described by FEMA in their letter dated June 28, 2011, 
related to the CLOMR submitted in relationship to the work. 

 
4. Paving of COTA Boulevard and the outer loop road is not authorized. 
5. n/a 
6. n/a 
7. No driveways connecting to Travis County roadways are authorized. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 B 3



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 C



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY  

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

INTRA-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

  

May 31, 2012 

 

TO: Samuel T. Biscoe 

 Travis County Judge 

THROUGH: Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 

 County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources 

FROM: David Greear, P.E. 

 Engineer 

SUBJECT: Traffic Regulations Summary 

Engineering and traffic investigations have been completed and the following traffic regulations are 

proposed with regards to the Transportation Plan for the Formula One Grand Prix at the Circuit of the 

Americas track from November 16-18, 2012 in Travis County:  

 
 

No Stopping, Standing or 

Parking in the ROW from 

November 16-18, 2012 

Elroy Road from SH130 to FM 812 

Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lane 

Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road 

Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 

McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 

Piland Triangle in its entirety  

Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 

Road 

Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 

Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 

Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

 

 

 

No Pedestrians or Bicyclists 

in the ROW from  

November 16-18, 2012 

Elroy Road from SH130 to FM 812 

Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lane 

Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road 

Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 

McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 

Piland Triangle in its entirety  

Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 

Road 

Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 

Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 

Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

 

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1 D



 

 

Contraflow operations from  

November 16-18, 2012 

Pearce Lane (EB prior to race) (WB post race) from SH130 to 

Kellam Lane 

McAngus Road (EB prior and post race) from FM973 to Elroy 

Road 

Kellam Lane (SB prior to race) (NB post race) from Pearce Lane to 

Elroy Road 

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY  

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

INTRA-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

  

May 31, 2012 

 

TO: Samuel T. Biscoe 

 Travis County Judge 

THROUGH: Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 

 County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources 

FROM: David Greear, P.E. 

 Traffic Program Manager 

SUBJECT: Traffic Regulations 

Engineering and traffic investigations have been completed on the following roads within Travis County:  

 Elroy Road 

 Pearce Lane 

 Ross Road 

 Heine Farm Road 

 McAngus Road 

 Piland Triangle 

 Maha Loop Road 

 Moore Road 

 Fagerquist Road 

 Kellam Road 

Based on such investigations I recommend the traffic regulations listed in the attached Order. 

Requests for a public hearing concerning this matter were received within seven days of publishing the 

notice of the proposed traffic regulations, and these regulations will be included in the Public Hearing 

scheduled for June 5, 2012 with regards to the Mass Gathering Permit for the Formula One Grand Prix at 

the Circuit of the Americas site on November 16-18, 2012. 

This recommendation is made in accordance with duly delegated authority from the Travis County 

Commissioners’ Court under Chapter 251 of the Texas Transportation Code. 

DG 

File 4115 Elroy Road, Pearce Lane, Ross Road, Heine Farm Road, McAngus Road, Piland 

Triangle, Maha Loop Road, Moore Road, Fagerquist Road, and Kellam Road 

Attachment:   Traffic Management Plan (Draft 1, May 21, 2012) 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



STATE OF TEXAS    § 

      § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS   § 

 

ORDER NO. _________________ 

 

WHEREAS, engineering and traffic investigations have been made on the below named 

Travis County roadways by the Road Maintenance Division – Traffic Program within the 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department, which has recommended traffic regulations 

in Precinct Four; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was requested within seven days of the advance notice of 

the proposed traffic regulations and the public hearing is held on June 5, 2012; then 

 

BE IT THEREFORE ORDERED that the following regulations are hereby adopted 

and that appropriate signs giving notice thereof shall be installed. 

 

PRECINCT FOUR: 
 

No Stopping, Standing or 

Parking in the ROW from 

November 16-18, 2012 

Elroy Road from SH130 to FM 812 

Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lane 

Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road 

Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 

McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 

Piland Triangle in its entirety  

Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 

Road 

Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 

Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 

Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

 

 

 

No Pedestrians or Bicyclists 

in the ROW from  

November 16-18, 2012 

Elroy Road from SH130 to FM 812 

Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lane 

Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road 

Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 

McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 

Piland Triangle in its entirety  

Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 

Road 

Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 

Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 

Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

 

 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



 

 

Contraflow operations from  

November 16-18, 2012 

Pearce Lane (EB prior to race) (WB post race) from SH130 to 

Kellum Lane 

McAngus Road (EB prior and post race) from FM973 to Elroy 

Road 

Kellum Lane (SB prior to race) (NB post race) from Pearce Lane to 

Elroy Road 

 

EXECUTED THIS                      DAY OF                                                         , 2012.  

 

____________________________ 

Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Edith Moreida/ x49280 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Margaret J. Gomez 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioner Margaret J. Gómez 

 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

APPROVE RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE 12TH ANNUAL FATHER'S DAY 

PARADE AND FIESTA SPONSORED BY THE RIVER CITY YOUTH 

FOUNDATION 

 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 3

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text



 

Travis County Commissioners Court 
 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

 

WHEREAS,      the fathers of our community are a precious resource, and play a vital role in the well 

being of our children and their future and the future of our community, and 

 

WHEREAS,      River City Youth Foundation has been instrumental in producing a collaborated 

community event, the Annual Father’s Day  Parade  and Fiesta, and 

 

WHEREAS, Father’s Day  Parade And Fiesta aims to increase the positive involvement of fathers 

in their children’s lives to foster success in school, personal growth, good citizenship, 

and a brighter future, and 

 

WHEREAS, River City Youth Foundation, Fathers Active In Communities And Education (Face), 

Austin New Church, Austin Fire Department, Austin Police Department, Capital Area 

Food Bank, and New York Life are sponsoring the 12
th
  Annual Father’s Day  Parade 

and Fiesta on Saturday, June 9
th
, 2012 that will include father/kids bonding games, 

food and plenty of family fun, and 

 

WHEREAS,  the student winners of the writing contest will be announced. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

COURT DOES HEREBY DECLARE SATURDAY,  JUNE 9
th
 , 2012, AS FATHER’S DAY  

PARADE AND FIESTA DAY IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 

THAT WE SALUTE THE RIVER CITY YOUTH FOUNDATION FOR THEIR 

COLLABORATIVE EFFORTS IN THEIR COMMITMENT TO THE BETTERMENT OF OUR 

COMMUNITY AND THE FUTURE OF OUR YOUTH AND FAMILIES. 

 

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, WE HAVE HERE UNTO SET OUR HANDS THIS 5
th
   DAY OF  JUNE 

2012. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     SAMUEL T. BISCOE  

County Judge 

 

______________________________    ______________________________ 

RON DAVIS        KAREN HUBER 

County Commissioner, Pct. 1                  County Commissioner, Pct. 3 

 

 

_________________________                 __________________________ 

SARAH ECKHARDT                  MARGARET J. GÓMEZ  

County Commissioner, Pct. 2                 County Commissioner, Pct. 4 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Meeting Date: 06/05/2012, 9:00 AM, Voting Session 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Alan Miller, Planning and Budget Office, 854-9726 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County Executive 
Planning and Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 
permissions to continue: 

A. Amendment to the contract with the Corporation for National and Community 
Service (through the OneStar Foundation) for Health and Human Services and 
Veterans Service, to deobligate unspent funds from the FY 12 award for the 
AmeriCorps Program; and 

B. Approve permission to continue the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 
and use Health and Human Services and Veterans Service's budget for related 
operating expenses until the fo~hcoming FY 12 agreement is fully executed. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Item A is an amendment to the existing AmeriCorps Contract to close out the current 
grant. As part of the Closeout process, the grantor has asked the County to deobligate 
$11,000. Since the grant goes through the Onestar Foundation, the contract 
modification also deobligates $111.11 to Onestar for a total deobligation of $11,111.11. 

Item B is an extension of an existing Permission to continue. The department expects 
the Contract to be ready in the third quarter, but an additional continuation is needed to 
avoid a gap in service. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
PBO recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Additional information is provided on each item's grant summary sheet. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Item A deobligates $11,111.11 of the existing contract. No additional funds are required 
by Commissioners Court. 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Planning and Budget Office 
County Judge's Office 

Leslie Browder 
Cheryl Aker 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 5



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRee/854-4821 
Elected/Appointed Official/Deptrtte~d: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning & Budget .Jt 0--
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health 
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund 
for payment of $1,036,119.69, for the period of May 18 to May 24,2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Director or Risk Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and concurs 
with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits Contract 
Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $1 ,036,119.69. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

See attached. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Employee Health Benefit Fund (526) - $1,036,119.69 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Dan Mansour, 854-9499 
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170 
Leroy Nellis, 854-9106 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 6



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 7



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 

Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett   854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on a request to approve the following items 
related the Community Development Block Grant available through HUD: 

A. The proposed projects for the Program Year 2012 Action Plan: 
1. Lake Oak Estates Substandard Road Improvement Project Phase 2 for 

$326,598; 
2. Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project for $256,024; 
3. Family Support Services Social Work Expansion Project for $106,000; 
4. Fair Housing Counseling Project for $28,451; and 
5. Administrative and Planning Project for $179,268. 

B. The alternate projects for the Program Year 2012 Action Plan: 
1. Homebuyer Assistance Project for up to $300,000; 
2. Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project for up to $200,000; and  
3. Las Lomitas Septic Tank and Water Project for up to $480,000. 

C. Substantial Amendment to the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan to include the 
Village of Webberville into the service area; 

D. Substantial Amendments to the Program Year 06,  Program Year 08, 
Program Year 09, and Program Year 10 Action Plans: 

1. Delete the Program Year 2009 Youth and Family Assessment Center 
Flex Fund Expansion; and 

2. Reprogram project savings and the deleted project funds totaling 
$227,935.96 to Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project. 

 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Travis County’s CDBG allocation for Program Year 2012 is $ $896,341. The 
required Action Plan to inform HUD on how Travis County intends to spend its 
allocation is due August 15, 2012. A minimum of 65% ($582,622) of the 
allocation must be spent on Housing and Community Development projects.  
Funds for Administration and Planning projects are capped at 20% ($179,268) 
and Public Services at 15% ($134,451).   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 9



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
B. In the event that the projects identified for this program year are delayed, 

canceled, or performed at a lower cost than the budgeted amount, the Travis 
County CDBG program plans to pursue one or more of the projects listed in the 
Alternate Project List. Planning for such circumstances allows the CDBG 
program to direct the funds toward pre-identified alternate projects in a timely 
manner.  This also saves resources that would otherwise be used to add or 
delete projects through the customary Substantial Amendment process 
described in the Citizen Participation Plan.  The County amended its Citizen 
Participation Plan in July 2010 to include the parameters of the use and 
adequate review of Alternate Projects.   
 

C. Every three years, urban counties receiving CDBG funds must re-affirm their 
urban county entitlement status. In PY10, Travis County renewed its status for 
2012-2014.  As part of the renewal process, Travis County chose to invite non-
entitlement cities and villages to participate in the Travis County CDBG program.  
The Village of Webberville elected to join the Urban County, and a Cooperative 
Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 2011. Beginning in PY2012 the 
Village of Webberville will be part of the CDBG Program service area. The 
Consolidated Plan is therefore being amended to reflect this.  
 

D. Over the last four years, several projects have had cost savings which need to be 
reallocated for alternate purposes.  CDBG staff must analyze whether or not a 
substantial amendment should occur.  According to Travis County’s Citizen 
Participation Plan as required by HUD rules, a substantial amendment is required 
if any of the changes represent 1) a change in the location or beneficiaries of a 
project proposed under the Consolidated Plan or Action Plan; 2) a change in the 
scope of the project by more than 25%; or 3) a change in the funding of a new 
project that was not originally subject to public comment. 

 
This year Travis County is proposing to substantially amend project years PY06, 
PY08, PY09, and PY10, to allow for project cost savings to be reallocated to 
other projects.  Project savings over the four identified years total over $190,000.  
Additionally, the PY09 Action Plan is being amended, due to staff’s 
recommendation, to delete the Youth and Family Assessment Center Flex Fund 
Expansion Project.  This deletion would allow the reallocation of $32,100.  
 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
A. Staff recommends the following projects for funding in PY 12:  

 
 
 
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Detailed Project Recommendations for PY12 

Community Development (must be at least 65 % of Total Allocation) 

1. Street Improvements:  Lake Oak Estates 
The project will improve several substandard roads in the neighborhood.  The first phase of 
the project, funded with PY11 funds, included design, environmental and related services.  
For PY 12, the second phase of the project, construction of improvements for about half the 
roadways in the subdivision:  Cavalier Canyon, Bowling Lane and related cross streets and any 
related acquisition of easements needed to complete the entire project will be funded.  Since 
the design phase is underway, it is possible that the phasing may change to include different 
streets in Phase 2 and 3, but by the end of the project in PY13, all streets will be completed.  
The project includes funds for a TNR Senior Engineer to act as a project manager.  The 
improvements impact 126 people, of which, 86% are considered low to moderate income 
based on the primary survey.     

$326,598 

2.  Owner Occupied:  Home Rehabilitation 
This project will fund minor home repair services to move homes towards Housing Quality 
Standards to low and moderate income homeowners in the CDBG service area.  The program 
seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in owner-
occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required annual 
or monthly payments is available.  The impact will be 10 homes owned by households at or 
below 80% MFI. 

$256,024 

Housing and Community Development total (65 %): $582,622 

Public Services (capped at 15 % of Total Allocation) 

3. Social Work Expansion: 
This project funds the equivalent of 1.5 FTE social work positions and related operating 
expenses to expand services to clients in the CDBG service area.  Social Work services include 
case management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and 
outreach.  This project will be administered by the Travis County HHS/VS, Family Support 
Services Division.  The impact will be assistance to 400 individuals living at or below 80% MFI.   

$106,000 

4.  Fair Housing Counseling  
This program will expand existing fair housing services in the CDBG service area, and 
proposes to serve approximately 35 people of which 51% must be at or below 80% MFI.  Fair 
housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and 
testing in support of an individual complainant.  Additionally, part of the funds will be used 
for allowable program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies.   
Furthermore, $15,000 from the Administration & Planning budget (below) will pay for 
training of up to 250 people plus advertisements targeting the service area. 

$28,451 

Public Service total (15 %): $134,451 

Administration and Planning (capped at 20 % of Total Allocation)  

5. Administration & Planning 
The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with 
the grant including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing 
activities, membership, Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related 
expenses.  Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion of the salaries for the CDBG Planners 
and the TNR Senior Engineer. These positions are responsible for project development, action 

$179,268 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

plan and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting among others.  

Administration and Planning Total (20%): $179,268 

Total award by HUD: $896,341 

 
B. The proposed Alternate Projects for 2012 are:  

 

Proposed Alternate Projects for Program Year 2012 

Project/Activities Amount 

Community Development 

Home Repair Up to $200,000 

Homebuyer Assistance Up to $300,000 

Las Lomitas Water Distribution Up to $480,000 

 
C. Staff recommends updating the PY 2011 – 2013 Consolidated Plan to reflect the 

addition of the Village of Webberville to the CDBG Service Area.  Maps and 
demographics will be updated as a part of the amendment.   

 
D. Staff recommends the deletion of the Youth and Family Assessment Center (YFAC) 

Flex Fund Expansion Project from PY09 Action Plan. The YFAC program is an 
internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service that assists 
high-risk children by improving their school performance and preventing them from 
falling into the juvenile justice system through traditional services such as therapy 
and nontraditional services like parent coaching.  The recommendation for deletion 
of the project is due to the following reasons: 1)The YFAC program has been able 
to find dollars to serve CDBG clients through other sources for the past two years; 
2) the main priority of the CDBG program has been to focus on getting larger 
projects implemented, and therefore, this project has not been prioritized and will 
continue to not be prioritized in the future with larger programs continuing to take 
precedent; and 3) the CDBG Program is recommending to use public services 
dollars to fund fair housing activities to deepen the Program’s work to address 
housing discrimination. For these reasons, staff recommends deletion of the project 
from the PY09 Action Plan.   

 
Additionally, staff recommends reallocating the $32,100 in savings related to the 
deletion of the YFAC project as well as the project savings identified in the chart 
below to the Home Repair Project.  The conversion to SAP found a couple of 
mathematical errors with regard to the projects savings as well as year reference.  
The project savings from PY06 Administration and Planning is actually from PY09.  

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

One project was off by one dollar and another by three dollars with a net change of 
two dollars less to reprogram.   
  

 
Project savings are as follows:  
 
 

Project Savings  

Original Project Project Savings 

PY06 Lava Lane  $423.86 

PY10 Lava Lane $129,685.02 

PY06 09 Administration and Planning $1,106.23 

PY10 Administration and Planning $28,593.65 

PY10 Social Work Expansion $3,923.52 
$3,920.52 

PY08 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $2,354.68 
$2,355.68 

PY09 Land Acquisition – Phase 2 $29,751.00 

PY09 YFAC Flex Fund  $32,100.00 

TOTAL $227,937.96 
$227,935.96 

 
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
A. All projects recommended are high priority projects as established by the Travis 

County Commissioners Court on May 24, 2011 for the Program Year 2011-2013 
Consolidated Plan. 

 
A brief summary of the project considerations can be found below: 
 
 Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates:  1) the first phase of the three year 

project was funded in PY11, and included design and environmental review, 2) 
the second phase of the project would fund construction of improvements for 
about half the roadways in the subdivision; 3) funding the construction phase 
allows the first phase to be an eligible expense; 4) the project improves the 
livelihood of a community and their ability to gain access to a safe and decent 
road. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 Home Rehabilitation:  1) improves quality of existing housing stock, 2) increases 

access to funding for repairs as few providers work in the CDBG service area; 
and 3) helps to address the current waiting list for the program. 

 
 Public Services, Social Work Expansion: 1) expands a successful project, 2) 

improves access for households who need the services, 3) allows the County to 
better understand the needs in the unincorporated areas and work with other 
service providers to expand services, and 4) leverages funds. 
 

 Public Services, Fair Housing Counseling: 1) helps the County meet a statutory 
requirement to meet federal Fair Housing obligations; 2) Residents of the CDBG 
service area have limited access to fair housing services, the project increases 
access to services, training and outreach to all four precincts; 3) Austin Tenants 
Council can help residents determine if and how discrimination is occurring and 
take the appropriate actions to ameliorate the situation; 4) This work informs 
CDBG staff on the nature and extent of fair housing choice/discrimination facing 
residents of the CDBG service area.   

 
 Administration & Planning:  1) allows the grant to absorb more of the 

administrative cost of the program, 2) assists in timeliness achievement through 
drawing down funds consistently. 
 

B. Considering the inclusion of alternate projects allows for the pre-planning of 
unforeseen incidents, and allows the CDBG program to utilize the funds in a timely 
manner toward pre-identified alternate projects. Resources, including time and 
money, that would otherwise be used to add or delete projects through the 
customary Substantial Amendment process described in the Citizen Participation 
Plan can be saved. 
 

C. The Consolidated Plan needs to accurately reflect the CDBG Service area.  
 

D. In the PY09 Action Plan, an expansion of the YFAC program was approved as a 
CDBG project with $32,100 in funds.  To date this project has not yet been 
implemented. Given the relatively small amount of funding for this project, other 
CDBG projects with larger funding amounts have been given higher priority to 
ensure for timely spending of funds.  Additionally, this project represents an 
expansion of an existing program that is funded through General Funds, so clients 
are currently able to access these services and reallocation of these CDBG funds 
would not impact service provision. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
A. CDBG funding comes from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  For 

PY12, CDBG will continue to need the dollars allocated in the HHS/VS General Fund target 
budget, which will continue to support the CDBG Planning Project Manager and 40% of a 
CDBG Planner position.  If the Court approves the grant projects, the grant will support 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

100% of one CDBG Planner, 60% of a second CDBG Planner, and 27% of the TNR Senior 
Engineer and all operating expenses.   

 
No matching funds are required for CDBG.  Staff anticipates that the grant funds will be 
available by mid-October 2012.  The contract period will be October 1st through September 
30th annually.   
 

B. No budgetary impact. 
 

C. No budgetary impact. 
 

D. No budgetary impacts to the General Fund.  Reallocation of project savings and the deletion 
of the YFAC project allow for better utilization of CDBG funds.   

 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: J. Lee Perry/49724; Marvin Brice, CPPB, 
Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes,C.P.M.,CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 1 to Contract No. 
11AE0115LP, Klotz Associates, for Bee Creek Road Design Project. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Bee Creek Road project is an existing 1.4 mile two-lane roadway 
that will be improved and expanded to a four-lane divided roadway from 
State Highway 71 to the southernmost traffic circle on Highland Blvd. 
The two-lane shoulder section improvements will continue northwesterly 
approximately 1000’ and connect to existing Bee Creek Road. The 
design includes bike lanes, sidewalks, raised median, curb/gutter along 
with drainage/water quality infrastructures.   

 TNR requests the approval of Change Order number one (1) for the 
above contract. This Change Order is compensation for additional 
Design Services (layouts/designs) related to extending a retaining wall 
from 200 linear feet to 4000 linear feet. This change order is in the 
amount $62,035.00 and increases the contract amount from 
$567,949.50 to $629,984.50. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $193,227.23 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $567,949.50    
Contract Type:  Professional Services   
Contract Period: Through Completion 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 10



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: 
Modification Amount: $62,035.00   
Modification Type: Construction    
Modification Period: Through Completion  

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 
Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations: N/A  

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 558668 
  Funding Account(s): 460-4931-808-8164 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
S I.VL.N M. MANILLA Ph., COUN I Y hXbCU [LVE

411W. 13th St.
Eleventh Floor
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512) 854-4697

DATE: May3,2012

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cyd V. Grimes, C.1.M., Purchasing Agent
Marvin Brice As74,pnt Purchasing Agent

FROM: St .anilla, P.E., County Executive - TNR

SUBJECT: MOD#1 - Bee Creek Road Improvements
Professional Services Agreement with Klotz Associates, RFQ# Q1101l5-LP

The following information is for your use in preparing an agenda item for Commissioners
Court action. Please contact either me at ext. 4-93 83 or Tony Valdez, P.E., Project
Manager at ext. 4-7567 if you have any questions or need additional information.

Proposed Motion:
Consider and take appropriate action on TNR’s request for Modification to the Professional
Services Agreement with Klotz Associates for additional services for retaining wall design
and to prepare a preliminary schematic for a new spur road from Bee Creek Road to the
Highland Blvd roundabout in an amount of $62,035.00 for the Bee Creek Road
Improvements in Precinct One.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:
Notice to proceed was given November 1, 2011. Retaining wall layouts/designs was in the
original scope (± 200 linear feet), but that number has increased to ± 4000 linear feet to
avoid cut slopes extending pass the proposed ROW. In addition to the retaining wall
design, Klotz Associates was also requested to prepare a preliminary schematic for a new
spur road from Bee Creek Road to the Highland Blvd roundabout.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
Funding for this project will come from Precinct 3 2001 Road Bond Savings. The source of
funding is as follows:

Requisition Number: 558668
Account Number: 460-4931-808-8164
Project Number: O1BO1R
Comm/Sub-Comm.: 968/057

1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Issues and Opportunities:
This project will realign Bee Creek Road to improve sharp curves and to improve its
intersection with the Highland Blvd. This project will expand existing Bee Creek Road
from a two lane road to a four lane arterial to provide increased capacity in anticipation of
future traffics generated by the planned developments in the vicinity.

Background:
The Consultant will be expected to provide a complete PS&E and related signed and seal
reports and/or support service. There will be five work products, with each requiring a
separate “Notice to Proceed” under the same contract.

Required Authorizations:
Cyd V. Grimes, Purchasing
Jessica Rio, PBO

asv
CC: Steve Sun. P.E., TNR

Tony Valdez, P.E. Project Manager, TNR
Cynthia McDonald, Donna Williams-Jones, TNR Financial Services
Lee Perry, Purchasing Buyer

2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 11AEO115LP BEE CREEK RD. DESIGN PAGE 1 OF 3 PAGES
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: J. Lee Perry DATE PREPARED:

700 Lavaca, Suite 800 TEL. NO: (512) 854-9700 May 14, 2012
AUSTIN, TX 78701 FA.XNO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

Klotz Associates CONTRACT:

Attn: David Balmos 1 October 25, 2011901 South MoPac Expressway
Bldg. V, Suite 220
Austin, Texas 78746

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 25, 2011 — Through Completion CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 25. 2011 — Throuah Completion

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $567,949.50 Current Modified Amount $629,984.50

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: The above referenced contract is modified to reflect the changes as set forth below:

A. Reference Exhibit I, Section 1, ‘Compensation for Basic Services.” Paragraph 1.1. The fixed fee for basic services is changed from $562,749.50,
to $624,284.50, an increase of $61,535.00. As a result the design phase work products are changed as follows:

1. Work Product 1 - 30% Design, is changed from $248,342.00, to $257,527.00, an increase of $9,185.00.00
2. Work Product 2 - 60% Design, is changed from $139,610.00, to $161,610.00, an increase of $22,000.00
3. Work Product 3 — 90% Design, is changed from $94,315.50, to $114,315.50, an increase of $20,000.00
4. Work Product 4— 100% Design, is changed from $57,192.00, to $67,542.00, an increase of $10,350.00

B. Reference Exhibit I, Section 1, Paragraph 1.1.1, (i) Design Phase, “Work Product 5 — Construction Phase”, is amended to read “Work Product 5 —

Bid Phase Service”.

C. The above Work Products are increased as a result of additional Design Phase services as outlined in the attached (Attachment I) Scope of Services
and shall be added to the contract.

D. Reference Exhibit 1, Section 4, Reimbursable Total Not-to-Exceed amount is changed from $5,200.00 to $5,700.00, an increase of $500.00.

E. Reference Exhibit 1, Section 5, Total Agreement Sum, is changed from $567,949.50 ($562,749.50 Basic Services, and NTE $5,200.00
Reimbursable Expenses) to $629,984.50 ($624,284.50 Basic Services, and NTE $5,700.00 Reimbursable Expenses), an increase of $62,035.00.

C,

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and
effect.

Note to Vendor:

IXXXI Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME: t(L-Qr ASSOc( 74
,.

LI DBA

BY.___________________________________________
X’CORPORATION

SIGNATURE LI OTHER

BY: 5Corr
DATE

PRINT NAME

TITLE: V)C ( 7tJ7 5/ ‘VtITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:______________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

DRAFT

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Contract No. 1 1AEO1 iSLE’
Modification No. 1
Attachment 1
Page 2 of 3

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
FOR

BEE CREEK ROAD
DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

APRIL 27, 2012 (Revised May 10,. 2012)

1. Project Data

1.1. Project Title: Bee Creek Road Improvement

1.1.1. Description: Klotz Associates has been selected by Travis County to
provide engineering services for the reconstruction ofBee Creek Road from
US 71 to Highland Blvd. Based on discussions between Travis County and
Haythem Dawlett’ s representative, Joe DiQuinzio, it was determined that .a
sizeable retaining wall will need to be designed to complete the project.
Retaining wall layouts/designs was in the original scope ± 200 linear feet),
but that number has increased to ± 4000 linear feet to avoid cutsiopes
extending pass the proposed R.O.W. In addition to the retaining wall, further
roadway design was asked ofKlotz Associates to prepare a preliminary
schematic for a new spur road from Bee Cave Road to the Highland Blvd,
roundabout.

1.1.2. Objective: The Klotz Associates team will design and prepare the plan
and specification bid documents for the construction of the additional length
ofretaining wall along Bee Creek Road. Klotz .Associates will produce a
schematic as, well as an estimate for improvements related to a spur road
between Highland Blvd. and Bee Creek Road.

1.. 1,3. Assumptions: The following assumptions were used in the preparation of
this scope.

• The additional length of wall need for the project will be 4,000 linear
feet

• The average height of the walls will be 12 feet with a maximum height
of 25’ feet

• The roadway typical section for the spur road shall be curbed and
include two bicycle lanes, two 12 foot travel lanes, a 14 foot two way
left turn lane, and have 6 foot sidewalks on either side of the roadway.

DRAFT

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Contract No. 1 1AEO1 15LP
Modification No. 1
Attachment 1
Page 3 of 3

• The vertical grade of the proposed spur road shall not be greater than
4%.

• The design speed of the spur road will be 35 MPH

2. Services of the Engineer

2.1. Klotz Associates will manage the development of the project and coordinate the
services of our subconsultants in the development of the retaining wall plans,
estimates and project manual.

2.2. Klotz Associates shall prepare retaining wall plans, profiles and typical sections
for the proposed improvements. This scope of services and the corresponding
cost proposal are based on the Engineer preparing the following retaining wall
plans sheets:

• Retaining Wall Plan and Profiles
• Retaining Wall Standards and Special Details

3. Peliverables

3.1. Deliverable Requirements:

1. The retaining wall information will be submitted as part of Work Products
2 (60%), 3 (90%) and 4 (100%) design phases as outlined in the original
contract (11 AEO 11 5LP)..

2. A preliminary schematic and cost estimate will be submitted for the spur
road alternative as part ofWork Product 1 (30% Design),

4. Schedule: The project schedule outlined in. the original contract (I.l.AEOI 1 5LP) is
still applicable.

5. Compensation: The budget breakdown of the additional authorization for each work
product are as follows:

Work Product 1 —30% Design - $ 9,185
Work Product 2 — 60% Design - $ 22,000
Work Product 3 — 90% Design

- $ 20,000
Work Product 4— l00%Design - $ 10,X50

DRAFT

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: J. Lee Perry/512-854-9724 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Bridge 155 
Replacement Construction Project, IFB No. B120193-LP, to the low 
bidder, Relmco, Inc. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 Bridge 155 Replacement Construction Project consists of approximately 
690 linear feet of improvements to Old Highway 20 between US 290 and 
the City of Manor, including the removal and replacement of an existing 
bridge with a 3-span bridge with a total length of 210 linear feet. 

 On May 16, 2012, four (4) bids were received for the Bridge 155 
Replacement Construction Project, in which the bids ranged from 
$892,135.79 to $971,659.57.  

 As a result, TNR recommends awarding a contract to the apparent low 
bidder, Relmco, Inc., in the amount of $892,135.79.  

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $892,135.79    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: Through Completion 
 
   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 11



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 
Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
Solicitations Sent: 55  Responses Received: 4  
HUB Information: Vendor is a HUB  % HUB Subcontractor: 5.6%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 2011 Bond Funds 
  Funding Account(s): 2011 Bond Funds  
  Comments: The 2011 Bond Funds will be available for use June 1, 

2012.  Because of the County’s conversion to the new ERP system, the 
department is currently unavailable to encumber the funds for this 
project.  However, they have indicated funds will be encumbered as 
soon as possible after the new system is activated on June 4, 2012, but 
definitely prior to Court award on June 5, 2012. 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
 
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

411 W. 13th St. 
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4626 

May 21,2012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 

~'ROM:~., County Executive 

Subject: Bridge 155 Replacement Project, 2012 Bond, IFB# B120l93-LP, Construction 
Contract Award 

TNR Public Works Division has reviewed the bids submitted by four contractors that responded 
to the bid solicitation request, and recommends award of the contract to the apparent low bidder, 
Re1mco, for a total of$892,135.79. 

The financial information pertaining to this project is as follows: 

Requisition No. Account Com/Sub Funding Source Amount 
To be entered in XXX-4931-808-8155 968/018 2011 Bonds $892,135.79 
SAP June 2012 

Verification ofthe receipt of the 2011 bond proceeds will be sent to Kapp Schwebke in Auditor's 
Office and Marvin Brice in Purchasing as soon as the funds are in the bank. The anticipated cash 
disbursement date is Tuesday, May 22,2012. 

Attachment: 
Bid tabulation form 
Project Location Map 

CC:	 Marvin Brice, Purchasing 
Lee Perry, Purchasing 
Hannah York, Auditor's Office 
Kapp Schwebke, Auditor's Office 
Steve Sun, Mo Mortazavi, Donna Williams-Jones, Tawana Gardner 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



/ 

j 

( 

,,
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

, 'T
' 

r-
1'-,,00 
u

. 
l.Ll0"l 
"
"
0

 
0

"
 

0::00 
£1. ... 

0
«

 
Z

I


,..uti) 

! 
/ 

\ 

./ 

·"yr·>. 
! 

........".
 

Q
. 

~
 

z
v
i 

o
·

_
I


~
 .Z

4 U
 

o "..J 

I
U
l"') 

l.Ll... 
-
,. 

0
0

' 
0::... 
£1. 

l' 

Z
 ... 

.l:)« 
l.L

l1


CO
V

l 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



STATE OFTEXAS §

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This Agreement for Construction Services (the “Construction Contract” or “Contract”)) is
made and entered into this day by and between Travis County, Texas, a political
subdivision of the State of Texas (the “County”) and RELMCO, INC. (the “Contractor”)
and will be binding upon their respective executors, administrators, heirs, successors,
and assigns.

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a contract for the construction of
BRIDGE 155 REPLACEMENT PROJECT in Travis County, Texas, in accordance with
the provisions of state statutes and conforming to the Contractor’s Notice of
Construction, Bid Proposal (including the Bidding Documents, Bid Form, and any
Addenda or Amendments thereto), General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and
the Specifications and Plans marked BRIDGE 155 REPLACEMENT PROJECT
(B120193-LP), all of which are incorporated herein;

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been engaged in and now does comparable work
and represents that it is fully equipped, competent, and capable of performing the
above- desired and outlined work, and is ready and willing to perform such work in
accordance with all provisions of the abovementioned Specifications and Plans marked
(BI 201 93-LP)

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the County’s promise to pay the amount
below as totaled in the Bid Proposal hereto attached and made part of this Contract, the
Contractor agrees to do at his own proper cost and expense all the work necessary for
the construction of BRIDGE 155 REPLACEMENT PROJECT in Travis County, Texas in
accordance with the provisions of the aforementioned Contractor’s Notice of
Construction, the Bid Proposal as awarded by the Commissioners Court, and the
Specifications and Plans marked (B120193-LP) to the satisfaction of the County
Executive of the Transportation and Natural Resources Department of Travis County,
Texas.

This contract document, the Contractor’s Notice of Construction, the Bid
Proposal (including the Bidding Documents, the Bid Form, and any Addenda or
Amendments thereto), and the Specifications and Plans marked (B120193-LP)
represents the entire and integrated contract between the County and the Contractor
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or
written. This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the
County and the Contractor.

The said Contractor further agrees to be available for work within 14 calendar
days, and to complete the within 120 Calendar days after receiving a wntten “Notice to
Proceed”

Travis County, Texas, in consideration of the full and true performance of the
said work by said Contractor hereby agrees and binds itself to pay to said Contractor
the total contract amount of 892,135.79 consisting of $474,407.85 for materials to be
incorporated into the Project or completely consumed at the job site and services
required by or integral to the performance of the contract and $417,727.94 for all other
charges, including the cost of other services, overhead, materials which do not become
part of the finished project or are reusable, and machinery or equipment and its
accessory, repair, or replacement parts, and in the manner provided for, within 30
calendar days from the receipt of an acceptable invoice. This division of the contract
amount is made for sales tax purposes only. The

DRAFT

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Contractor must maintain internal records to verify the division. The Contractor must
make these records available upon the request of the Travis County Auditor.

This contract will be construed according to the laws of the State of Texas. The
performance for this Contract must be in Travis County, and venue for any action will lie
in Travis County, Texas. The Contractor warrants that the completed project must be
adequate for the purposes intended.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if Contractor is delinquent in
payment of taxes at the time of invoicing, Contractor hereby assigns any payments to
be made for service rendered under this Contract to the Travis County Tax
Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE
COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND
THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED
BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF THE COUNTY.

The forfeiture provisions of the contract imposed pursuant to the Travis County
Ethics Policy may be waived in whole or in part by the Travis County Commissioners
Court.

EXECUTED THIS

____________

DAYOF

____________,YEAR______

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

_________________________

BY:___________________

___________________

TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED:

TRAVIS COUNTY ATTORNEY COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

CERTIFIED FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE

TRAVIS COUNTY AUDITOR

DRAFT

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



SUMMARY OF BID TABS
 

BRIDGE 155 REPLACEMENT AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
 
IFB B120193-LP
 

DATE: 5/18/2012 
PREPARED BY' UNINTECH CONS. ENG 

I II II ENGINEER'S EST II RELMCO II GREATER AUSTIN II FORESYTHE II CAPITAL EXCAVATION I
 
UNIT PRICE ENG %Var UNIT PRICE GREATER O/OVar % Var UNIT PRICE CAPITALUNIT PRICE % VarBid Item ITEM COSTS RELMCO BID FORESYTH BID PAY ITEM NO I DESCRIPTION 

UNIT PRICE BID From Est BID AUSTIN BID From Est From Est EXCAVATION BID BID BID From Est 
No. IRR 

1 100-2002
 PREPARING ROW $2,500.00STA 7.1 $1,500.00 $10,650.00 $17,750.00 $26,873.50$3,785.00 $5,00000 $35,500.00 $6,500.00 $46,150.00
 
2 110-2001
 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) $12.00CY $7.50 $4,695.00 $7,512.00 $20.00626.0 $12.95 $8,106.70 $12,520.00 $13.00 $8,138.00
 
3 110-2002
 EXCAVATION (CHANNEL) $12.00 $13,200.00CY 1100.0 $15.00 $16,500.00 $9.70 $25.00$10,670.00 $27,500.00 $16.00 $17,600.00
 
4 132-2003
 EMBANKMENT (FINAL)(ORD COMP)(TY B) $15.00CY 1,306 $15.00 $19,590.00 $19,590.00 $12.95 $16,912.70 $15.00 $16,978.00
 
5 160-2003
 

$19,590.00 $13.00 
FURNISHING AND PLACING TOPSOIL (4") $2.00 $3,188.00SY 1594
 $1.00 $1,594.00 $10.00 $15,940.00 $5.00 $7,970.00 $4.00 $6,376.00
 

6 164-2023
 CELL FBR MLCH SEED(PERM)(RURAL)(CLAY) $1,639.20 $0.56 $2,294.88SY 4098
 $0.40 $0.23 $942.54 $3.00 $12,294.00 $0.22 $901.56
 
7 168-2001
 VEGETATIVE WATERING $40.00$15.00 $6,000.00 $10.00 $6,624.00
 
8 169-2003
 

MG 400
 $16,000.00 $27.00 $10,800.00 $4,000.00 $16.56 
SOIL RETENTION BLANKETS (CL 1) (TY C) $1.00 $31,172.00 $1.21 $37,718.12 $0.14 $4,364.08 $0.60 $0.95 $29,613.40
 

9 247-2041
 
SY 31,172 $18,703.20 

FL BS (CMP IN PLC)(TY A GR 1)(FNAL POS) $48.00 $40,752.00 $51.00 $43,299.00 $57.10 $48,477.90 19.0% $25.00 $21,225.00 $47.43 $40,268.07
 
10 340-2032
 

CY 849
 
D-GR HMA(METH) TY-C SAC-B PG64-22 $110.00TON 263
 $90.00 $23,670.00 $28,930.00 $121.00 $31,823.00 $115.00 $30,245.00 $110.56 $29,077.28
 

11 400-2005
 CEM STABIL BKFL $17,333.60CY 188
 $50.00 $9,400.00 $90.00 $16,920.00 $92.20 $60.00 $11,280.00 $123.43 $23,204.84
 
12 416-2001
 DRILL SHAFT (18 IN) LF $4,400.0080
 $45.00 $3,600.00 $55.00 $32.20 $2,576.00 $100.00 $8,000.00 $65.86 $5,268.80
 
13 416-2003
 DRILL SHAFT (30 IN) LF $45,600.00 -24.8%570
 $125.00 $71,250.00 $80.00 -36.0% $94.00 $53,580.00 $120.00 $68,400.00 -4.0% $94.26 $53,728.20 -24.6%
 
14 420-2003
 CL C CONC (ABUT) CY $750.00 $43,800.00 $1,000.0058
 $700.00 $40,880.00 $755.00 $44,092.00 $58,400.00 42.9% $625.00 $36,500.00
 
15 420-2004
 CL C CONC (BENT) CY $850.00 $900.00 $34,830.00 $1,500.0039
 $32,895.00 $1,002.00 $38,777.40 $58,050.00 76.5% $750.00 $29,025.00
 
16 420-2033
 CL S CONC (APPR SLAB) CY $275.00 $27,775.00 $350.00 $35,350.00 $34,946.00 $100.00 $10,100.00101
 $346.00 $400.00 $40,400.00
 
17 422-2001
 REINF CONC SLAB SF 10,290 $9.00 $92,610.00 $11.00 $113,190.00 $147,147.00 58.9% $15.00 $154,350.00 $13.00 $133,770.00 44.4%22.2% $14.30 66.7% 
18 425-2003
 PRESTR CONC BEAM (TY C) LF 1,254 $131,676.30 $119,135.70 -4.9% $125,406.00$105.00 $95.00 -9.5% $99.83 $125,192.81 $100.00 -4.8% $95.00 $119,135.70 -9.5% 
19 428-2001
 CONC SURF TREAT (CLASS I) SY 1,348 $2.50 $3,370.00 $2.50 $3,370.00 $1.00 $1,348.00$2.85 $3,841.80 $3.00 $4,044.00
 
20 432-2002
 RIPRAP (CONC)(5 IN) 112
CY $375.00 $42,000.00 $325.00 $36,400.00 $39,200.00 $300.00 $33,600.00$350.00 $312.76 $35,029.12
 
21 432-2021
 RIPRAP (STONE PROTECTION)(18 IN) CY 314
 $110.00 $34,518.00 $115.00 $36,087.00 $28,242.00 $50.00 $15,690.00$90.00 $125.00 $39,225.00
 
22 442-2005
 STR STL (MISCELLANEOUS) LB 160
 $2.50 $400.00 $15.00 $2,400.00 $2,264.00 $25.00 $4,000.00 $3,017.60
 
23 450-2064
 

$14.15 $18.86 
240
RAIL (TY C221) LF $85.00 $20,400.00 $66.25 $15,900.00 $74.25 $17,820.00 $55.00 $13,200.00 $76.25 $18,300.00
 

24 450-2080
 RAIL (TY T221) LF 503
 $85.00 $42,721.00 $46.50 $23,370.90 $53.20 $26,738.32 $35.00 $17,591.00 $58.39 $29,346.81
 
25 454-2001
 SEALED EXPANSION JOINT (4 IN)(SEJ-A) LF 86
 $7,740.00 $82.00 $7,791.60 $8,600.00$90.00 $7,052.00 $90.60 $100.00 $105.54 $9,076.44
 
26 496-2010
 REMOV STR (BRIDGE 100-499 FT LENGTH) EA 1
 $45,000.00 $25,000.00 $38,500.00 $49,500.00 10.0%$45,000.00 $25,000.00 $38,500.00 $49,500.00 $46,850.00 $46,850.00
 
27 500-2001
 MOBILIZATION LS 1
 $81,694.60 $81,694.60 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 -8.2% $80,000.00 $80,000.00 -2.1% $90,000.00 $90,000.00 10.2% $90,000.00 $90,000.00 10.2%
 
28 502-2001
 BARRICADES, SIGNS AND TRAFFIC HANDLING MO 5
 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $12,500.00 $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,190.75 $5,953.75
 
29 506-2001
 ROCK FILTER DAMS (INSTALL) (TY 1) LF 20
 $20.00 $18.75$400.00 $40.00 $800.00 $375.00 $25.00 $500.00 $18.00 $360.00
 
30 506-2002
 ROCK FILTER DAMS (INSTALL) (TY 2) LF 20
 $25.00 $22.90 $500.00$500.00 $40.00 $800.00 $458.00 $25.00 $2200 $440.00
 
31 506-2009
 ROCK FILTER DAMS (REMOVE) LF 40
 $5.00 $200.00 $15.00 $600.00 $6.25 $250.00 $10.00 $400.00 $6.00 $240.00
 
32 506-2016
 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (INSTALL) (TY 1) SY 200
 $18.00 $4,000.00 $11.00$3,600.00 $20.00 $2,200.00 $10.00 $2,000.00 $10.50 $2,100.00
 
33 506-2019
 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (REMOVE) SY 200
 $7.00 $2,000.00 $6.25 $1,250.00 $6.00$1,400.00 $10.00 $10.00 $2,000.00 $1,200.00
 
34 512-2008
 PORT CTB (FUR s INST)(LOW PROF)(TY 1) LF 520
 $35.00 $10,40000 $29.00 $15,080.00 $13,000.00 $9.94$18,200.00 $20.00 $25.00 $5,168.80
 
35 512-2009
 PORT CTB (FUR s INST)(LOW PROF)(TY 2) LF 80
 $35.00 $2,800.00 $20.00 $1,600.00 $34.00 $2,720.00 $25.00 $15.07$2,000.00 $1,205.60
 
36 512-2044
 PORT CTB (REMOVE)(LOW PROF)(TY 1) LF 520
 $7.00 $15.50 $8,060.00$3,640.00 $12.00 $6,240.00 $4.00 $2,080.00 $9.94 $5,168.80
 
37 512-2045
 PORT CTB (REMOVE)(LOW PROF)(TY 2) LF 80
 $9.00 $12.30 $984.00 $15.07$720.00 $12.00 $960.00 $4.00 $320.00 $1,205.60
 
38 540-2001
 MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST) LF $17.00300
 $5,100.00 $18.00 $17.00 $5,100.00 $20.00 $36.81$5,400.00 $6,000.00 $11,043.00
 
39 540-2012
 MTL BEAM GD FEN TRANS (TL2) EA 4
 $750.00 $3,000.00 $575.00 $570.00 $2,280.00 $258.00 $523.00$2,300.00 $1,032.00 $2,092.00
 
40 544-2001
 GUARDRAIL END TREATMENT (INSTALL) EA 4
 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $1,960.00 $7,840.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $1,785.00 $7,140.00 
41 642-S SILT FENCE LF 1,762 $2.50 $4,40500 $2.50 $4,405.00 $1.92 $3,383.04 $2.00 $3,524.00 $1.85 $3,259.70
 
42 644-2004
 INS SM RD SN SUP&AM TY 1OBWG(1) SA(T) EA 2
 $800.00 $575.00$1,600.00 $632.50 $1,265.00 $796.00 $300.00 $600.00$398.00 $1,150.00
 
43 644-2060
 REMOVE SM RD SN SUP & AM EA 4
 $75.00 $100.00$300.00 $100.00 $120.00 $480.00 $125.00 $500.00$400.00 $400.00
 
44 666-2145
 REF PAV MRK TY II (W) 4" (SLD) LF 524
 $0.50 $5.25$262.00 $5.78 $2.50 $1,310.00 $3.00 $1,572.00 $2,751.00
 
45 666-2178
 

$3,028.72 
REF PAV MRK TY II (Y) 4" (SLD) 524
 $0.50 $3.00 $1,572.00LF $262.00 $578 $1,310.00 $5.25 $2,751.00
 

46 672-2012
 
$3,028.72 $2.50 

REFL PAV MRKR TY I-C EA 17
 $3.50 $15.00 $255.00 $22.50$59.50 $24.75 $420.75 $10.40 $176.80 $382.50 

IITOTAlS I $913,640.6011 $892,135,791 .2.35"/011 $949.505,791 3.93%11 $969,617.201 6.13oj l $971,659.571 6.35%101 IDI II I I I I
 

NOTES: (1) RELMCO ITEM 6, UNIT BID PROVIDED $0.561, ROUNDED TO $0.56, TOTAL BID REDUCTION OF $4.10 
(2) RELMCO ITEM 44, UNIT BID PROVIDED $5.775, ROUNDED TO $5.78, TOTAL BID INCREASE OF $2.62 
(3) RELMCO ITEM 45, UNIT BID PROVIDED $5.775, ROUNDED TO $5.78, TOTAL BID INCREASE OF $2.62 

__ .,._ ~1 ~_E~~.CO_!O.!~L: .1~~~~A.~_EOF.,.$1 ~1~.~~E~. ~1~l?UE.T~_'!E~~iY ~HRlJ(~! ~c:l!E?_A.~OV_E _ .. _ _ . 

1 OF 1 5/21/2012 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012  
Prepared By/Phone Number: Nancy Barchus, 854-9764 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for Commercial Moving 
and Storage, IFB No. B120231-NB, to the low bidders: 

a.   Move Solutions, Ltd, Primary Contractor; and  

b.   Expert Relocation Systems, LLC, Secondary Contractor.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract will provide Commercial Moving and Storage Services to 
Travis County Facilities Management Department and other Travis 
County Departments as needed.  

     On April 20, 2012, IFB No. B120231-NB, Commercial Moving and 
Storage Services, was issued through BidSync.  Three (3) bids were 
received on May 14, 2012.  The Purchasing Office concurs with 
Facilities Management’s recommendation to award contracts to the low 
bidders, Move Solutions, Ltd. (Primary Contractor) And Expert 
Relocation Systems, LLC. (Secondary Contractor).  

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $57,521.41 has 
been spent against this requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: N/A    
Contract Type: Term  
Contract Period: June 27, 2012 through June 26, 2013  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 12



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Viewed: 15  Responses Received: 3  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  
  Funding Account(s): 001-1415-525-6099 and 001-1405-525-6099 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Bid #B1 200231 COMMERCIAL MOVING AND STORAGE BID TABULATION

Facilities Resource
Inc.Move Solutions Ltd.

Expert Relocation
Systems

Item # liltem llQJ Pricell Total Pricell Totalil Pricell Total
B1200231-NB--01-16 Non-Static Shrink Wrap 100 roN $12.00 $1,200.00 $12.00 $1,200.00 $20.00 $2,000.00
B1200231-NB--01-17 Anti-Static PC Bags 200 each $0.75 $150.00 $2.00 $400.00 $0.65 $130.00

Supervisor labor (Normal Hours) per —

B1200231-NB--01-01 Supervisor 3000 hour $22.00 $66,000.00 $27.00 $81,000.00 $28.00 $84,000.00
Supervisor labor (Outside Normal Hours) — —

B1200231-NB--01-02 per Supervisor 3000 hour $22.00 $66,000.00 $27.00 $81,000.00 $28.00 $84,000.00
B1200231-NB--01-03 Labor(Normal Hours) per Worker 3000 hour $18.00 $54,000.00 $26.50 $79,500.00 $18.00 $54,000.00

B1200231-NB--01-04 Labor(Outside Normal Hours) per Worker 3000 hour $18.00 $54,000.00 $26.50 $79,500.00 $18.00 $54,000.00
Systems Furniture Worker (Normal Hours) — —

B1200231-NB--01-05 perworker 500 hour $22.00 $11,000.00 $35.00 $17,500.00 $35.50 $17,750.00
Systems Furniture Worker (Outside — —

B1200231-NB--01-06 Normal Hours) per worker 500 hour $22.00 $11,000.00 $35.00 $17,500.00 $35.50 $17,750.00
B1200231-NB--01-07 Cargo Vehicle (Normal Hours) with Driver 3000 hour $20.00 $60,000.00 $14.00 $42,000.00 $25.00 $75,000.00

Cargo Vehicle (Outside Normal Hours) with —

B1200231-NB--01-08 Driver 3000 hour $20.00 $60,000.00 $14.00 $42,000.00 $25.00 $75,000.00
B1200231-NB--01-09 Rental of Cartons/Lock Boxes (Quickset) 2000 each $0.75 $1,500.00 $2.00 $4,000.00 $1.00 $2,000.00
B1200231-NB--01-10 Rental of Cartons/Dishpack 2000 each $1.00 $2,000.00 $1.80 $3,600.00 $3.00 $6,000.00

Purchase of CartonslLock Boxes
B1200231-NB--01-11 (Quickset) 2000 each $1.00 $2,000.00 $2.10 $4,200.00 $1.75 $3,500.00
B1200231-NB--01-12 Purchase of Cartons/Dishpack 2000 each $1.00 $2,000.00 $1.90 $3,800.00 $3.25 $6,500.00
B1200231-NB--01-13 Color Coded Label 100 each $4.00 $400.00 $9.00 $900.00 $6.00 $600.00
B1200231-NB--01-14 Tape Roll 300 each $2.00 $600.00 $1.25 $375.00 $1.25 $375.00
B1200231-NB--01-15 Non-Static Bubble Wrap ioo each $35.00 $3,500.00 $10.00 $1,000.00 $45.00 $4,500.00

Totals = 1$395,350.O0 $459,475.00 ir $487,105.00

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S, P.E., Director

1010 Lavaca Street, Suite 400 • P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 • Phone: (512) 854-9661 • Fax: (512) 854-9226

MEMORANDUM Project No: SVCOT- 22-12F-XM
File: 801

TO: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent

FROM:

DATE: May 18, 2012

SUBJECT: Commercial Moving and Storage
Contract Awards of IFB B 120231-NB

Facilities Management Department (FMD) has completed the review of the three bids received for
Commercial Moving and Storage contract. The apparent lowest bidder is Move Solutions, Ltd., and the
second lowest bidder is Expert Relocation Systems, LLC. Move Solutions, Ltd., is an existing Travis
County contractor and has provided acceptable services. Expert Relocation Systems, LLC provided
FMD with good references. FMD therefore recommends award of the Commercial Moving and Storage
contract to Move Solutions, Ltd., as primary and Expert Relocation Systems, LLC as a secondary
contractor.

Funding for FMD portion of the Commercial Moving and Storage contract is in line item 001-1415-525-
6099 and 001-1405-525-6099. Please direct any questions on this request to RonyAouad at 44781.
Your assistance in this request is greatly appreciated.

ATTACHMENT:
Bid Tabulations

Copy To:
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO
Lloyd Evans, Maintenance Division Director, FMD
Rony Aouad, Service Contract Manager, FMD
Nancy Barchus, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Purchasing

/2 0/6
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY 5/24/12
Account Balance Inquiry 09:19:24

Fiscal Year : 2012
Account number : 1-1415—525.60—99
Fund : 001 GENERAL FUND
Department : 14 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
Division 15 BUILDING MAINTENANCE
Basic activity : 52 GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Sub activity 5 FACILITIES
Element : 60 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
Object : 99 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

Budget 74,861
Encumbered amount . 27,215.69
Pre-encumbered amount .00
Expenditures . . . 45,258.15

Total expenditures . 72,473.84
Balance 2,387.16

Press Enter to continue.

F3=Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



P1655101 TRAVIS COUNTY 5/24/12
Account Balance Inquiry 09:20:38

Fiscal Year : 2012
Account number : 1—1405—525.60—99
Fund : 001 GENERAL FUND
Department . 14 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
Division : 05 PROJECT MANAGEMENT SVCS
Basic activity : 52 GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Sub activity : 5 FACILITIES
Element : 60 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
Object : 99 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

Budget 237,682
Encumbered amount . 82,606.63
Pre-encumbered amount .00
Expenditures . . . 22,599.74

Total expenditures . 105,206.37
Balance 132,475.63

Press Enter to continue.

F3=Exit Fl2Cancel

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012  
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/854-4205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioners Eckhardt and Huber 

Agenda Language:  Receive update on RFS #110195-LC, ITS 
Assessment and CIO Transition Services, and take appropriate 
action:  

a) Change in RFS Scope of Work;  

b) Approve Exemption Order to Contract with a Recruitment Firm to 
Provide Interim CIO; and 

c) Any other related issues. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:   

Commissioners Court created the County IT Advisory Board on November 16, 
2010.  Board Members appointed were County Auditor, County Purchasing 
Agent, and Executive Managers for Justice and Public Safety, Information 
Technology Services, Planning and Budget, Emergency Services and three 
external community members with expertise in IT.   

The Board was charged to implement a cohesive technology services 
department to streamline technology services, improve communications and 
otherwise assist Travis County to better manage mission critical and day-to-
day activities.      

On March 15, 2011 Commissioners Court received a briefing from the IT 
Advisory Board.  In May 2011, at the request of the Advisory Board, 
Purchasing prepared a Request for Services for a Change Agent-CIO for the 
Change Management Program and sent to the Board members for review.  
After much discussion, it was suggested and agreed that the process should 
focus on identifying candidates through recommendations from the External 
Board.  The External Board members were charged with providing candidate 
recommendations to the Internal Advisory Board for consideration of the 
Change Agent-CIO position.  Several resumes were received.  During 
September/October, 2011, the IT Advisory Board interviewed two candidates 
and recommended the search continue via a formal procurement process for 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 13



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

a combined solicitation for a firm to perform the IT Assessment, act as the 
Change Manager, assist with the search for the new IT County Executive and 
with the CIO Transition Services.   

The solicitation was issued October 21, 2011.  A Pre-Proposal conference 
was held November 7, 2011 and twenty-one vendors participated.  Thirteen 
(13) responses were received December 6, 2011.  The Evaluation Committee 
comprised of representatives from County Clerk, District Clerk, ITS, Sheriff’s 
Office, Courts, Commissioner’s Office, Justice and Public Safety and two 
external Board members received copies for review on December 6th.  The 
Evaluation Committee evaluated the written responses and submitted their 
individual scores January 9, 2012.  Once the written scores were finalized, the 
OPT requested that they be allowed to further evaluate the proposals.  So, the 
OPT team evaluated the top 5 firms and the top 3 were interviewed.  PTI was 
the highest ranked firm both times.   

On January 17, 2012, The Purchasing Agent requested that the Court appoint 
a Project Facilitator (Project Manager) for this county-wide project.  The 
Interim County Executive for Planning and Budget, Leroy Nellis, volunteered 
to lead this project with the support of the OPT team. The OPT team consists 
of all the Commissioners Court County Executives (PBO, TNR, IT, ES, CJP, 
HHS) and the County Auditor and Purchasing Agent.   In March, Leslie 
Browder, new PBO County Executive and Roger Jefferies, CJP County 
Executive replaced Leroy as Project Facilitator(s).  The Court’s Sub-
Committee, Commissioners Eckhardt and Huber, met with the OPT team to 
further discuss the project and give the team further direction on the Scope of 
Services. 

A) The OPT and Sub-Committee now recommends removing the Interim CIO 
position and search services from the original RFS and hire a separate search 
firm to provide these services. 

B) Approve Order Exempting the Purchase of Services of a Placement Firm 
to Search, Select and Employ an Interim CIO from the Competitive 
Procurement Process Pursuant to Section 262.024(A)(4) of the County 
Purchasing Act and authorize the Purchasing Agent to negotiate and sign 
resulting Contract. 

C) Attached memo from OPT. 

 
 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



RFS# S110195-LC                                                                                     PAGE 27 OF 42 PAGES 

 

 

NOTE:  PARTS II, III, AND IV, ALONG WITH THE PROPOSER’S PROPOSAL, AND ANY 

DEVIATION TO WHICH TRAVIS COUNTY HAS AGREED, IN WRITING, WILL BECOME THE 

CONTRACT. 
 

 PART II - SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.0 SCOPE OF SERVICE:  

The purpose of this Request for Services (“RFS”) is to hire a firm to provide IT Assessment and CIO 

Transition Services to include: 1) an assessment of IT personnel, processes, standards, architecture, and 

technologies against current and future needs; 2) drive recommended changes identified from the 

assessment intended to modernize and optimize IT functions so they are optimally aligned with the 

needs of the County (including internal as well as external users and constituents); and 3) assist in 

developing qualifications for and the hiring of a new County Executive of Information Technology 

Services.  This project will be conducted in Phases. 

 

2.0 REQUIREMENTS:   

  

2.1 Phase 1: Evaluate Current State of IT 

2.1.1 Establish current understanding of IT Organizations, functional breadth of responsibilities 

of current County infrastructure and supported applications. 

2.1.2 Identify high-level and desired future state of county IT.  

2.1.3 Develop high-level roadmap that prioritizes tasks in order of importance with reasonable 

timeframes for desired outcome.   

2.1.4 Develop and propose plan for change management criteria that County Leadership can 

support.  

2.1.5 Identify and document key success factors for the change management tasks. 

 

2.2 Phase 2: Assessment tasks 

2.2.1 Lead technology team during the interim period.  

2.2.2 Assess current technology team.  

2.2.3 Execute against the Interim change plan identified above. 

2.2.4 Formulate profile elements for consideration during the search for IT County Executive. 

2.2.5 Perform an assessment of Information & Technology functions throughout the County. 

2.2.6 Prepare the IT staff for the new IT County Executive.  

2.2.7 Cast IT transformation vision for user departments.  

2.2.8 Identify critical elements of competence and experience for the new IT County Executive. 

 

2.3 Phase 3: Search for new IT County Executive  

2.3.1 Document the County leadership’s desired qualifications and scope of search (in-house, 

state, national).  

2.3.2 Assist with preparation of job description.  

2.3.3 Preliminary vetting of resumes.  

2.3.4 Propose candidates for a short-list.  

2.3.5 Participate appropriately in interviews.  

2.3.6 Make observations and recommendations of candidates as desired by the County.  

2.3.7 Reduce level of effort of County for search.  

2.3.8 Optimize the selection effort.  

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



RFS# S110195-LC                                                                                     PAGE 28 OF 42 PAGES 

 

 

2.4 Phase 4: Transition Roadmap Tasks to new IT County Executive 

2.4.1 High-level IT tasks prioritized to reach desired, future state IT. 

2.4.2 Assist IT County Executive in transition. 

2.4.3 Assist in task completion.  

2.4.4 Successful transition to new IT County Executive.  

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



ORDER EXEMPTING PURCHASE OF  

PROFESSIONAL RECRUITMENT FIRM 

 FROM COMPETITIVE PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE 

COUNTY PURCHASING ACT 

  

 

 WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Travis County has the authority to exempt the 

purchase of personal or professional services from the bidding requirements of the County 

Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT. CODE ANN. sec. 262.024, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a contract with a professional Placement 

Firm to search, select and employ an Interim CIO for Travis County, and 

 

 WHEREAS, these services are professional services requiring special training, skills, 

and experience,  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Commissioners Court of Travis County hereby orders that 

the purchase of Recruitment services for an Interim CIO, is exempted from the requirements of 

the County Purchasing Act for competitive proposals pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOVT. CODE 

ANN., section 262.024(a)(4), as this contract is for professional services. 

 

 

 

Signed and entered this _____ day of _______________, 2012. 

 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Ron Davis      Sarah Eckhardt 

Commissioner, Precinct 1    Commissioner, Precinct 2 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Karen Huber      Margaret Gomez 

Commissioner, Precinct 3    Commissioner, Precinct 4 

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Ion Clyde

From: Steven Manilla
Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2012 1:01 PM
To: Cyd Grimes
Cc: Joe Harlow; Lori Clyde; Diane Poirot; Danny Hobby; Roger Jefferies; Leslie Browder;

Susan Spataro; Sherri Fleming
Subject: RE: Purchasing and OPT Interim ClO Search Recommendation to Court FINAL

I’ve revised it to include Leslie’s recommended change. Let’s launch it.

May 31, 2012

MEMORANDUM TO: Members of the Commissioners Court

FROM: Operational Planning Team

Subject: Interim Chief Information Officer (ClO)

With reference to an Operational Planning Team (OPT) meeting held on May 30,
2012, the members present along with the Purchasing Agent and the County
Auditor discussed two alternatives for our next step towards filling an Interim
CIO position if the Court agrees to a proposed scope of services modification
that will be presented separately by Purchasing.

Alternative #1 was recommended by Purchasing and it includes utilizing the
skills and knowledge of the highest qualified firm that will be doing the IT
assessment to identify an appropriate candidate. The firm would be asked for
this assistance after it has had the opportunity to partially evaluate our current
IT system and customer needs. In that way the firm will have keener insight into
what skills and experience will be needed from the interim dO. Purchasing
suggested that this would save time and money.

Alternative #2 is recommended by the OPT and it includes working with
Purchasing and/or HRMD to immediately fill the interim ClO position. The team
felt the Interim ClO should assist with negotiating the scope and fees for the
assessment firm’s contract. This would encourage accountability on the part of
the Interim ClO and it would provide “checks and balances”. The interim ClO
would become another key stakeholder in the process and could be more
objective if independent of the assessment consultant. The interim ClO should
fairly quickly encounter internal issues that need to be addressed as part of the
assessment.

1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch, 4.6663; Marvin Brice CPPB 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contracts for the provision of Air 
Medical Response Coverage for the Circuit of Americas Race Track. 

A.  Contract No.  PS120222SH, Circuit of the Americas, LLC,  

B.  Contract No. PS120231SH, Texas AirLife, Inc.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing did not  
participate in contract negotiations. 

The Circuit of the Americas LLC., (COTA) will provide Air Medical 
Coverage for events held at the Circuit of Americas race track located at 
12700 ½ Farm and Market Road 812 in Travis County through contracts 
between COTA and Travis County and between Travis County and 
Texas AirLife, Inc., (AirLife) 

A. Contract No. PS120222SH with COTA will use STAR Flight aircraft to 
provide part of the emergency response for events at the Circuit of 
Americas race track. STAR Flight will provide one aircraft and one team 
consisting of a pilot and two paramedics who will be based at the race 
track.  COTA will pay Travis County an hourly rate of $375.00 per 
aircraft and team for the hours available to provide services each day 
plus two additional hours for “pre-flight” check and post event activities.   

B.  Contract No. PS120231SH with AirLife, will provide the remaining 
necessary stand-by Air Medical Coverage.  AirLife will provide an 
additional aircraft and team who will be based not more than ten minutes 
response time from the race track.  Travis County will pay AirLife at a 
rate of $375.00 per aircraft team for stand-by services provided. 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 14



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 

COTA will in-turn reimburse Travis County $375.00 per hour for Stand-
by Services provided by AirLife under the above referenced contract. 

Patient transport to an appropriate medical facility and the related 
medical expenses will be billed separately to the patient by Travis 
County.  COTA will have no financial responsibility for these expenses. 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  Cost Reimbursement at $375/per hour 
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period:  September 1, 2012 to December 31, 2015 

 
 Funding Information: 

     Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  N/A      

          Funding Account(s):  011-5910-602-6011 

          Comments:  On an as needed basis      

 
 
 
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



RECEIVED
EMERGENCY SERVICIESV!SCOUNT’’

DANNY HOBBY, COUNTY EXECVIM 23 MilD: L42
P.O. Box 1748

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78767 PURHf%!
(512)854-4416, FAX(512) 854-4786 OFF

MEMORANDUM

To: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent ChiefMedical Examiner
Dr .David Dolinak

From: Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Servic STA Flih
Casey Ping rogram

- DirectorDate: May23, 2012

Subject: Air Medical Coverage Agreement with Texas AirLife, Inc.

Please accept this written request to post for Court action an agreement regarding an Air Medical
Coverage Agreement between Travis County and Texas Airlife, Inc. for County to use as a
subcontractor to provide air medical response for events at the Circuit of the Americas
(“COTA”) race track. COTA will be using STAR Flight aircraft and another stand-by services
helicopter provided by AirLife to provide part of the emergency response for events at the
Circuit ofAmericas race track which is located at 12700 ‘/2 Farm and Market Road 812 in Travis
County, Texas.

STAR Flight will provide one aircraft and one team of a pilot and two paramedics who will be
based at the race track. AirLife will provide another aircraft and team who will be based not
more than ten minutes response time from the race track.

STAR Flight plans on using the third aircraft and additional crew for this Agreement while
maintaining normal scheduling of operations for the other two aircraft and crews.

The Agreement is for forty months, unless one of the parties terminates it sooner. After the term,
the parties can renew the Agreement or negotiate another agreement for additional terms.

The Travis County Attorney’s Office, Risk Management and your office staff have been
involved to include those provisions that will protect the County regarding insurance coverage
and general obligations of all parties in the Agreement.

STAR Flight staff and Emergency Services recommend approval of the Agreement. Staff feels
the Agreement assists in providing the best critical care service to the patient involved in the
transport.

COTA will pay County an hourly rate of $375.00 per aircraft and team for the hours while
available to provide services each day plus two additional hours for the “pre-flight” check and

\ .

ks&jtS

Emergency Management
Pete ifaidwin, Emergency

Mgmt. C’oordinatôr

Fire Marshal
Hershel Lee

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



post event activities. This rate covers expenses in providing the service in staff (salaries and
overtime) and aircraft (flight and fuel). The County will then pay AirLife for the hours AirLife
provides Stand-by Services.

Patient transport to an appropriate medical facility and the related medical expenses will be
billed separately to the patient by the County or AirLife as we normally do with our other
transports. COTA will have no financial responsibility for these expenses.

You will find attached the Agreement.

Thank you for your assistance in this request.

Cc: Marvin Brice, Purchasing Office
Barbara Wilson, County Attorney’s Office
Bill Derryberry, PBO
Tracy LeBlanc, Auditor’s Office

Justice & Public Safety Division — Page 2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



41/

j.

:,

PS120222SH
PAGE 1 OF 78

AIR MEDICAL COVERAGE AGREEMENT

This Air Medical Coverage Agreement is made by the following parties: Circuit of the
Americas, LLC, 301 Congress Ave., Ste. 220, Austin, TX 78701 and Travis County, a political
subdivision of Texas.

Recitals

COTA operates or will operate a Track in Travis County, Texas.

To facilitate the delivery of efficient, effective and quality air medical coverage at the
Track, COTA desires to retain County to provide air medical coverage for the Track, and
County desires to provide this air medical coverage.

Agreement

In consideration of the mutual agreements set out below, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
Definitions

1.1 “Agreement” means this Air Medical Coverage Agreement between Circuit of the
Americas, LLC, and Travis County.

1.2
Austin, TX 78701

“COTA” means Circuit of the Americas, LLC; 301 Congress Ave., Ste. 220;

breach.

1.3 “County” means Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas.

1.4 “Cure Period” means ten (10) County working days from the date of the notice of

1.5 “Head Team Member” means the Team Member designated by County to be
responsible for management of patient care services provided by the Team at the Track.

1.6 “Initial Term” means the forty (40) months, beginning on September 1, 2012 and
ending on December 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated.

facility.
1.7 “Patients” means individuals who require transport from the Track to a medical

1.8 “Renewal Term” means the extension of this Agreement at the end of a term for
one or more successive terms for the period of time to which the parties agree.

1.0 In this Agreement,

1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 2 OF 78

1.9 “Services” refers to the air medical coverage and means:

1.9.1 performing the pre-event preparation activities and post-event activities
necessary to this coverage which COTA acknowledges will be one hour
before and one hour after the on-site times requested by COTA,

1.9.2 basing one aircraft and one Team at the Track location for the hours and
dates requested by COTA, and

1.9.3 the Team providing medical assistance to Patients at that location and
while being transported to an appropriate medical facility.

1.10 “Stand-by Services” refers to the provision of a second dedicated aircraft and
means County subcontracting with another air medical provider that uses
helicopters for transport to do the following:

1.10.1 provide one aircraft and one Team that will be based at a location not
more than ten minutes (10) minutes response time from the Track for the
hours and dates during which COTA has requested Services, and

1.10.2 move its base to the Track while the STAR Flight aircraft is transporting a
Patient and as otherwise needed, and

1.10.3 provide medical assistance to Patients while at the Track, and

1.10.4 perform the pre-event preparation activities and post-event activities
necessary to this coverage which COTA acknowledges will be one hour
before and one hour after the stand-by times requested by COTA,

1.11 “Team” means one pilot and two paramedics designated to provide air medical
coverage under this Agreement.

1.12 “Team Member” means each of the individuals who comprise the Team.”

1.13 “Track” means the Circuit of the Americas race track located at or near 1 2700 V2
Farm and Market Road 812 in Travis County, Texas and operated by COTA.

ARTICLE II
County ‘s and COTA ‘s General Obligations

2.1 STAR Flight’s Team.

2.1.1 County. This Agreement is entered into for the purposes of securing the Services
from County through STAR Flight at the times and in the manner provided for in
this Agreement and of securing the Stand-by Services at the times and in the
manner provided in this Agreement through an air medical provider that is a

2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 3 OF 78

subcontractor of County. COTA acknowledges that unforeseeable and unlikely
circumstances might affect County’s ability to provide Services through STAR
Flight and, in this event, it is acceptable to COTA for County to provide both
Services and Stand-by Services through its subcontractor for Stand-by Services.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, County shall
ensure that Services and Stand-by Services are provided through either STAR
Flight, its subcontractor or another third party subcontractor at the times and in
the manner provided for in this Agreement.

2.1.2 County shall provide Team Members who at all times keep and maintain in good
standing a valid license to provide the services for which they are responsible
under this Agreement and perform the Services in accordance with standards
applicable to that Team Member’s field of expertise. County shall require its
subcontractor to provide Team Members who at all times keep and maintain in
good standing a valid license to provide the services for which they are
responsible under this Agreement and perform the Stand-by Services in
accordance with standards applicable to that Team Member’s field of expertise.

2.1.3 If a scheduled event is delayed or extended due to factors beyond the control of
COTA, including but not limited to inclement weather, and the event is held on
days other than the scheduled event days or on additional days, County shall
provide Services and Stand-by Services for each additional day of the event.

2.1.4 County is not required to provide any Service or Stand-by Service that would not
comply with applicable Federal Aviation Administration regulations. Nothing in
this Agreement requires County to provide Services or Stand-by Services in
violation of any Federal Aviation Administration regulation.

2.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. County shall at all times in the performance of the
Services comply with all applicable federal, state and local statutes and regulations.

2.3 No Agency Relationship. County does not have the right or authority to enter into any
contract in the name of COTA or otherwise bind COTA in any way without the express
written consent of COTA.

2.4 Non-Discrimination. County shall not discriminate against any applicant for a position as
a Team Member for sub-contractor or employment status on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex, age, national origin or disability.

2.5 Non-Exclusive Nature of the Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision of this
Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall be non-exclusive, and COTA reserves
the right to retain third parties to provide air medical coverage at the Site during the Term
of this Agreement. If COTA exercises its right to retain third parties to provide air
medical coverage, COTA shall provide separate helipads or other appropriate landing
areas for each air medical coverage provider. County reserves the right to provide air
medical coverage to third parties at any other locations during the Term, provided

3

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 4 OF 78

however that County’s shall not obligate the aircraft and Team Members based at the
Track to provide air medical coverage to third parties for missions that do not originate at
the Track on the dates and during the hours that COTA has requested that County provide
Services for events at the Track.

2.6 Removal from Service. Upon request by COTA, County shall remove, and in its
subcontract, require its subcontractor to remove, from providing Services any Team
Member who (1) is convicted of a felony, (2) has a guardian or trustee of his or her
person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, (3) becomes disabled so as to be
unable to perform the duties required by this Agreement, (4) has any license(s) required
to perform the Services either suspended, or revoked, (5) fails to comply with any of the
material terms and conditions of this Agreement after being given notice of that failure
and a reasonable opportunity to comply, or (6) is disruptive or unable to work with others
in performing Service. In addition to removing that Team Member, County shall obtain,
and in its subcontract, require its subcontractor to obtain, at its cost and expense, a
substitute for the removed Team Member or otherwise demonstrate its capabilities for
continued coverage and Services required by this Agreement.

ARTICLE III
County’s Obligations

3.1 Designation and Duties of Head Team Member. Subject to the approval of COTA,
County agrees to designate a Team Member as Head Team Member. The parties agree
that the STAR Flight Program Director or his/her designee shall serve as the initial Head
Team Member.

3.2 Services and Stand-by Services. During this Agreement, County shall provide Services
for the Track at all times that are requested by COTA not less than three (3) months prior
to the dates Services are to be provided. County, through its subcontractor, shall provide
Stand-by Services at all times that are requested by COTA not less than three (3) months
prior to the dates Services are to be provided.

3.3 Contingent Timing. During this Agreement, County shall provide Services for the Track
at times that are contiguous to times that were requested by COTA not less than three (3)
months prior to the dates Services are to be provided if the additional times are required
as a result of factors beyond the control of COTA. County, through its subcontractor,
shall provide Stand-by Services at times that are contiguous to times that were requested
by COTA not less than three (3) months prior to the dates Services are to be provided if
the additional times are required as a result of factors beyond the control of COTA.

3.4 Names of Team Members. County will provide COTA with the names of the Team
Members it and its subcontractor intend to schedule for the minimum days needed four
(4) weeks before each such event. County will provide COTA with the names of the
Team Members it and its subcontractor intend to schedule for the contingent days within
twenty-four (24) hours after being notified of the contingent need.

4

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 5 OF 78

ARTICLE IV
COTA ‘s Obligations

4.1 Notification of Scheduling. COTA will notifSr County of a request for Services six (6)
months in advance of scheduled events. The notification shall be in writing and shall
include the dates for which the aircraft and Team Members are required for events,
noting the minimum number of days for which Services and Stand-by Services are
needed and estimating the additional number of days which might be needed on a
contingent basis. Not less than thirty (30) days before a scheduled event, COTA shall
notify County of the dates and times Services and Stand-by Services are to be provided
by County for the minimum and the times Services and Stand-by Services are to be
provided by County for any contingent days. Not less than twenty-four (24) hours before
additional contingent times are needed, COTA shall notify County of the dates and times
Services and Stand-by Services are to be provided by County for the Services and Stand
by Services are to be provided for any contingent days.

4.2 Training for Team Members. At its expense, COTA shall provide training for employees
who might be Team Members for both County and its subcontractor. This training shall
include at least the following types of information: familiarization with the Track
facilities and procedures, the Track incident command structure, safety procedures at the
Track applicable to Services, the applicable division of medical roles and responsibilities,
and any other Track related information needed by Team Members to perform Services.

4.3 Accidents and Injuries to Team Members. County will be responsible for any Track-
related accidents or injuries suffered by County Team Members as a result of its
negligence or willful misconduct. County will require its subcontractor to be responsible
for any Track-related accidents or injuries suffered by subcontractor’s Team Members as
a result of its negligence or willful misconduct. COTA shall be responsible for these
damages if they are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of COTA.

4.4 Notice of Events. COTA shall notify County of all events at the Track at least 30 days
before any event to verifr whether any supplemental or alternative insurance is needed.

4.5 Insurance. COTA shall have, and require all temporary event promoters using the Track
for which Services under this Agreement to have, the required standard insurance at least
meeting the General Requirements in 4.5.1 and sufficient to cover the needs of COTA or
the temporary promoter, pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards
related to risks associated with COTA’ s operations at the Track. Depending on activities
in which COTA engages or any temporary event promoter engages, supplemental
insurance requirements or alternate insurance options may apply in addition to the
following:

4.5.1 General Requirements Ayplicable to All COTA’s Insurance. COTA
acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning insurance
requirements which are applicable to COTA during event for which
COTA requests Services or Stand-by services under this Agreement and

5

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 6 OF 78

agrees that COTA shall require all temporary event promoters using the
Track who are not eligible for COTA’s TULIP program (“non-TULIP
promoters”) to agree to these insurance requirements during any event for
which COTA requests Services under this Agreement:

4.5.1.1 COTA and these non-TULIP promoters shall maintain the
minimum types and limits of insurance indicated in 4.5.2
throughout the duration of the Agreement. This insurance must be
considered primary for all covered risks.

4.5.1.2 COTA and these non-TULIP promoters shall obtain insurance
written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M.
Best rating of B+ VIII or higher. If use of surplus carriers is
desired, these carriers are subject to County approval.

4.5.1.3 Prior to County commencing Services, COTA and these non-
TULIP promoters shall have the required insurance in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance written on the state
approved form and signed by the writing agent or carrier.

4.5.1.4 COTA shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse and
shall not permit its minimum limits of coverage to erode or
otherwise be reduced during any term of this Agreement. In its
agreements with these non-TULIP promoters, COTA shall require
them to agree not to allow any insurance required under their
agreement to be cancelled or lapse and not to permit their
minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced
during any term of this Agreement. COTA and these non-TULIP
promoters shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and
self-insured retention.

4.5.1.5 COTA shall submit the Certificate of Insurance to the Travis
County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days after (i)
execution of this Agreement by both parties or by (ii) the effective
date of this Agreement, whichever comes first. In its agreements
with these non-TULIP promoters, COTA shall require them to
submit the Certificate of their Insurance to the Travis County
Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days after (i) execution
of their agreement with COTA or by (ii) the effective date of any
agreement between COTA and such non-TULIP promoter,
whichever comes first. The Certificates of Insurance for both
COTA and these non-TULIP promoters must include the
following:

4.5.1.5.1 the Travis County contract number
4.5.1.5.2 all deductibles and self-insured retention

6

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 7 OF 78

4.5.1.5.3 an endorsement which names Travis County as
Additional Insured where its interest may appear

4.5.1.5.4 an expanded bodily injury definition
4.5.1.5.5 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for

all claims
4.5.1.5.6 a Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) endorsement
4.5.1.5.7 a Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form

420601) endorsement

4.5.1.6 Upon its request and without expense, County is entitled to receive
certified copies of policies and endorsements.

4.5.1.7 COTA acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance
requirements during any term of the Agreement and to require that
COTA and these temporary event promoters make reasonable
adjustments when the scope of its activities has changed or
expanded.

4.5.1.8 Insurance coverage specified in this Agreement is not intended and
will not be interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the
COTA or these temporary event promoters.

4.5.2 Specific Requirements. The following requirements apply to the activities
of COTA and all non-TULIP promoters using the Track for which
Services under this Agreement. COTA and these non-TULIP promoters
shall comply with the following insurance requirements:

4.5.2.1 Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

4.5.2.1.1 Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits
outlined in the Texas Workers’ Compensation Act

4.5.2.1.2 Employers’ Liability limits are:
$250,000 bodily injury each accident
$250,000 bodily injury by disease

4.5.2.1.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

4.5.2.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance for both motorsports
events and motorsports facilities with customized motorsport policy language, an
expanded bodily injury definition

7

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222Sfl
PAGES OF 78

4.5.2.2.1 Minimum limits for Coverage Part A—Bodily Injury and
Property Damage:
$3,000,000* per occurrence for coverage Part A

4.5.2.2.2 Minimum limits for Coverage Part B—Personal Injury or
Advertisement related to slander, false arrest or similar
incidents:
$3,000,000* per occurrence for coverage Part B

4.5.2.2.3 Minimum limits for Coverage Part C—Medical Coverage
covering initial fees associated with minor injuries:
$5,000* per occurrence for coverage Part C

4.5.2.2.4 Policy aggregate for Coverage Parts A, B and C:
$10,000,000 policy aggregate

4.5.2.2.5 These policies shall include the following coverages:

Premises liability for permanent motorsports event
facilities;

Personal and advertising injury coverage;
Host liquor coverage;
Non-owned or hired automobile coverage;
Racing coverage for motorcross facilities;
Fireworks supplemental coverage, if applicable; and
Temporary motorsport event coverage, if applicable.

4.5.2.2.6 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

4.5.2.3 Excess Liability Insurance Policy that follows primary policy form

4.5.2.3.1 Minimum limits: $20,000,000

4.5.2.3.2 These policies shall apply to State of Texas and include
the following endorsements in favor of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

4.5.3 County will waive compliance with the requirements in 4.5.1 and 4.5.2 for
any temporary events promoters who are promoting events with an
attendance of 5,000 or less if these promoters obtain coverage under the
COTA Austin TULIP program as described in Exhibit C. This program

8

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S1J
PAGE 9 OF 78

can cover additional insured, owners and managers, lessors of premises,
sponsors and co-promoters.

ARTICLE V
Financial Arrangements

5.1 Services Cost. COTA shall pay County the amount invoiced at the rate of Three Hundred
Seventy Five Dollars and No Cents ($375.00) per hour for Services provided by the
County. The number of hours invoiced include the hours that COTA requested that the
aircraft be at the Track plus one (1) hour before the time COTA requested that the aircraft
arrive at the Track and one (1) hour after the end of the time that COTA requested that
the aircraft be at the Track or the time that COTA releases the aircraft to leave the Track,
whichever is later. COTA shall pay for the hours that County provides Services,
including the pre-event and preparation activities and post event activities even if no
other Services are provided, on the scheduled event days and for each additional day at
the hourly fees in section 5.1.

5.2 Stand-by Services Cost. COTA shall pay County the amount invoiced at the rate of
Three Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and No Cents ($375.00) per hour for Stand-by
Services provided by the County through its subcontractor. The number of hours
invoiced include the hours that COTA requested that the aircraft be available within a
thirty (30) minute response time plus one (1) hour before the time COTA requested that
the aircraft begin stand-by and one (1) hour after the end of the time that COTA
requested that the aircraft end stand-by or the time that COTA releases the aircraft,
whichever is later. COTA shall pay for the hours that County provides Stand-by
Services, including the pre-event and preparation activities and post event activities even
if no other Stand-by Services are provided, on the scheduled event days and for each
additional day at the hourly fees in section 5.1.

5.3 Timing of Invoices and Payment. County will invoice COTA by the 5th business day of
the month following the month in which Services were rendered and COTA will pay
these invoices on a monthly basis within thirty (30) days of receiving each invoice.

5.4 Other Expenses. Flight expenses associated with transfer from STAR Flight’s hanger or
crew quarters shall be included in the fee provided in Section 5.1. Medical expenses
related to Patient transport to an appropriate medical facility shall be billed separately by
County to the Patient, and COTA shall have no financial responsibility for these
expenses.

ARTICLE VI
Term and Termination;

6.1 Term. This Agreement shall be effective for forty (40) months, beginning on September
1, 2012 and ending on December 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated in accordance with
this Agreement.

9

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222811
PAGE 10 OF 78

6.2 Renewal. At the end of the Initial Term, upon mutual agreement of COTA and County,
this Agreement may be renewed for one or more successive terms. If the parties fail to
agree on a renewal term, this Agreement terminates upon expiration of the then-current
term.

6.3 Termination without Cause. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, after
December 31, 2012, either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or
without cause, upon providing the other party with at least ninety (90) days written notice
of its intent to terminate the Agreement.

6.4 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time if the
other party engages in an act or omits doing anything that results in a material breach of
any material term or condition of this Agreement. In that event, the party electing to
terminate this Agreement shall provide the breaching party with written notice specifying
the nature of the breach. The breaching party then has the Cure Period to remedy the
breach or to present a mutually agreeable plan of correction designed to conform its
conduct to this Agreement. If corrective action is not taken within that time, that failure
allows the aggrieved party to terminate the Agreement at the conclusion of the Cure
Period.

6.5 Immediate Termination by COTA. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
COTA may terminate this Agreement immediately upon any of the following events:

6.5.1 Upon COTA ceasing operations of the Track;

6.5.2 Upon County’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors, County’s petition
for relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of debtors, or
upon the initiation of such proceedings against County if the same are not
dismissed within forty-five (45) days of service; or

6.5.3 Upon County’s failure to maintain continuous insurance coverage required to be
maintained by County under Section 7.1 herein.

6.6 Immediate Termination by County. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
County may terminate this Agreement immediately upon any of the following events:

6.6.1 Upon COTA ceasing operations of the Track; or

6.6.2 Upon COTA’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors, COTA’s petition for
relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of debtors, or upon
the initiation of such proceedings against COTA if the same are not dismissed
within forty-five (45) days of service.

6.6.3 Upon COTA’s failure to comply with section 8.8.1 herein.

10

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 11 OF 78

6.6.3 Upon COTA’s failure to maintain continuous insurance coverage required to be
maintained by COTA under Section 4.5 herein.

6.6.5 Upon COTA’s failure, in its agreements with its temporary promoters, to require
them to agree to maintain insurance coverage required to be maintained by them
under section 4.5 for the duration of their agreements with COTA.

6.7 Reporting. County will keep COTA apprised as follows:

6.7.1 County shall only allow any employee to be a Team Member who provides
Services at the Track if County has not received information concerning any
material restriction, suspension or revocation placed upon that employee’s license
related to the services to be provided by that employee as a Team Member.

6.7.2 County will notify COTA within ten (10) working days of being served with a
summons or other legal document alleging professional negligence, or other
injury arising from the Services of County or a Team Member at the Track.

6.7.3 County shall not allow any employee about whom County has received
information of any arrest, indictment or conviction for any offense other than a
misdemeanor or motor vehicle license infraction not involving alcohol or a
controlled substance to be a Team Member who provides Services at the Track.

6.8 Reporting. COTA will keep County apprised as follows:

6.8.1 COTA will notify County within ten (10) working days of the date it makes a
decision to close the Track; and

6.8.2 COTA will notify County within ten (10) working days of the date it receives
information concerning COTA’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors,
COTA’s petition for relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection
of debtors, or upon the initiation of such proceedings against COTA if the same
are not dismissed within forty-five (45) days of service.

6.9 Effect of Termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement, neither party has further
rights against, or obligations to, the other party except (i) with respect to any rights or
obligations accruing prior to the date and time of termination, including any payments
due to County hereunder, and (ii) any obligations, promises or agreements which
expressly extend beyond the termination.

6.10 Patient Lists and Records. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, to the extent
permitted under applicable law and to the extent available to COTA, COTA shall provide
to County and each Team Member (i) access to a list of its or his/her Patients who have
been seen or treated pursuant to this Agreement by County or Team Members and (ii)
copies of such Patients’ medical records.

11

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 12 OF 78

6.11 Proprietary Information. County agrees that upon termination of this Agreement, all
proprietary information of COTA in its customers, including but not limited to customer
lists, business processes, copyrighted items, software and related processes, diagnostics,
methodologies, formulas, works of authorship, submissions, customer information,
business plans and all business assets, tangible or intangible items which County or
Team Members become aware of during this Agreement (collectively, “COTA
Proprietary Information”), remain the sole and exclusive property of COTA, and County
shall not acquire any interest in the COTA Proprietary Information or right to use the
COTA Proprietary Information without the express written consent of COTA.

ARTICLE VII
Insurance

7.1 STAR Flight Insurance. Until October 1, 2012, County agrees to maintain insurance of
the categories and in the amounts specified in Exhibit A attached hereto (Travis County
EMS Summary of Aircraft Coverages) and represents that it has maintained similar
coverage in the past and at this time expects to maintain similar coverage in the future.
County shall provide COTA with a certificate or certificates of insurance certifying the
existence of all coverage related to the Services and County shall name COTA as an
additional insured on County’s aviation insurance policy.

ARTICLE VIII
Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 Notice. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to be
given upon the earlier of (i) actual delivery to the intended party or its agent, or (ii) upon
the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. Any such notice shall be delivered to
the respective addresses set out below or to such other address as a party shall specify in
the manner required by this Section. The respective addresses are:

If to COTA: Circuit of the Americas
301 Congress Ave., Ste. 220
Austin, TX 78701
Attn: Steve Sexton

If to County: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767-1748

With copies (certified or registered, not required) to:

Travis County
7800 Old Manor Road

12

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 13 OF 78

Austin, Texas 78724
Attn: Casey Ping
STAR Flight Program Director

And David Escamilla
Travis County Attorney
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
File: 260.583

8.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties and
supersedes all prior agreements, contracts and understandings, whether written or
otherwise, between the parties relating to the subject matter of it.

8.3 Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be legally invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of the Agreement remain in full
force and effect provided the fundamental rights and obligations remain reasonably
unaffected.

8.4 County. County is performing the Services and duties under this Agreement as an
independent contractor and not as an employee, agent, partner of, or joint venture with
COTA. County is responsible for determining the manner in which Services are provided
and insuring that Services are rendered in a manner consistent with this Agreement. No
Team Member providing Services is an employee of COTA. COTA does not have and
nothing in this Agreement may be construed as giving that degree of control or direction
on the part of COTA that creates an employer-employee relationship between COTA and
any of the Team Members. COTA shall not control or direct the practice of medicine or
transport. If a Team Member is considered to be exercising medical or aviation judgment
in the performance of the Services, the Team Member will employ his or her own means
and methods and exercise his or her own independent judgment in such instance; and in
that regard will not be subject to the control or direction of COTA with respect to the
means, methods or judgment so exercised by the Team Member.

8.5 Corporate Practice of Medicine. Nothing contained herein is intended to constitute the
use of a medical license or other health care-related license for the practice of medicine
by anyone other than a licensed physician, or other health care provider, such as nurses
and paramedics, or aid COTA or any other corporation to practice medicine when, in
fact, such corporation is not licensed to practice medicine.

8.6 Mediation. The parties firmly desire to resolve all disputes arising hereunder without
resort to litigation to protect their respective business reputations. Accordingly, any
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof,
shall first be submitted to mediation administered by a mutually acceptable mediator or
one appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with the Texas Civil
Practice and Remedies Code. Conclusions reached during such mediation shall be non
binding on the parties and shall be kept confidential by the parties to the greatest extent

13

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 14 OF 78

possible without contravening the Texas Public Information Act. No disclosure of the
mediation proceeding shall be made by the parties except as required by the law or as
necessary or appropriate to effectuate the terms thereof. This Section shall not prevent
either party from electing to terminate this Agreement in accordance with its termination
provisions or from pursuing all available legal remedies.

8.7 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into for the sole benefit of COTA
and County. Nothing contained herein or in the parties’ course of dealings may be
construed as conferring any third party beneficiary status on any person or entity not a
party to this Agreement.

8.8 Confidentiality; Disclosure of Patient Information.

8.8.1 COTA shall not request any exchange of protected health information (PHI), as
defined by the Health Information Privacy and Accountability Act (HIPAA). If
any PHI is required by COTA, before requesting the PHI, COTA shall execute
and deliver the HIPAA Business Associate Agreement— in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit B to the Travis County Attorney at 314 West ll Street,
Austin, Texas during regular County business hours.

8.8.2 County and COTA acknowledge that in connection with the performance of the
Services, County, COTA, and their respective employees, contractors and agents
may acquire and make use of certain trade secrets and confidential information of
the other which may include management reports, business or financial
information, internal memoranda, reports, customer lists, confidential technology,
and other materials, records and/or information of a proprietary nature
(“Confidential Information”). Therefore, to protect such Confidential
Information, subject to the Texas Public Information Act, County and COTA
agree that they and their respective employees, contractors and agents shall not
after the Effective Date of this Agreement use or disclose the other party’s
Confidential Information except as required in connection with the performance
of Services. Upon termination of this Agreement, subject to the Texas Public
Information Act, neither County nor COTA will take or retain, without prior
written authorization from the other, any Confidential Information of any kind
belonging to the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties may use
and retain such records as are necessary for purposes of medical malpractice
defense or as required by law.

8.9 Other Activities. It is agreed and understood by COTA that this Agreement shall not
prohibit County or Team Members from engaging in the private practice of medicine
and/or other personal or professional ventures.

8.10 Headings. The section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for
convenience of reference purposes only and do not affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

14

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 15 OF 78

8.12 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the state of Texas, without giving effect to its conflict of law provisions. All
Services are performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue in the case of any disputes shall
be in Travis County, Texas.

8.13 Amendment. This Agreement can be amended only by an instrument in writing signed
by both parties.

8.14 Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the express written
consent of the other party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and COTA have duly executed this Agreement as of
the dates set out beneath their respective signatures.

Travis County (“County”)

By:

Date:

Date:

Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge

CIRCUIT OF THE 7LC (“COTA”):

At

15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Exhibit A

Star Flight Insurance

16

PS120222sH
PAGE 16 OF 78

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



0
0

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



I,
,

C
l)

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 20 OF 78

23

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



.
‘

I.
’

0C
M

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



I.
)

,
-i

-
.

.
,
,

C
l)

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 23 OF 78

26

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



S -

S
£

/

A

‘4 ‘4

4,, tj44

4.

A

PS120222SH
PAGE 25 OF 78

18

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 26 OF 78

Exhibit B

Business Associate Agreement

This Business Associate Agreement is made by the following parties: Circuit of the Americas,
LLC, 301 Congress Ave., Ste. 220, Austin, TX 78701 (“COTA”) and Travis County, a political
subdivision of Texas (“County”) pursuant to an Airmedical Coverage Agreement between them.

A. HIPAA Dominance. The purpose of this agreement is to satisfy the standards and requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), codified at 45 C.F.R. parts 160 and
164 and the federal Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act codified at 42
U.S.C. Sections 17921-17953, as may be amended from time to time (“HITECH”). Capitalized terms
which are not defined shall have the meaning set forth in HIIAA or HITECH as applicable. In the event
of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of any other agreement between the Parties and this
language, this language controls. This language is required by HIPAA and HITECH. The parties
acknowledge and agree that, beginning with the effective dates under HIPAA and HITECH, COTA will
comply with its obligations under this agreement and with all obligations of a business associate under
HIPAA, HITECH and any implementing regulations, as they exist at the time this agreement is executed
and as they are amended from time to time, for so long as this agreement is in place. To the extent that
COTA receives, processes or creates information which constitutes Protected Health Information (“PHI”),
COTA is a “Business Associate” who is directly subject to and must independently comply with the
business associate provisions of HIPAA and HITECH notwithstanding the provisions contained in this
agreement.

B. Protected Health Information. For purposes of these obligations PHI means all PHI in COTA’s
possession or under its control (e.g., agents) and all PHI collected, created or received by COTA or its
agents on pursuant to this agreement.

C. Employees. COTA agrees to instruct its employees and temporary agency employees regarding
the confidentiality, privacy and security of PHI. COTA shall not disclose to its personnel or permit them
to access, view, obtain, copy, review or use any PHI that is not necessary to their services to County.
COTA agrees to maintain performance standards in accordance with its policies and procedures,
including disciplinary actions, with respect to wrongful access to, copying, viewing, misuse or disclosure
of PHI.

D. Agents and Subcontractors. COTA shall ensure its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) (if
agents or subcontractors are permitted) are advised in writing of COTA’s obligations with respect to PHI.
COTA shall require that the permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) agree in writing to the restrictions
and obligations required by HIPAA. COTA also shall require its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s)
to agree in writing to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all County PHI. COTA agrees to make a list of such
agents and subcontractors available to County upon request.

E. Permissible Uses of PHI.
1. Using and Disclosing PHI. COTA may use or disclose PHI only as permitted by HIPAA
including management and administration of COTA, use of PHI as required by law, and use of PHI as
necessary to perform services pursuant to this Agreement.
2. Handling PHI. COTA further agrees to return or destroy any PHI that is erroneously shared or
delivered to COTA.

17

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 27 OF 78

3. Minimum Necessary. COTA is permitted to access and use the minimum necessary PHI to the
extent required to perform its duties under this Agreement.
4. COTA’s Internal Management Uses of PHI. COTA may use PHI for management and
administration of COTA.
5. COTA Use for Own Purposes. COTA agrees not to use data that identifies County or PHI for its
own purposes or for the benefit of its other customers, without County’s prior written consent.

F. Security, Reporting and Recordkeeping.
1. Safeguards. COTA agrees to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical
safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all PHI. COTA agrees to implement
reasonable electronic security practices for County PHI which is transmitted, stored, received, or used in
electronic form.
2. Reporting. COTA will promptly report any actual or suspected privacy or security violations
made by its employees and/or agents to County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official and will
cooperate with County in the investigation of these incidents. Furthermore, COTA will (i) promptly
report to County any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by this HIPAA and! or HITECH language;
(ii) any successful security incident of which COTA becomes aware; and (iii) in summary form, upon
request of County, any unsuccessful security incident of which COTA becomes aware. If the definition
of “Security Incident” in the HIPAA regulation is modified to remove the requirement for reporting
“unsuccessful” security incidents, section (iii) above shall no longer apply as of the effective date of such
regulation modification.
3. Recordkeeping. COTA agrees to implement an appropriate record keeping process to enable it to
comply with HIPAA.
4. Following the discovery of a breach as defined in HITECH or HIPAA, COTA shall notify, in
writing, County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official within twenty-four (24) hours of any suspected
or actual Security Incident or breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or
electronic PHI (“ePHI”). The notice shall include, to the best extent reasonably possible, the identification
of each individual who’s unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to
have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed during the breach.
5. Mitigation. COTA agrees to mitigate any harmful effect that is known to COTA, including
known to its employees/agents / subcontractors, of a use or disclosure of PHI by COTA in violation of the
requirements of this Agreement.

G. Patient Rights With Respect To PHI.
1. COTA is advised that under HIPAA patients have the right to review their PHI; amend their
health records; request an accounting of disclosures of PHI and request restrictions on the use and
disclosure of PHI.
2. Notice of Patient Contact. COTA shall promptly notify the privacy officer of County if a patient
contacts COTA in connection with the patient’s PHI.
3. Assistance. To assist County in complying with HIPAA, COTA shall, at any time during this
Agreement, make County PHI in its possession or under its control available to County within five (5)
business days of a County request.
4. Electronic Health Records Related to Treatment, Payment, or Operations. In the case of a direct
request for an accounting from an individual to COTA related to treatment, payment or operations
disclosures through electronic health records, COTA shall provide such accounting to the individual in
accordance with the applicable effective date of Section 13405(c) of HITECH. COTA shall document
such disclosures and provide County notice of the disclosure.

H. Notice of Legal Contact. If permitted by law or court order, COTA shall notify County in writing
of a disclosure request prior to disclosing County PHI if such disclosure is required by law or court order.

18

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 28 OF 78

I. Amendment. Upon enactment of any law, regulation, court decision or relevant government
publication andlor interpretive policy affecting the use or disclosure of PHI, the parties will negotiate in
good faith to amend this Agreement as necessary to comply with same.

J. Access for Audit. COTA shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use
and disclosure of any PHI available to authorized government investigators for purposes of determining
COTA’s and County’s compliance with the H1PAA.

K. Termination of Relationship for Failure to Comply.
1. Immediate Termination and Cure. If COTA has violated a material requirement related to
HIPAA, County may immediately terminate its relationship with COTA upon written notice to COTA
specifiing in detail the alleged violation without damages or liability to COTA.

2. PHI Obligations upon Termination or Expiration. COTA shall return (and not retain any copies
of) all PHI in its possession or under its control as soon as possible (in no event more than twenty (20)
business days) after the terminationlexpiration of this Agreement. If it is not feasible for COTA to return
PHI, then COTA shall notifS’ County of the reasons for being unable to return PHI in writing and must, at
a minimum, maintain PHI in confidence as required by this Agreement and HIPAA for so long as the
County PHI exists in COTA’s possession. COTA shall not transfer possession of County PHI without
prior written approval of County. If at any time COTA determines it is unable to protect County PHI,
COTA shall destroy all County PHI and all copies and maintain proof of such destruction.

Travis County (“County”)

By:

Date:

Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge

CIRCUIT OF THE AMERICAS, LLC (“COTA”):

Date: A44-f

19

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
P.’(;I: 2) OF 78

1xIiihit C

(()T.\s Ii ILII) Insurance

20

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE

PS120222SH
PAGE 30 OF 78

DISCLOSURE OF PREMIUM AND FEDERAL PARTICIPATION

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act establishes a program within the Department of the Treasury, under which the federal
government shares, with the insurance industry, the risk of loss from future terrorist attacks. The Act applies when the
Secretary of the Treasury certifies that an event meets the definition of an act of terrorism. The Act provides that, to be
certified, an act of terrorism must cause losses of at least five million dollars and must have been committed by an
individual or individuals as a part of an effort to coerce the government or population of the United States.

In accordance with the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we are required to offer you coverage for losses resulting from an
act of terrorism that is certified under the federal program as an act of terrorism. The policy’s other provisions will still
apply to such an act

DISCLOSURE OF PREMIUM

The premium for terrorism coverage is $ Included.

DISCLOSURE OF FEDERAL PARTICIPATION IN PAYMENT OF TERRORISM LOSSES

The United States Government, Department of the Treasury, will pay a share of terrorism losses insured under the federal
program. The federal share equals 85% of that portion of the amount of such insured losses that exceeds the applicable
insurer retention.

Nationwide

NW 26654 0112008

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE31 0F78

NATIONWIDE MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY

Certificate of Insurance Common Declarations
This Certificate of Insurance is issued to the Enrolled Member

of the Sports, Leisure and Entertainment Risk Purchasing Group.

In return for the payment of premium we agree to provide the Enrolled Member insurance, subject to all the terms
and conditions of policy number MAS 51941 issued to the Sports, Leisure and Entertainment Risk Purchasing
Group, except as modified by this certificate including the forms and endorsements made a part of this
certificate.

Certificate Number: —... —

Enrolled Member:

Mailing Address: Ii
H It.

Business Description: Tenant users of L...
Coverage Period:

From 12:01 am on
- to 12:01 am on

_______________

The coverages provided are indicated as follows:

Included Not Included
Commercial General Liability X
Hired Auto and Employers’ Nonownership Liability X

Total Premium As submitted
*Premium earned at inception See SRPG26148

Form(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this certificate at time of issue*:
3RPG17348(12/02) lLOOl7(1 1/98) CAS3228
SRPGOO2I (09108) ILO 168(09108) 1L0275(09I07)
*Omits applicable forms and endorsements If shown on specific Coverage Part/Coverage Form Declarations.
In return for the payment of premium and subject to all the terms of the certificate and its corresponding policy, we agree
to provide the insurance as stated.

#LLJ
Authorized Representative

**NOTICE TO TEXAS INSUREDS: The Insurer for the purchasing group may not be subject to all the insurance laws and
regulations of the State of Texas.

SRPGOIO3(09108)
1L0985(01/08)

SRPG26148(09108)

SRPG 100 09/08

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 32 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 11 1H]flr DECLARATIONS EXTENSION

With respect to SRPG100, Certificate of insurance Common Declarations, and wherever else it may appear, the enrolled
member, coverage period and total premium are amended to read as follows:

Enrolled Member:
Those enrolled members whose names are on file with the company and for which the appropriate premium has been paid
and have been endorsed.

Coveraae Period: 3/24112 —4/24/13
Each enrolled member’s effective date is the later of the requested effective date and the date the enrollment form and
premium payment are received and approved by the program administrator and is in effect for the period of time specified
for the event. If the event continues past 12:01 am, such continuation shall be considered as the event date. The event
includes set up and break down that occurs no more than 24 hours prior to the event and 24 hours after the event.

Total Premium:
The premium rate, per single event (up to 10 consecutive days) is based on the total attendance.

SRPG17348 12(02

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



POUCY NUMBER:

PS120222SH
PAGE 33 OF 78

INTERUNE
1100171198

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

All Coverage Parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions.

A. Cancellation
1. The first Named Insured shown in the

Declarations may cancel this policy by mailing or
delivering to us advance written notice of
cancellation.

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or
delivering to the first Named Insured written
notice of cancellation at least:
a. 10 days before the effective date of

cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment of
premium; or

b. 30 days before the effective date of
cancellation if we cancel for any other
reason.

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first
Named Insured’s last mailing address known to
us.

4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective date
of cancellation. The policy period will end on that
date.

5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be less
than pro rata. The cancellation will be effective
even if we have not made or offered a refund.

6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be
sufficient proof of notice.

B. Changes

This policy contains all the agreements between you
and us concerning the insurance afforded. The first
Named Insured shown in the Declarations is
authorized to make changes in the terms of this
policy with our consent. This policy’s terms can be
amended or waived only by endorsement issued by
us and made a part of this policy.

C. Examination Of Your Books And Records
We may examine and audit your books and re-cords
as they relate to this policy at any time during the
policy period and up to three years after-ward.

D. Inspections And Surveys
1. We have the iight to:

a. Make inspections and surveys at any time;

b. Give you reports on the conditions we find;
and

c. Recommend changes.
2. We are not obligated to make any inspections,

surveys, reports or recommendations and any
such actions we do undertake relate only to
insurability and the premiums to be charged. We
do not make safety inspections. We do not
undertake to perform the duty of any person or
organization to provide for the health or safety of
workers or the public. And we do not warrant that
conditions:

a. Are safe or healthful; or
b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or

standards.
3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply not

only to us, but also to any rating, advisory, rate
service or similar organization which makes
insurance inspections, surveys, reports or
recommendations.

4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply to
any inspections, surveys, reports or
recommendations we may make relative to
certification, under state or municipal statutes,
ordinances or regulations, of boilers, pressure
vessels or elevators.

E. Premiums

The first Named Insured shown In the Declarations:
1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums;

and

2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we
pay.

F. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This
Policy

Your rights and duties under this policy may not be
transferred without our written consent except in the
case of death of an indMdual named insured.
If you die, your rights and duties will be transferred to
your legal representative but only while acting within
the scope of duties as your legal representative. Until
your legal representative is appointed, anyone having
proper temporary custody of your property will have
your rights and duties but only with respect to that
property.

1100171198 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, lnc, 1998 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 34 OF 78

n
Nationwde

Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company
Nationwide Mutual Fire Insurance Company
Nationwide Property and Casualty Insurance Company
Home Office: Columbus, Ohio 43215-2220

POLICY NUMBER:

MANDATORY ENDORSEMENT

POLICYHOLDER MEMBERSHIP
IN ThE COMPANY

(Applicable Only in the Nationwide Mutual Insurance
Company or the Nationwide Mutual Fire Insurance
Company in Al! States Except Those Specifically
Provided For)

Because this policy is issued by a mutual insurance
company, you are a member of the company while this
or any other policy is in force. While a member you are
entitled to a vote only - either in person or by proxy - at
meetings of the company. You are entitled to any
dividends which are declared by the Board of Directors
and are applicable to coverages in your policy.

The annual meeting of the members of the company
issuing your policy (the company is indicated on the
Declarations Page) will be held at the Nationwide Plaza
in Columbus, Ohio, on the first Thursday of April. The
time of the meeting for the Nationwide Mutual Fire
Insurance Company is 9:30 A.M. and the time of the
meeting for the Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company
is 10:00 AM. We WI!! mail notice of any change in
meeting dates, times or place to you at your address last
known to us at least ten days prior to the rescheduled
meeting date.

This policy is non-assessable, meaning that you are not
subject to any assessment beyond the premiums we
require for each policy term.

POLICYHOLDER MEMBERSHIP
IN THE COMPANY

(Applicable Only in the Nationwide Mutual Insurance
Company or the Nationwide Mutual Fire Insurance
Company When This Policy is Issued in The State of
Texas)

1. MUTUALITY - MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING
NOTICE. You are notified that by virtue of this policy
you are a member of the Nationwide Mutual Insurance
Company of Columbus, Ohio or the Nationwide Mutual
Fire Insurance Company of Columbus, Ohio as shown
on the Declarations Page of this Policy, and you are
entitled, as is lawfully provided in the charter,
constitution, or by-laws to only one vote regardless of
the number of policies owned either in person or by
proxy, in any or all meetings of the company. The
annual meetings are held at the Home Office at
Columbus, Ohio, on the first Thursday of April, in each
year, at 9:30 A.M. for the Nationwide Mutual Fire
Insurance Company and 10:00 A.M. of the same day for
the Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company.

2. MUTUALS - PARTICIPATION CLAUSE WITHOUT
CONTINGENT UABIUTY. No Contingent Uability This
policy is non-assessable. You are a member of the
company and shall participate, to the extent arid upon
the conditions fixed and determined by the Board of
Directors in the distribution of dMdends so fixed and
determined provided such determinations are in
accordance with the provisions of the Texas Insurance
Code and other applicable law, which includes the rules
and regulations of the State Board of Insurance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company, Nationwide Mutual Fire Insurance Company or
Nationwide Property and Casualty Insurance Company, whichever is the issuing company, as designated on the
Declarations, has caused this policy to be signed by its President and Secretary at Columbus, Ohio, and countersigned by
a duly authorized representative of the company.

ATTEST:

-md C?.
Secretary President

CAS 3228

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS1ZO222SH
PAGE 35 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE CERTIFICATE. PLEASE READ iT CAREFULLY.

CHANGES
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

All Liability Coverages

The word policy is replaced with the word certificate.
The term first Named Insured is replaced with Named Insured.
Enrolled Member is also known as Named Insured.

SRPGOIO3 09/08

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 36 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EARNED PREMIUM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES

The following is in effect only when indicated by X

______

Premium fully earned at inception

_______

Premium fully earned at inception

__________

(Percentage of Policy Term Premium)

_______

Premium fully earned as follows:

% of total premium in the event of cancellation prior to

Total policy premium is fully earned in the event of cancellation after

____________________

X Event premiums

The following premiums apply to each category of event indicated and are fully earned as of the beginning of
each event:

EVENT PREMIUM PER EVENT
As submitted and on file with the company As quoted and on file with the

company

SRPG26148 09108

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 37 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 SRPG 00 21 0908

ThIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION
ENDORSEMENT

(Broad Form)

This endorsement modules insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
HIRED AUTO AND EMPLOYERS’ NONOWNERSHIP LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

1. The insurance does not apply:
A.

(1) With respect to which an “insured” under the
policy is also an insured under a nuclear
energy liability policy issued by Nuclear
Energy Liability Insurance Association,
Mutual Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters,
Nuclear Insurance Association of Canada or
any of their successors, or would be an
insured under any such policy but for its
termination upon exhaustion of its limit of
liability; or

(2) Resulting from the “hazardous properties” of
“nuclear material” and with respect to which
(a) any person or organization is required to
maintain financial protection pursuant to the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or any law
amendatory thereof, or (b) the “insured” is, or
had this policy not been issued would be,
entitled to indemnity from the United States
of America, or any agency thereof, under any
agreement entered into by the United States
of America, or any agency thereof, with any
person or organization.

B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to
expenses incurred with respect to “bodily injury”
resulting from the “hazardous properties” of
“nuclear material” and arising out of the operation
of a “nuclear facility” by any person or
organization.

C. Under any Liability Coverage, to “bodily injury” or
“property damage” resulting from “hazardous
properties” of “nuclear material”, if:
(1) The “nuclear material” (a) is at any “nuclear

facility” owned by, or operated by or on
behalf of, an “insured” or (b) has been
discharged or dispersed therefrom;

(2) The “nuclear material” is contained in “spent
fuel” or “waste” at any time possessed,
handled, used, processed, stored,
transported or disposed of, by or on behalf of
an “insured”; or

(3) The “bodily injury” or “property damage”
arises out of the furnishing by an “insured” of
services, materials, parts or equipment in
connection with the planning, constwction,
maintenance, operation or use of any
“nudear facility”, but if such facility is located
within the United States of America, its
territories or possessions or Canada, this
exclusion (3) applies only to “property
damage” to such “nuclear facility” and any
property thereat.

2. As used in this endorsement:
“Hazardous properties” includes radioactive, toxic or
explosive properties.
“Nudear material” means “source material”, “special
nuclear material” or “by-product material”.

Under any Liability Coverage, to “bodily injury” or
“property damage”:

SRPG 00 21 0908 Includes copyrighted material of ISO Properties, Inc. with Page 1 of 2
its permission.

Copyright, ISO Properties, Inc., 2007

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS12OZ22Sjj
PAGE 38 OF 78

“Source material”, “special nudear materiar, and
“by-product material” have the meanings given them
in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any law
amendatory thereof.

“Spent fuel” means any fuel element or fuel
component, solid or liquid, which has been used or
ex-posed to radiation in a “nuclear reactor”.

“Waste” means any waste material (a) containing
“by-product material” other than the tailings or wastes
produced by the extraction or concentration of
uranium or thorium from any ore processed primarily
for its “source material” content, and {b) resulting
from the operation by any person or organization of
any “nuclear facility” included under the first two
paragraphs of the definition of “nuclear facility”.

“Nuclear facility” means:

(a) Any “nuclear reactor”;

(b) Any equipment or device designed or used
for (1) separating the isotopes of uranium or
plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing “spent
fuel”, or (3) handling, processing or
packaging “waste”;

(c) Any equipment or device used for the
processing, fabricating or alloying of “special
nuclear material” if at any time the total
amount of such material in the custody of the
“Insured” at the premises where such
equipment or device is located consists of or
contains more than 25 grams of plutonium or
uranium 233 or any combination thereof, or
more than 250 grams of uranium 235;

(d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises or
place prepared or used for the storage or
disposal of “waste”;

and includes the site on which any of the foregoing is
located, all operations conducted on such site and all
premises used for such operations.

“Nuclear reactor” means any apparatus designed or
used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-supporting
chain reaction or to contain a critical mass of
fissionable material.

“Property damage” includes all forms of radioactive
contamination of property.

SRPG 00 21 0908 Includes copyrighted material of ISO Properties, Inc. with
its permission.

Copyright, ISO Properties, Inc., 2007

Page 20? 2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 39 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 INTERLINE
IL. 01680908

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

TEXAS CHANGES - DUTIES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Duties Condition.

We will notify the first Named Insured in writing of:

1. An initial offer to compromise or settle a claim
made or “suit” brought against any insured under
this coverage. The notice will be given not later
than the 10th day after the date on which the
offer is made.

2. Any settlement of a claim made or “suit brought
against the insured under this coverage. The
notice will be given not later than the 30th day
after the date of the settlement.

ILOI 680908 C) ISO Properties, Inc. 2007 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700

PS120222S11
PAGE 40 OF 78

INTERLINE
IL 02750907

z
ThIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

TEXAS CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND
NONRENEWAL PROVISIONS FOR CASUALTY LINES

AND COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICIES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL. LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA COVERAGE PART
EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES LIABILITY
FARM COVERAGE PART - FARM LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LiABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

This endorsement also modifies insurance provided under the following when written as part of a Commercial Package
Policy:

CAPITAL ASSETS PROGRAM (OUTPUT POLICY) COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART
CRIME AND FIDELITY COVERAGE PART
EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES LIABILITY
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART - FARM LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
FARM COVERAGE PART - LIVESTOCK COVERAGE FORM
FARM COVERAGE PART - MOBILE AGRICULTURAL MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT COVERAGE FORM
GLASS COVERAGE FORM
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Paragraph 2. of the Cancellation Common Policy
Condition is replaced by the following:

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or
delivering to the first Named Insured written
notice of cancellation, stating the reason for
cancellation, at least 10 days before the effective
date of cancellation.

However if this policy covers a condominium
association, and the condominium property contains
at least one residence or the condominium
declarations conform with the Texas Uniform
Condominium Act, then the notice of cancellation, as
described above, will be provided to the First Named
Insured 30 days before the effective date of
cancellation. We will also provide 30 days’ written
notice to each unitowner to whom we issued a
certificate or memorandum of insurance, by mailing
or delivering the notice to each last mailing address
known to us.

IL 02750907 © ISO Properties. Inc., 2006 Page 1 of 2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS12OZ2ZSH
PAGE 41 OF 78

The permissible reasons for cancellation are as
follows;

a. If this policy has been in effect for 60 days or
less, we may cancel for any reason except,
that under the provisions of the Texas
Insurance Code, we may not cancel this
policy solely because the policyholder is an
elected official.

b. If this policy has been in effect for more than
60 days, or if it is a renewal or continuation of
a policy issued by us, we may cancel only for
one or more of the following reasons:

(1) Fraud in obtaining coverage;

(2) Failure to pay premiums when due;

(3) An increase in hazard within the control
of the insured which would produce an
increase in rate;

(4) Loss of our reinsurance covering all or
part of the risk covered by the policy; or

(5) If we have been placed in supervision,
conservatorship or receivership and the
cancellation is approved or directed by
the supervisor, conservator or receiver.

8. The following condition is added and supersedes any
provision to the contrary:

NONRENEWAL

1. We may elect not to renew this policy except,
that under the provisions of the Texas Insurance
Code, we may not refuse to renew this policy
solely because the policyholder is an elected
official.

2. This Paragraph, 2., applies unless the policy
qualifies under Paragraph 3. below.

If we elect not to renew this policy, we may do so
by mailing or delivering to the first Named
Insured, at the last mailing address known to us,
written notice of nonrenewal, stating the reason
for nonrenewal, at least 60 days before the
expiration date. If notice is mailed or delivered
less than 60 days before the expiration date, this
policy will remain in effect until the 61st day after
the date on which the notice is mailed or
delivered. Earned premium for any period of
coverage that extends beyond the expiration date
will be computed pro rata based on the previous
year’s premium.

3. If this policy covers a condominium association,
and the condominium property contains at least
one residence or the condominium declarations
conform with the Texas Uniform Condominium
Act, then we will mail or deliver written notice of
nonrenewal, at least 30 days before the
expiration or anniversary date of the policy, to:

a. The first Named Insured; and

b. Each unitowner to whom we issued a
certificate or memorandum of insurance.

We will mail or deliver such notice to each last.
mailing address known to us.

4. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be
sufficient proof of notice.

5. The transfer of a policyholder between admitted
companies within the same insurance group is
not considered a refusal to renew.

(102750907 ‘ ISO Properties, Inc., 2006 Page 2 of 2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 42 OF 78 z

THIS ENDORSEMENT IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE PART OF YOUR POLICY IN RESPONSE TO THE
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS OF ThE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT. ThIS ENDORSEMENT

DOES NOT GRANT ANY COVERAGE OR CHANGE THE TERMS AND CONDI11ONS OF ANY COVERAGE
UNDER THE POLICY.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO TERRORISM RISK
INSURANCE ACT

SCHEDULE

Terrorism Premium (Certified Acts) $0
This premium is the total Certified Acts premium attributable to the following Coverage Part(s), Coverage
Form(s) andlor Policy(s):

Additional information, If any, concerning the terrorism premium:

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Disclosure Of Premium

In accordance with the federal Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act, we are required to provide you with a
notice disclosing the portion of your premium, if any,
attributable to coverage for terrorist acts certified
under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act. The portion
of your premium attributable to such coverage is
shown in the Schedule of this endorsement or in the
policy Declarations.

B. Disclosure Of Federal Participation In Payment Of
Terrorism Losses

The United States Government, Department of the
Treasury, wilt pay a share of terrorism losses insured
under the federal program. The federal share equals
85% of that portion of the amount of such insured
losses that exceeds the applicable insurer retention.
However, if aggregate insured losses attributable to
terrorist acts certified under the Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in a Program Year
(January 1 through December31>, the Treasury shall
not make any payment for any portion of the amount
of such losses that exceeds $100 billion.

C. Cap On Insurer Participation In Payment Of
Terrorism Losses

If aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist
acts certified under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
exceed $100 billion in a Program Year (January 1
through December 31) and we have met our insurer
deductible under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act,
we shall not be liable for the payment of any portion
of the amount of such losses that exceeds $100
billion, and in such case insured losses up to that
amount are subject to pro rate allocation in
accordance with procedures established by the
Secretary of the Treasury.

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 INTERLINE
IL 09850108

1109850108 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2007 Page 1 of 1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



BLANKET PROTECTOR
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

PS120222SH
PAGE 43 OF 78

ISSUED BY: K & K INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

POLICY PERIOD: From 03124112 to
12:01 A.M. Standard lime at your mailing address.

LIMITS OF INSURANCE
General Aggregate Limit (Other Than Products-Completed Operations)
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit
Each Occurrence Limit

Personal & Advertising Injury Limit

Medical Expense Limit
Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit
Additional Coverages

RETROACTIVE DATE (Applies to CG 0002, Claims Made Coverage, only)

POLICY NUMBER

$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$2,000,000

Any One Person
or Organization

Any One Person
Any One Premises

Coverage A of this insurance does not apply to “bodily injury” or “property damage” which occurs before the Retroactive Date, if any,
shown below.
Retroactive Date: None

(Enter Date or “None” if no Retroactive Date applies.)

Retroactive Date (Applies to CG 0034, Claims Made Coverage, Liquor Liability)
Retroactive Date: None

(Enter Date or “None” if no Retroactive Date applies.)

Forms Applicable to Commercial General Liability Coverage Part:
SRPG17486(12I02) CG000I(12104) CAS38BO(08!97)
SRPG8O1 5(09/08> SRPG8OI 7(09108) SRPG26055(09I08)
IL12OI (11/85) SRPG26147CG(09!08) SRPG26387(09I08)
CG2026(07!04) CG2147(07198) CG21 51(09189)
CG2407(01196)

04/24)13 at

$2,000,000

$5,000
$300,000

Location of All Premises You Own, Rent or Occupy:
1. 210 West Market Street, San Antonio, TX 78205

Advance Premium
Products! AllClassification Code No. Premium Basis Completed OtherOperations

SEE SRPG17486, LIABILITY SCHEDULE & PREMIUM RECAP

Commercial General Liability Advance Premium See SRPG17348

CAS4487(06193)
SRPG26I 17(09I08)
CGOI 03(06!06)
CG2167(12!04)

SRPG1 57(09/08>
SRPG26131(09108)
CG2O1 1(01/96)
CG2170(01/08)

Cas 3203-A (3-OS)

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



LIABILITY SCHEDULE AND PREMIUM RECAP

LOC. DESCRIPTION PREMIUM BASE
RATES PREMIUMSNO SUBUNE - CLASS CODE ACT. EXPOSURE

347 48558 Social Gatherings And Meetings
On Premises Not Owned Or Operated By The
Insured- Not For Profit

347 48557 Social Gatherings And Meetings
On Premises Not Owned Or Operated By The
Insured - Other Than Not For Profit

347 48558 Private Invitation Event U 1-200 $203.00 As submitted
48557 Class 1

347 48558 Private Invitation Event U 201-750 $248.00 As submitted
48557 Class 1

347 48558 Private Invitation Event U 751-1500 $345.00 As submitted
48557 Class_I

347 48558 Private Invitation Event U 1501-3000 $622.00 As submitted
48557 Class_I

347 48558 Open To Public Event U 1-200 $248.00 As submItted
48557 Class 2

347 48558 Open To Public Event U 201-750 $293.00 As submitted
48557 Class 2

347 48558 Open To Public Event U 761-1500 $459.00 As submitted
48557 Class 2

347 48558 Open To Public Event U 1501-3000 $800.00 As submitted
48557 Class_2

*SUBLINE KEY
332 - Liquor Liability
334 - Premises/Operations
335 - Owners/Contractors Protective or

Principals Protective
336 - Products/Completed Operations
350 - Pollution Liability
345 - Other Composite Rated/Premises!Operations ONLY
346 - Other Composite RatedlProduct/Completed

Operations ONLY
347 - Other Composite Rated - BOTH Premises/Operations

AND Product/Completed Operations or type in subline

SRPG17486

PREMIUMIEXPOSURE BASE KEY
A - Area (per 1,000 square feet)
C - TotalCost(per$1,000)
E - Admissions (per head)
M - Admissions(per 1,000)
P - Payroll(per$1,000)
R - Receipts (per $100)
S - Gross Sales (per $1,000)
U - Units (per unit) or type in base

POLICY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700

PS120222S11
PAGE 44 OF 78

TOTAL As submittedPREMIUMS

12102

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 45 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
CG000I 1204

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage, Read
the entire policy carefully to determine rights, duties and
what is and is not covered.

Throughout this policy the words “you” and “your” refer to
the Named Insured shown in the Declarations, and any
other person or organization qualifying as a Named
Insured under this policy. The words “we”, “us” and “our”
refer to the company providing this insurance.

The word “insured” means any person or organization
qualifying as such under Section Il—Who Is An Insured.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks
have special meaning. Refer to Section V —Definitions.

SECTION I - COVERAGES

COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY
DAMAGE LIABILITY

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured
becomes legally obligated to pay as damages
because of “bodily injury” or “property damage”
to which this insurance applies. We will have the
right and duty to defend the insured against any
“suit” seeking those damages. However, we will
have no duty to defend the insured against any
“suit” seeking damages for “bodily injury” or
“property damage” to which this insurance does
not apply. We may, at our discretion, investigate
any “occurrence” and settle any daim or “suit”
that may result. But:

(1) The amount we will pay for damages is
limited as described in Section III — Limits Of
Insurance; and

(2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we
have used up the applicable limit of
insurance in the payment of judgments or
settlements under Coverages A or B or
medical expenses under Coverage C.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or
perform acts or services is covered unless
explicitly provided for under Supplementary
Payments — Coverages A and B.

b. This insurance applies to “bodily injury” and
“property damage” only if:

(1) The “bodily injury” or “property damage” is
caused by an “occurrence” that takes place
in the “coverage territory”;

(2) The “bodily injury” or “property damage”
occurs during the policy period; and

(3) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed
under Paragraph 1. of Section II — Who Is An
Insured and no “employee” authorized by
you to give or receive notice of an
“occurrence” or claim, knew that the “bodily
injury” or “property damage” had occurred, in
whole or in part. If such a listed insured or
authorized “employee” knew, prior to the
policy period, that the “bodily injury” or
“property damage” occurred, then any
continuation, change or resumption of such
“bodily injury” or “property damage” during or
after the policy period will be deemed to have
been known prior to the policy period.

c. “Bodily injury” or “property damage” which occurs
during the policy period and was not, prior to the
policy period, known to have occurred by any
insured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section II —

Who Is An Insured or any “employee” authorized
by you to give or receive notice of an
“occurrence” or claim, includes any continuation,
change or resumption of that “bodily injury” or
“property damage” after the end of the policy
period.

d. “Bodily injury” or “property damage” will be
deemed to have been known to have occurred at
the earliest time when any insured listed under
Paragraph 1. of Section II — Who Is An Insured or
any “employee” authorized by you to give or
receive notice of an “occurrence” or claim:

(1) Reports all, or any part, of the “bodily injury”
or “property damage” to us or any other
insurer;

(2) Receives a written or verbal demand or claim
for damages because of the “bodily injury” or
“property damage”; or

(3) Becomes aware by any other means that
“bodily injury” or “property damage” has
occurred or has begun to occur.

CG 00011204 0 ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 1 otiS

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 46 OF 78

e. Damages because of “bodily injury” indude c. Liquor Liability
damages claimed by any person or organization
for care, loss of services or death resulting at any “Bodily injury or “property damage for which

time from ttie “i,ociiy injury”, any insured may be held liable by reason of:

2. Exclusions (1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of
any person;

This insurance does not apply to:
(2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a

a. Expected Or Intended Injury person under the legal drinking age or under
the influence of alcohol; or“Bodily injury or “property damage” expected or

intended from the standpoint of the insured. This (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating
exclusion does not apply to “bodily injury to the sale, gift, distribution or use of
resulting from the use of reasonable force to alcoholic beverages.
protect persons or property.

This exclusion applies only if you are in the
b. Contractual Liability business of manufacturing, distributing, selling,

“Bodily injury or “property damage” for which the serving or furnishing alcoholic beverages.

insured is obligated to pay damages by reason of d. Workers’ Compensation And Similar Laws
the assumption of liability in a contract or
agreement. This exclusion does not apply to Any obligation of the insured under a workers’

liability for damages: compensation, disability benefits or
unemployment compensation law or any similar

(1) That the insured would have in the absence law.
of the contract or agreement; or

e. Employer’s Liability
(2) Assumed in a contract or agreement that is

“Bodily injury” to:an “insured contract”, provided the “bodily
injury” or “property damage” occurs (1) An “employee” of the insured arising out of
subsequent to the execution of the contract and in the course of:
or agreement. Solely for the purposes of
liability assumed in an “insured contract”, (a) Emplonent by the insured; or

reasonable attorney fees and necessary (b) Performing duties related to the conduct
litigation expenses incurred by or for a party of the insured’s business; or
other than an insured are deemed to be
damages because of “bodily injury” or (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of

“property damage”, provided: that “employee” as a consequence of
Paragraph (1) above.

(a) Liability to such party for, or for the cost
This exclusion applies:of, that party’s defense has also been

assumed in the same “insured contract”; (I) Whether the insured may be liable as an
and employer or in any other capacity and

(b) Such attorney fees and litigation (2) To any obligation to share damages with or
expenses are for defense of that party repay someone else who must pay damages
against a civil or alternative dispute because of the injury.
resolution proceeding in which damages
to which this insurance applies are This exclusion does not apply to liability assumed

alleged. by the insured under an “insured contract”.

CG 0001 1204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 2 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 47 OF 78

f. Pollution

(1) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising
out of the actual, alleged or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration,
release or escape of “pollutants”:

(a) At or from any premises, site or location
which is or was at any time owned or
occupied by, or rented or loaned to, any
insured. However, this subparagraph
does not apply to:

(I) “Bodily injury” if sustained within a
building and caused by smoke,
fumes, vapor or soot produced by or
originating from equipment that is
used to heat, cool or dehumidify the
building, or equipment that is used to
heat water for personal use, by the
building’s occupants or their guests;

(ii) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”
for which you may be held liable, if
you are a contractor and the owner
or lessee of such premises, site or
location has been added to your
policy as an additional insured with
respect to your ongoing operations
performed for that additional insured
at that premises, site or location and
such premises, site or location is not
and never was owned or occupied
by, or rented or loaned to, any
insured, other than that additional
insured; or

(iii) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”
arising out of heat, smoke or fumes
from a “hostile fire”;

(b) At or from any premises, site or location
which is or was at any time used by or
for any insured or others for the
handling, storage, disposal, processing
or treatment of waste;

(c) Which are or were at any time
transported, handled, stored, treated,
disposed of, or processed as waste by or
for:

(i) Any insured; or

(ii) Any person or organization for whom
you may be legally responsible; or

(d) At or from any premises, site or location
on which any insured or any contractors
or subcontractors working directly or
indirectly on any insured’s behalf are
performing operations if the “pollutants”
are brought on or to the premises, site or
location in connection with such
operations by such insured, contractor or
subcontractor. However, this
subparagraph does not apply to:

(i) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”
arising out of the escape of fuels,
lubricants or other operating fluids
which are needed to perform the
normal electrical, hydraulic or
mechanical functions necessary for
the operation of “mobile equipment”
or its parts, if such fuels, lubricants
or other operating fluids escape from
a vehicle part designed to hold, store
or receive them. This exception does
not apply if the “bodily injury” or
“property damage” arises out of the
intentional discharge, dispersal or
release of the fuels, lubricants or
other operating fluids, or if such
fuels, lubricants or other operating
fluids are brought on or to the
premises, site or location with the
intent that they be discharged,
dispersed or released as part of the
operations being performed by such
insured, contractor or subcontractor;

(ii) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”
sustained within a building and
caused by the release of gases,
fumes or vapors from materials
brought into that building in
connection with operations being
performed by you or on your behalf
by a contractor or subcontractor; or

(iii) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”
arising out of heat, smoke or fumes
from a “hostile fire”.

(e) At or from any premises, site or location
on which any insured or any contractors
or subcontractors working directly or
indirectly on any insured’s behalf are
performing operations if the operations
are to test for, monitor, clean up,
remove, contain, treat, detoxify or
neutralize, or in any way respond to, or
assess the effects of, “pollutants”.

CG000I 1204 © ISO Properties, Inc.. 2003 Page 3 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S14
PAGE 48 OF 78

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:
(a) Request, demand, order or statutory or

regulatory requirement that any insured
or others test for. monitor, clean up,
remove, contain, treat, detoxify or
neutralize, or in any way respond to, or
assess the effects of, “pollutants”; or

(b) Claim or “suit” by or on behalf of a
governmental authority for damages
because of testing for, monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or in
any way responding to, or assessing the
effects of, “pollutants”.

However, this paragraph does not apply to
liability for damages because of “property
damage” that the insured would have in the
absence of such request, demand, order or
statutory or regulatory requirement, or such
claim or “suit” by or on behalf of a
governmental authority.

g. Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

“Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out of
the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment
to others of any aircraft, “auto” or wateroraft
owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any
insured. Use includes operation and “loading or
unloading”.

This exclusion applies even if the claims against
any insured allege negligence or other
wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by
that insured, if the “occurrence” which caused
the “bodily injury” or “property damage” involved
the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment
to others of any aircraft, “auto” or watercraft that
is owned or operated by or rented or loaned to
any insured.

This exclusion does not apply to:

(1) A watercraft while ashore on premises you
own or rent;

(2) A wateroraft you do not own that is:

(a) Less than 26 feet long; and

(b) Not being used to carry persons or
property for a charge;

(3) Parking an “auto” on, or on the ways next to,
premises you own or rent, provided the
“auto” is not owned by or rented or loaned to
you or the insured;

(4) Liability assumed under any “Insured
contract” for the ownership, maintenance or
use of aircraft or watercraft; or

(5) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising
out of:

(a) The operation of machinery or
equipment that is attached to, or part of,
a land vehicle that would qualify under
the definition of “mobile equipment” if it
were not subject to a compulsory or
financial responsibility law or other motor
vehicle insurance law in the state where
it is licensed or principally garaged; or

(b) the operation of any of the machinery or
equipment listed in Paragraph f.(2) or
f.(3) of the definition of “mobile
equipment”.

h Mobile Equipment

“Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out
of:

(1) The transportation of “mobile equipment” by
an “auto” owned or operated by or rented or
loaned to any insured; or

(2) The use of “mobile equipment” in, or while in
practice for, or while being prepared for, any
prearranged racing, speed, demolition, or
stunting activity.

i. War

“Bodily injury” or “property damage”, however
caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of:

(1) War, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) Warlike action by a military force, induding
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any
government, sovereign or other authority
using military personnel or other agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental
authority in hindering or defending against
any of these.

j. Damage To Property

“Property damage” to:

(1) Property you own, rent, or occupy, including
any costs or expenses incurred by you, or
any other person, organization or entity, for
repair, replacement, enhancement,
restoration or maintenance of such property
for any reason, including prevention of injury
to a person or damage to another’s property;

(2) Premises you sell, give away or abandon, if
the “property damage” arises out of any part
of those premises;

(3) Property loaned to you;

(4) Personal property in the care, custody or
control of the insured;

CG000I 1204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 4 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 49 OF 78

(5) That particular part of real property on which
you or any contractors or subcontractors
working directly or indirectly on your behalf
are perfomiing operations, if the “property
damage” arises out of those operations; or

(6) That particular part of any property that must
be restored, repaired or replaced because
“your work” was incorrectly performed on it.

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do
not apply to “property damage” (other than
damage by fire) to premises, including the
contents of such premises, rented to you for a
period of 7 or fewer consecutive days. A
separate limit of insurance applies to Damage To
Premises Rented To You as described in Section
Ill — Limits Of Insurance.

Paragraph (2) of this exclusion does not apply if
the premises are “your work” and were never
occupied, rented or held for rental by you.

Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclusion
do not apply to liability assumed under a
sidetrack agreement.

Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply to
“property damage” included in the “products-
completed operations hazard”.

k. Damage To Your Product

“Property damage” to “your product” arising out
of it or any part of ft.

Damage To Your Work

“Property damage” to “your work” arising out of it
or any part of it and included in the “products-
completed operations hazard”.

This exclusion does not apply if the damaged
work or the work out of which the damage arises
was performed on your behalf by a
subcontractor.

m. Damage To Impaired Property Or Property
Not Physically Injured

“Property damage” to “impaired property” or
property that has not been physically injured,
arising out ot

(1) A defect, deficiency, inadequacy or
dangerous condition in “your product” or
“your work”; or

(2) A delay or failure by you or anyone acting on
your behalf to perform a contract or
agreement in accordance with its terms.

This exclusion does not apply to the loss of use
of other property arising out of sudden and
accidental physical injury to “your product” or
“your work” after it has been put to its intended
use.

n. Recall Of Products, Work Or Impaired
Property
Damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense
incurred by you or others for the loss of use,
withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair,
replacement, adjustment, removal or disposal of:
(1) “Your product”;

(2) “Your work”; or

(3) “Impaired property”;

if such product, work, or property is withdrawn or
recalled from the market or from use by any
person or organization because of a known or
suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or
dangerous condition in it.

o. Personal And Advertising Injury

“Bodily injury” arising out of “personal and
advertising injury”.

p. Electronic Data

Damages arising out of the loss of, loss of
use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to
access, or inability to manipulate electronic
data.

As used in this exclusion, electronic data
means information, facts or programs stored
as or on, created or used on, or transmitted
to or from computer software, including
systems and applications software, hard or
floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells,
data processing devices or any other media
which are used with electronically controlled
equipment.

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage by
fire to premises while rented to you or temporarily
occupied by you with permission of the owner. A
separate limit of insurance applies to this coverage
as described in Section Ill — Limits Of Insurance.

COVERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING
INJURY LIABILITY

1. Insuring Agreement
a. We will pay those sums that the insured

becomes legally obligated to pay as damages
because of “personal and advertising injury” to
which this insurance applies. We will have the
right and duty to defend the insured against any
“suit” seeking those damages. However, we will
have no duty to defend the insured against any
“suit” seeking damages for “personal and
advertising injury” to which this insurance does
not apply. We may, at our discretion, investigate
any offense and settle any claim or “suit” that
may result. But:

(1) The amount we will pay for damages is
limited as described in Section III — Limits Of
Insurance; and

CG 00 01 1204 @ ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 5 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 50 OF 78

(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we
have used up the applicable limit of
insurance in the payment of judgments or
settlements under Coverages A or B or
medical expenses under Coverage C.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or
perform acts or services is covered unless
explicitly provided for under Supplementary
Payments — Coverages A and B.

b. This insurance applies to “personal and
advertising injury” caused by an offense ansing
out of your business but only if the offense was
committed in the “coverage territory” during the
policy period.

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

a. Knowing Violation Of Rights Of Another

“Personal and advertising injury” caused by or at
the direction of the insured with the knowledge
that the act would violate the rights of another
and would inflict “personal and advertising
injury”.

b. Material Published With Knowledge Of Falsity

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
oral or written publication of material, if done by
or at the direction of the insured with knowledge
of its falsity.

c. Material Published Prior To Policy Period

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
oral or written publication of material whose first
publication took place before the beginning of the
policy period.

d. Criminal Acts

“Personal and advertising injury’ arising out of a
criminal act committed by or at the direction of
the insured.

e Contractual Liability

“Personal and advertising injury” for which the
insured has assumed liability in a contract or
agreement. This exdusion does not apply to
liability for damages that the insured would have
in the absence of the contract or agreement.

f. Breach Of Contract

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of a
breach of contract, except an implied contract to
use another’s advertising idea in your
“advertisement”.

g. Quality Or Performance Of Goods — Failure
To Conform To Statements

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
the failure of goods, products or services to
conform with any statement of quality or
performance made in your “advertisement”.

h. Wrong Description Of Prices

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
the wrong description of the price of goods,
products or services stated in your
“advertisement”.

Infringement Of Copyright, Patent, Trademark
Or Trade Secret

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
the infringement of copyright, patent, trademark,
trade secret or other intellectual property rights.

However, this exclusion does not apply
infringement, in your “advertisement”,
copyright, trade dress or slogan.

j. Insureds In Media And Internet Type
Businesses

to
of

“Personal and advertising injury” committed by
an insured whose business is:

(1) Advertising, broadcasting, publishing or
telecasting;

(2) Designing or determining content of web-
sites for others; or

(3) An Internet search, access, content or
service provider.

However, this exclusion does not apply to
Paragraphs 14.a., b. and c. of “personal and
advertising injury” under the Definitions Section.

For the purposes of this exclusion, the placing of
frames, borders or links, or advertising, for you or
others anywhere on the Internet, is not by itself,
considered the business of advertising,
broadcasting, publishing or telecasting.

k. Electronic Chatrooms Or Bulletin Boards

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of an
electronic chatroom or bulletin board the insured
hosts, owns, or over which the insured exercises
control.

Unauthorized Use Of Another’s Name Or
Product

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
the unauthorized use of another’s name or
product in your e-mail address, domain name or
metatag, or any other similar tactics to mislead
another’s potential customers.

CG000I 1204 © Iso Properties. Inc., 2003 Page 6 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 51 OF 78

m. Pollution

“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of
the actual, alleged or threatened discharge,
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape
of “pollutants” at any time.

n. Pollution-Related

Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:

(1) Request, demand, order or statutory or
regulatory requirement that any insured or
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove,
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any
way respond to, or assess the effects of,
“pollutants”; or

(2) Claim or suit by or on behalf of a
governmental authority for damages because
of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up,
removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or
neutralizing, or in any way responding to, or
assessing the effects of, “pollutants”.

o. War

“Personal and advertising injury”, however
caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of:

(1) War, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any
government, sovereign or other authority
using military personnel or other agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental
authority in hindering or defending against
any of these.

COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay medical expenses as described
below for “bodily injury” caused by an accident:

(1) On premises you own or rent;

(2) On ways next to premises you own or rent;
or

(3) Because of your operations;

provided that:

(1) The accident takes place in the “coverage
territory” and during the policy period;

(2) The expenses are incurred and reported to
us within one year of the date of the
accident; and

(3) The injured person submits to examination,
at our expense, by physicians of our choice
as often as we reasonably require.

b. We will make these payments regardless of fault.
These payments will not exceed the applicable
limit of insurance. We will pay reasonable
expenses for:

(1) First aid administered at the time of an
accident;

(2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and
dental services, including prosthetic devices;
and

(3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional
nursing and funeral services,

2. Exclusions

We will not pay expenses for “bodily injury”:

a. Any Insured

To any insured, except “volunteer workers”.

b. Hired Person

To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of
any insured or a tenant of any insured.

c. Injury On Normally Occupied Premises

To a person injured on that part of premises you
own or rent that the person normally occupies.

d. Workers Compensation And Similar Laws

To a person, whether or not an “employee” of
any insured, if benefits for the “bodily injury” are
payable or must be provided under a workers’
compensation or disability benefits law or a
similar law.

e. Athletics Activities

To a person injured while practicing, instructing
or participating in any physical exercises or
games, sports, or athletic contests.

f. Products-Completed Operations Hazard

Included within the “products-completed
operations hazard”.

g. Coverage A Exclusions

Excluded under Coverage A.

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGES A
AND B

1. We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate
or settle, or any “suit” against an insured we defend:

a. All expenses we incur.

b. Up to $250 for cost of bail bonds required
because of accidents or traffic law violations
arising out of the use of any vehicle to which the
Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. We do
not have to furnish these bonds.

CG 00011204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 70115

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



c. The cost of bonds to release attadaments, but
only for bond amounts within the applicable limit
of insurance. We do not have to furnish these
bonds.

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured
at our request to assist us in the investigation or
defense of the claim or “suit”, induding actual
loss of earnings up to $250 a day because of
time off from work.

e. All costs taxed against the insured in the “suit”.

f. Prejudgment interest awarded against the
insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If
we make an offer to pay the applicable limit of
insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment
interest based on that period of time after the
offer.

g. All interest on the full amount of any judgment
that accrues after entry of the judgment and
before we have paid, offered to pay, or deposited
in court the part of the judgment that is within the
applicable limit of insurance.

These payments will not reduce the limits of
insurance.

2. If we defend an insured against a “suit” and an
iridemnitee of the insured is also named as a party to
the “suit”, we will defend that indemnitee if all of the
following conditions are met:

a. The “suit” against the indemnitee seeks
damages for which the insured has assumed the
liability of the indemnitee in a contract or
agreement that is an “insured contract”;

b. This insurance applies to such liability assumed
by the insured;

c. The obligation to defend, or the cost of the
defense of, that indemnitee, has also been
assumed by the insured in the same “insured
contract”;

d. The allegations in the “suit” and the information
we know about the “occurrence” are such that no
conflict appears to exist between the interests of
the insured and the interests of the indemnitee;

e. The indemnitee and the insured ask us to
conduct and control the defense of that
indemnitee against such “suit” and agree that we
can assign the same counsel to defend the
insured and the indemnitee; and

f. The indemnitee:

(1) Agrees in writing to:

(a> Cooperate with us in the investigation,
settlement or defense of the “suit”;

PS120222S}I
PAGE 52 OF 78

(b) Immediately send us copies of any
demands, notices, summonses or legal
papers received in connection with the
“suit”;

(C) Notify any other insurer whose coverage
is available to the indemnitee; and

(d) Cooperate with us with respect to
coordinating other applicable insurance
available to the indemnitee; and

(2> Provides us with written authorization to:

(a) Obtain records and other information
related to the “suit”; and

(b) Conduct and control the defense of the
indemnitee in such “suit”.

So long as the above conditions are met, attorneys’
fees incurred by us in the defense of that indemnitee,
necessary litigation expenses incurred by us and
necessary litigation expenses incurred by the
indemnitee at our request will be paid as
Supplementary Payments. Notwithstanding the
provisions of Paragraph 2.b.(2) of Section I —

Coverage A — Bodily Injury And Property Damage
Liability, such payments will not be deemed to be
damages for “bodily injury” and “property damage”
and will not reduce the limits of insurance.

Our obligation to defend an insured’s indemnitee and
to pay for attorneys’ fees and necessary litigation
expenses as Supplementary Payments ends when:

a. We have used up the applicable limit of
insurance in the payment of judgments or
settlements; or

b. The conditions set forth above, or the terms of
the agreement described in Paragraph f. above,
are no longer met.

SECTiON Il-WHO IS AN INSURED

1. If you are designated in the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you and your spouse are insureds,
but only with respect to the conduct of a business
of which you are the sole owner.

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an
insured. Your members, your partners, and their
spouses are also insureds, but only with respect
to the conduct of your business.

c. A limited liability company, you are an insured.
Your members are also insureds, but only with
respect to the conduct of your business. Your
managers are insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as your managers.

CG 00 01 1204 ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 PageS of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



d. An organization other than a partnership, joint
venture or limited liability company, you are an
insured. Your “executive officers” and directors
are insureds, but only with respect to their duties
as your officers or directors. Your stockholders
are also insureds, but only with respect to their
liability as stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees are
also insureds, but only with respect to their duties
as trustees.

2. Each of the following is also an insured:

a Your “volunteer workers” only while performing
duties related to the conduct of your business, or
your “employees”, other than either your
“executive officers” (if you are an organization
other than a partnership, joint venture or limited
liability company) or your managers (if you are a
limited liability company), but only for acts within
the scope of their employment by you or while
performing duties related to the conduct of your
business. However, none of these “employees”
or “volunteer workers” are insureds for:

(1) “Bodily injury” or “personal and advertising
injury”:

(a) To you, to your partners or members (if
you are a partnership or joint venture), to
your members (if you are a limited
liability company), to a co-”employee”
while in the course of his or her
employment or performing duties related
to the conduct of your business, or to
your other “volunteer workers” while
performing duties related to the conduct
of your business;

(b) To the spouse, child, parent, brother or
sister of that co-”employee” or “volunteer
worker” as a consequence of Paragraph
(1)(a) above;

(c) For which there is any obligation to share
damages with or repay someone else
who must pay damages because of the
injury described in Paragraphs (1)(a) or
(b) above; or

(d) Arising out of his or her providing or
failing to provide professional health care
services.

(2) “Property damage” to property:

(a) Owned, occupied or used by,

(b) Rented to, in the care, custody or control
of, or over Which physical control is being
exercised for any purpose by

you, any of your “employees”, “volunteer
workers”, any partner or member (if you are
a partnership or joint venture), or any
member (if you are a limited liability
company).

b. Any person (other than your “employee” or
“volunteer worker”), or any organization while
acting as your real estate manager.

c. Any person or organization having proper
temporary custody of your property if you die, but
only:

(1) With respect to liability arising out of the
maintenance or use of that property; and

(2) Until your legal representative has been
appointed.

d. Your legal representative if you die, but only with
respect to duties as such. That representative
will have all your rights arid duties under this
Coverage Part.

3. Any organization you newly acquire or form, other
than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability
company, and over which you maintain ownership or
majority interest, will qualify as a Named Insured if
there is no other similar insurance available to that
organization. However.

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only
until the 90th day after you acquire or form the
organization or the end of the policy period,
whichever is earlier

b. Coverage A does not apply to “bodily injury” or
“property damage” that occurred before you
acquired or formed the organization; and

c. Coverage B does not apply to “personal and
advertising injury” arising out of an offense
committed before you acquired or formed the
organization.

No person or organization is an insured with respect to
the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint
venture or limited liability company that is not shown as a
Named Insured in the Declarations.

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations
and the rules below fix the most we will pay
regardless of the number of:

a. Insureds;

b. Claims made or “suits” brought; or

c. Persons or organizations making claims or
bringing “suits”.

PS120222SH
PAGE53OF78

CG000I i204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 PageS of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay
for the sum of:

a. Medical expenses under Coverage C;

b. Damages under Coverage A, except damages
because of “bodily injury” or “property damage”
included in the “products-completed operations
hazard”; and

c. Damages under Coverage B.

3. The Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit
is the most we will pay under Coverage A for
damages because of “bodily injury” and “property
damage” included in the “products-completed
operations hazard”.

4. Subject to 2. above, the Personal and Advertising
Injury Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage B
for the sum of all damages because of all “personal
and advertising injury” sustained by any one person
or organization.

5. Subject to 2. or 3. above, whichever applies, the
Each Occurrence Limit is the most we will pay for the
sum of:

a. Damages under Coverage A; and

b. Medical expenses under Coverage C

because of all “bodily injury” and “property damage”
arising out of any one “occurrence”.

6. Subject to 5. above, the Damage To Premises
Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay under
Coverage A for damages because of “property
damage” to any one premises, while rented to you, or
in the case of damage by fire, while rented to you or
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the
owner.

7. Subject to 5. above, the Medical Expense Limit is the
most we will pay under Coverage C for all medical
expenses because of “bodily injury” sustained by any
one person.

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply
separately to each consecutive annual period and to any
remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the
beginning of the policy period shown in the Declarations,
unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an
additional period of less than 12 months. In that case, the
additional period will be deemed part of the last
preceding period for purposes of determining the Limits
of Insurance.

SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the
insured’s estate will not relieve us of our obligations
under this Coverage Part.

PS120222SH
PAGE 54 OF 78

2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense,
Claim OrSuit

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as
practicable of an “occurrence” or an offense
which may result in a claim. To the extent
possible, notice should include:

(1) How, when and where the “occurrence” or
offense took place;

(2) The names and addresses of any injured
persons and witnesses; and

(3) The nature and location of any injury or
damage arising out of the “occurrence” or
offense.

b. If a claim is made or “suit” is brought against any
insured, you must:

(I) Immediately record the specifics of the claim
or “suit” and the date received; and

(2) Notify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written notice
of the claim or “suit” as soon as practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands,
notices, summonses or legal papers received
in connection with the claim or “suit”;

(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other
information;

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or
settlement of the claim or defense against
the “suit”; and

(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the
enforcement of any right against any person
or organization which may be liable to the
insured because of injury or damage to
which this insurance may also apply.

d. No insured will, except at that insured’s own cost,
voluntarily make a payment, assume any
obligation, or incur any expense, other than for
first aid, without our consent.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under this
Coverage Part:

a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a
“suit” asking for damages from an insured; or

CG 00011204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 10 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222814
PAGE 55 OF 78

b. To sue us on this Coverage Part unless all of its
terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to recover
on art agreed settlement or on a final judgment
against an insured; but we will not be liable for
damages that are not payable under the terms of
this Coverage Part or that are in excess of the
applicable limit of insurance. An agreed
settlement means a settlement and release of
liability signed by us, the insured and the
claimant or the daimant’s legal representative.

4. Other Insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to
the insured for a loss we cover under Coverages A
or B of this Coverage Part, our obligations are limited
as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary except when b. below
applies. If this insurance is primary, our
obligations are not affected unless any of the
other insurance is also primary. Then, we will
share with all that other insurance by the method
described in c. below.

b. Excess Insurance

This insurance is excess over:

(1) Any of the other insurance, whether primary,
excess, contingent or on any other basis:

(a) That is Fire, Extended Coverage,
Builder’s Risk, Installation Risk or similar
coverage for “your work”;

(b) That is Fire insurance for premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by
you with permission of the owner;

(c) That is insurance purchased by you to
cover your liability as a tenant for
“property damage” to premises rented to
you or temporarily occupied by you with
permission of the owner or

(d) If the loss arises out of the maintenance
or use of aircraft, “autos” or watercraft to
the extent not subject to Exclusion g. of
Section I — Coverage A -. Bodily Injury
And Property Damage Liability.

(2) Any other primary insurance available to you
covering liability for damages arising out of
the premises or operations, or the products
and completed operations, for which you
have been added as an additional insured by
attachment of an endorsement.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no
duty under Coverages A or B to defend the
insured against any “suit” if any other insurer has
a duty to defend the insured against that “suit”. If
no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do
so, but we will be entitled to the insured’s rights
against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other
insurance, we will pay only our share of the
amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the sum
of:

(1) The total amount that all such other
insurance would pay for the loss in the
absence of this insurance; and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured
amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any
other insurance that is not described in this
Excess Insurance provision and was not bought
specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of
Insurance shown in the Declarations of this
Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all of the other insurance permits contribution by
equal shares, we will follow this method also.
Under this approach each insurer contributes
equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit
of insurance or none of the loss remains,

whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit
contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by
limits. Under this method, each insurer’s share is
based on the ratio of its applicable limit of
insurance to the total applicable limits of insurance
of all insurers.

5. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums for this Coverage
Part in accordance with our rules and rates.

b. Premium shown in this Coverage Part as
advance premium is a deposit premium only. At
the close of each audit period we will compute
the earned premium for that period and send
notice to the first Named Insured. The due date
for audit and retrospective premiums is the date
shown as the due date on the bill. If the sum of
the advance and audit premiums paid for the
policy period is greater than the earned premium,
we will return the excess to the first Named
Insured.

c. The first Named Insured must keep records of
the information we need for premium
computation, and send us copies at such times
as we may request.

CG000I 1204 ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 110115

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 56 OF 78

6. Representations

By accepting this policy, you agree:

a. The statements in the Dedarations are accurate
and complete;

6. Those statements are based upon
representations you made to us; and

c, We have issued this policy in reliance upon your
representations.

7. Separation Of Insureds

Except with respect to the Umits of Insurance, and
any rights or duties specifically assigned in this
Coverage Part to the first Named Insured, this
insurance applies:

a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named
Insured; and

b. Separately to each insured against whom claim
is made or “suit” is brought.

8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others
To Us

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any
payment we have made under this Coverage Part,
those rights are transferred to us. The insured must
do nothing after loss to impair them. At our request,
the insured will bring “suit” or transfer those rights to
us and help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew

If we decide not to renew this Coverage Part, we will
mail or deliver to the first Named Insured shown in
the Declarations written notice of the nonrenewal not
less than 30 days before the expiration date.

If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient
proof of notice.

SECTION V — DEFINITIONS

1. “Advertisement” means a notice that is broadcast or
published to the general public or specific market
segments about your goods, products or services for
the purpose of attracting customers or supporters.
For the purposes of this definition:

a. Notices that are published include material
placed on the Internet or on similar electronic
means of communication; and

6. Regarding web-sites, only that part of a web-site
that is about your goods, products or services for
the purposes of attracting customers or
supporters is consideied an advertisement.

2. “Auto” means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer
designed for travel on public roads, including any
attached machinery or equipment; or

6. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a
compulsory or financial responsibility law or other
motor vehide insurance law in the state where it
is licensed or principally garaged.

However, “auto” does not indude “mobile
equipment”.

3. “Bodily injury” means bodily injury, sickness or
disease sustained by a person, including death
resulting from any of these at any time.

4. “Coverage territory” means:

a. The United States of America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and
Canada;

6. International waters or airspace, but only if the
injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or
transportation between any places included in a.
above; or

c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage
arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in
the territory described in a. above;

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in
the territory described in a. above, but is
away for a short time on your business; or

(3) “Personal and advertising injury” offenses
that take place through the Internet or similar
electronic means of communication

provided the insured’s responsibility to pay damages
is determined in a “suit” on the merits, in the territory
described in a. above or in a settlement we agree to.

5. “Employee” includes a “leased worker”. “Employee”
does not include a “temporary worker”.

6. “Executive officer” means a person holding any of the
officer positions created by your charter, constitution,
by-laws or any other similar governing document.

7. “Hostile fire” means one which becomes
uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was
intended to be.

8. “Impaired property” means tangible property, other
than “your product” or “your work”, that cannot be
used or is less useful because:

a. It incorporates “your product” or “your work” that
is known or thought to be defective, deficient,
inadequate or dangerous; or

b. You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract or
agreement;

if such property can be restored to use by:

a. The repair, replacement, adjustment or removal
of “your product” or “your work”; or

CG 00011204 © ISO Properlies, Inc., 2003 Page 12 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



b. Your fulfilling the terms of the contract or
agreement.

9. “Insured contract” means:

a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that
portion of the contract for a lease of premises
that indemnifies any person or organization for
damage by fire to premises while rented to you
or temporarliy occupied by you with permission
of the owner is not an “insured contract”;

b. A sidetrack agreement;

c. Any easement or license agreement, except in
connection with construction or demolition
operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad;

d. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to
indemnify a municipality, except in connection
with work for a municipality;

e. An elevator maintenance agreement;

f. That part of any other contract or agreement
pertaining to your business (including an
indemnification of a municipality in connection
with work performed for a municipality) under
which you assume the tort liability of another
party to pay for “bodily injury” or “property
damage” to a third person or organization. Tort
liability means a liability that would be imposed
by law in the absence of any contract or
agreement.

Paragraph f. does not include that part of any
contract or agreement:

(1) That indemnifies a railroad for “bodily injury”
or “property damage” arising out of
construction or demolition operations, within
50 feet of any railroad property and affecting
any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-
beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing;

(2) That indemnifles an architect, engineer or
surveyor for injury or damage ansing out ot

(a) Preparing, approving, or failing to
prepare or approve, maps, shop
drawings, opinions, reports, surveys,
field orders, change orders or drawings
and specifications; or

(b) Giving directions or instructions, or failing
to give them, if that is the primary cause
of the injury or damage; or

(3) Under which the insured, if an architect,
engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for an
injury or damage arising out of the insured’s
rendering or failure to render professional
services, including those listed in (2) above
and supervisory, inspection, architectural or
engineering activities.

PS120222S11
PAGE 57 OF 78

10. “Leased worker” means a person leased to you by a
labor leasing firm under an agreement between you
and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties related
to the conduct of your business. “Leased worker”
does not include a “temporary worker”.

11. “Loading or unloading” means the handling of
property:

a. After it is moved from the place where it is
accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft,
watercraft or “auto”;

b. While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or
“auto”; or

c. While it is being moved from an aircraft,
watercraft or “auto” to the place where it is finally
delivered;

but “loading or unloading” does not include the
movement of property by means of a mechanical
device, other than a hand truck, that is not
attached to the aircraft, wateroraft or “auto”.

12. “Mobile equipment” means any of the following types
of land vehicles, including any attached machinery or
equipment:

a. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other
vehicles designed for use principally off public
roads;

b. Vehicles maintained far use solely on or next to
premises you own or rent;

c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;

d. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not,
maintained primarily to provide mobility to
permanently mounted:

(1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or
drills; or

(2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment
such as graders, scrapers or rollers;

e. Vehicles not described in a., b., c. or d. above
that are not self-propelled and are maintained
primarily to provide mobility to permanently
attached equipment of the following types:

(1) Air compressors, pumps and generators,
including spraying, welding, building
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting
and well servicing equipment; or

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to
raise or lower workers;

f. Vehides not described in a., b., c. or d. above
maintained primarily for purposes other than the
transportation of persons or cargo.

However, self-propeUed vehicles with the
following types of permanently attached
equipment are not “mobile equipment” but will be
considered “autos”:

CG 00 01 1204 @ ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 13 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



(I) Equipment designed primarily for:

(a) Snow removal;

(b) Road maintenance, but not construction
or resurfacing; or

(c) Street cleaning;

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted
on automobile or truck chassis and used to
raise or lower workers; and

(3) Air compressors, pumps and generators,
including spraying, welding, building
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting
and well servicing equipment.

However, “mobile equipment” does not include any
land vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance law in the state where it is licensed or
principally garaged. Land vehicles subject to a
compulsory or financial responsibility law or other
motor vehicle insurance law are considered “autos”.

13. “Occurrence” means an accident, including
continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the
same general harmful conditions.

14. “Personal and advertising injury” means injury,
including consequential “bodily injury”, arising out of
one or more of the following offenses:

a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment;

b. Malicious prosecution;

c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into,
or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a
room, dwelling or premises that a person
occupies, committed by or on behalf of its owner,
landlord or lessor;

d. Oral or written publication, in any manner, of
material that slanders or libels a person or
organization or disparages a person’s or
organization’s goods, products or services;

e. Oral or written publication, in any manner, of
material that violates a person’s right of privacy;

f. The use of another’s advertising idea in your
“advertisement”; or

g. Infringing upon another’s copyright, trade dress
or slogan in your “advertisement”.

15. “Pollutants” mean any solid, liquid, gaseous or
thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke,
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and
waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled,
reconditioned or reclaimed.

PS120222SH
PAGE 58 OF 78

16. “Products-completed operations hazard”:

z
a. Includes aH “bodily injury” and “property damage”

occuning away from premises you own or rent
and arising out of “your product” or “your work”
except

(1) Products that are still in your physical
possession; or

(2) Work that has not yet been completed or
abandoned. However, “your work” will be
deemed completed at the earliest of the
following times:

(a) When all of the work called for in your
contract has been completed.

(b) When all of the work to be done at the
job site has been completed if your
contract calls for work at more than one
job site.

(c) When that part of the work done at a job
site has been put to its intended use by
any person or organization other than
another contractor or subcontractor
working on the same project.

Work that may need service, maintenance,
correction, repair or replacement, but which
is otherwise complete, will be treated as
completed.

b. Does not include “bodily injury” or “property
damage” arising out of:

(1) The transportation of property, unless the
injury or damage arises out of a condition in
or on a vehicle not owned or operated by
you, and that condition was created by the
“loading or unloading” of that vehicle by any
insured;

(2) The existence of tools, uninstalled equipment
or abandoned or unused materials; or

(3) Products or operations for which the
classification, listed in the Declarations or in
a policy schedule, states that products-
completed operations are subject to the
General Aggregate Limit

17. “Property damage” means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all
resulting loss of use of that property. All such
loss of use shall be deemed to occur at the time
of the physical injury that caused it; or

CG 00 01 1204 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 14 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 59 OF 78

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not
physically injured. All such loss of use shall be
deemed to occur at the time of the “occurrence”
that caused it.

For the purposes of this insurance, electronic
data is not tangible property.

As used in this definition, electronic data means
information, facts or programs stored as or on,
created or used on, or transmitted to or from
computer software, including systems and
applications software, hard or floppy disks, CD
ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing
devices or any other media which are used with
electronically controlled equipment.

18. “Suit” means a civil proceeding in which damages
because of “bodily injury”, “property damage” or
“personal and advertising injury” to which this
insurance applies are alleged, “Suit” includes:

a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages
are claimed and to which the insured must
submit or does submit with our consent; or

b. Any other alternative dispute resolution
proceeding in which such damages are claimed
and to which the insured submits with our
consent.

19. “Temporary worker” means a person who is
furnished to you to substitute for a permanent
“employee” on leave or to meet seasonal or short-
term workload conditions.

20. “Volunteer worker” means a person who is not your
“employee”, and who donates his or her work and
acts at the direction of and within the scope of duties
determined by you, and is not paid a fee, salary or
other compensation by you or anyone else for their
work performed for you.

21. “Your product”:

a. Means:

(1) Any goods or products, other than real
property, manufactured, sold, handled,
distributed or disposed of by:

(a) You;

(b) Others trading under your name; or

(c) A person or organization whose
business or assets you have acquired;
and

(2) Containers (other than vehides), materials,
parts or equipment furnished in connection
with such goods or products.

b. Includes

(1) Warranties or representations made at any
time with respect to the fitness, quality,
durability, performance or use of “your
product”; and

(2) The providing of or failure to provide
warnings or instructions.

c. Does not include vending machines or other
property rented to or located for the use of others
but not sold.

22. “Your work”:

a. Means:

(1) Work or operations performed by you or on
your behalf; and

(2) Materials, parts or equipment furnished in
connection with such work or operations.

b. Includes

(1) Warranties or representations made at any
time with respect to the fitness, quality,
durability, performance or use of “your work”,
and

(2) The providing of or failure to provide
warnings or instructions.

CG 00011204 @ ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 15 of 15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 60 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700

ASBESTOS LIABILITY EXCLUSION

The following exclusion is added:

“This insurance does not apply to bodily injury, property damage, personal injury or advertising injury arising out of
asbestos or goods containing asbestos or real property containing asbestos. This exdusion applies whether the bodily
injury, property damage, personal injury or advertising injury is caused solely by asbestos or goods containing
asbestos or real property containing asbestos, or is caused by other means in conjunction or separately with asbestos
or goods containing asbestos or real property containing asbestos.”

CAS3880 (08197)

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700

PS120222S11
PAGE 61 OF 78

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

LEAD EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL AUTO COVERAGE PART
BUSINESSOWNERS POLICY
CONTRACTORS POLICY
FARM COVERAGE PART
SCHOOL DISTRICT LIABILITY POLICY
COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA LIABILITY POLICY
BUSINESS PROVIDER POLICY
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY POLICY
NATIONWIDE RURAL ELECTRIC COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT POLICY

This insurance does not apply to:

1. “Bodily Injury,’ “property damage,” “personal injury,” “advertising injury” or medical payments arising out of or
relating to the exposure to lead or any claims from lead; including but not limited to the ingestion, inhalation or
absorption of lead in any form.

2. Any loss, cost or expense rising out of any request, demand or order that any insured or others test for, monitor,
clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess the effects of lead; or

3. Any loss, cost or expenses arising out of any claim or suit by or on behalf of a governmental authority for damages
because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing or in any
way responding to, or assessing the effects of lead.

For purposes of this endorsement, lead means lead and lead compounds in any form.

CAS4487 (06193)

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 62 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSUREDS
OWNERS, MANAGERS ANDIOR LESSORS OF PREMISES,

SPONSORS OR CO-PROMOTERS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Is amended to include as an additional Insured any person or organization of the types designated below, but only with
respect to liability caused in whole or in part by your operations:

1. Owners, managers andlor lessors of the premises leased, rented, or loaned to you, subject to the following
additional exclusions:

A. This insurance applies only to an occurrence which takes place while you are a tenant in the premises;

B. This insurance does not apply to Bodily Injury or Property Damage resulting from structural alterations,
new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of the owner, manager and/or lessor
of the premises;

C. This insurance does not apply to any design defect or structural maintenance of the premises by or on
behalf of the owner, manager andlor lessor.

2. Sponsors.

3. Co-Promoters.

With respect to any additional insured included under this policy, this insurance does not apply to the sole negligence of
such additional insured. Further, we will have no duty to defend such additional insured against any suit to which this
insurance does not apply.

SRPGI57 09(08

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 63 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ABUSE, MOLESTATION, HARASSMENT OR SEXUAL
CONDUCT EXCLUSION

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) the actual, threatened or alleged abuse, molestation, harassment or sexual conduct by anyone of any person in your
care, custody and control; or

(b) the negligent:

(i) employment,

(ii) investigation;

(iii) supervision, hiring or training;

(iv) reporting to the proper authorities, or failure to so report;

(v) retention; or

(vi) referral

of a person for whom any insured is or ever was legally responsible and whose conduct would be exduded by (a)
above.

This endorsement does not change any other provision of the policy.

SRPG8OI 5 09108

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 64 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EVENT PROVISIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

All Liability Coverages

(‘X’ applicable box below)

This insurance applies only to the event(s) reported to, approved by, and on file with us. Notwithstanding the
specific event date(s) reported, approved and on file, activities that are part of the setup and teardown required for
the event are considered part of the insured event.

This insurance applies to the event(s) that have been reported, approved and are on file with the company and the
ongoing business and administrative operations related to the reported and approved event(s) on file.
Notwithstanding the specific event date(s) reported, approved and on file, activities that are part of the setup and
teardown required for the event are considered part of the insured event.

If any event reported, approved and on file is postponed, we will revise the event date(s) to the date(s) you tell us,
provided that you notify us in writing of the postponement on or prior to the originally reported event start date(s).

If any event reported to us is cancelled, we will refund the premium for the cancelled event if you notify us in writing of the
cancellation prior to the originally reported start date(s).

SRPGSO17 09108

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 65 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION = DESIGNATED OPERATiONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Description of Designated Operation(s):

1. E-commerce consulting;
2. Events held at multiple locations;
3. Operations of concessionaires, exhibitors, and/or vendors at your event;
4. Room and board liability;
5. Serving, furnishing or safes of alcoholic beverages by the named insured if they are required to hold a liquor license or

permit;
6. Activist rallies, marches or literature distribution;
7. Athletic events and competitions;
8. Cinematography and photography for commercial use;
9. Concerts (rock, rap or hip-hop> — unless prior reported and approved by company;

10. Events with over 3,000 in total attendance;
11. Events held on an airport premises;
12. Guns and/or knife shows;
13. Health fairs or shows;
14. Historical battle reenactments;
15. In or on water activities;
16. Mazes (corn, hay or fence);
17. Motorized vehicle, motorcycle or watercraftlpowerboat practicing for, qualifying for, or testing for any racing speed,

demolition or stunting activity;
18. Overnight retreats;
19. Parades;
20. Petting zoos;
21. Air shows

Specified Location (If Applicable):

This insurance does not apply to the operations described in the Schedule of this endorsement, regardless of whether
such operations are conducted by you or on your behalf or whether the operations are conducted for yourself or for
others.

Unless a location” is specified in the Schedule, this exclusion applies regardless of where such operations are conducted
by you or on your behalf. If a specific “location” is designated in the Schedule of this endorsement, this exdusion applies
only to the described operations conducted at that “location”.

For the purpose of this endorsement, “location” means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises
whose connection is interrupted only by a street, roadway, water way or right-of-way of a railroad.

SRPG26OS5 Includes copyrighted material of 09108
Insurance Services Office, Inc., with Its permIssIon.

Copyright, Insurance ServIces Office, Inc., 1994.

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE66OF78 zi

POLICY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

FIREWORKS EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies the insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

This insurance does not apply to any loss, claim or “suit” arising out of fireworks.
For purposes of this endorsement, fireworks means any display of explosive or buming devices, material, or pyrotechnics.

SRPG26II7 ooioe

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 67 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 GENERAL LIABILITY

ThIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION -- SPORTSILEISUREIENTERTAINMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

This insurance does not apply to:

AircraftlHot Air Balloon

The ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any flying craft or vehicle, including, but not
limited to, any aircraft, hot air balloon, glider, parachute, helicopter, missile or spacecraft.

Airport

The ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any airfield or airport facility or premises.
Amusement Devices

The ownership, operation, maintenance or use of: any mechanical or non-mechanical ride, slide, or water slide, any
inflatable recreational device, any bungee operation or equipment, any vertical device or equipment used for climbing-
either permanently affixed or temporarily erected, or dunk tank.
Amusement devices do not include any video or computer games.

Animals

1. Injury or death to any animal.

2. Injury, death or property damage caused by any animal owned, rented or hired by you.
Haunted Attractions

The ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any haunted attractions.
Performer

Injury or death to any performer or entertainer during any activity, event or exhibition including but not limited to any
stunt, concert, show or theatrical event.

Rodeo

Any rodeo activity, including, but not limited to, bronco or bull riding, steer roping, team roping, barrel racing or
horseback riding.

Saddle Animal

The ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any saddle animal, including, but not limited to,
riding on any saddle animal or riding on any vehicle which is drawn or powered by any animal.

Snowmobile

The ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any snowmobile.

SRPG261 31 09108

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS12OZ2ZSII
PAGE 68 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 INTERUNE
1L1201 1185

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

POLICY CHANGES

Policy Change
Number I

POLICY NUMBER POLICY CHANGES EFFECTIVE COMPANY
6BFWC0000005250700 03/24/12 Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company
NAMED INSURED AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Tenant Users, as endorsed, of National Western Art Foundation K&K Insurance Group, Inc.
DBA: Briscoe Western Art Museum
COVERAGE PARTS AFFECTED

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE

CHANGES

Form SRPG261 31, Exclusion — Sports/LeisurelEntertainment, Amusement Devices, is amended as follows:

Amusement Devices
The ownership, operation, maintenance or use of: any mechanical or non-mechanical ride, slide or water slide, any
inflatable recreational device, any bungee operation or equipment, any vertical device of equipment used for climbing —

either permanently affixed or temporarily erected, or dunk tank.

Amusement Devices do not include any video or computer games or structures that are not designed to bounce on, slide
on, ride on or tunnel through.

IL 1201 1185

Authorized Representative Signature

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1983
Copyright. ISO Commercial Risk Services, Inc., 1983

Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 69 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAl. GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT OF LIMITS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations Page, or wherever they may appear, apply separately to each enrolled
member.

The Limits of Insurance do not apply separately to the following:

The individual persons, subsidiaries, affiliates or other entities that are a part of the enrolled member.

If more than one policy or certificate, issued to the same enrolled member, could apply to the same occurrence the most
we will pay for that occurrence is the highest limit of liability and aggregate limit of liability on any one policy or certificate
issued to that enrolled member.

SRPG26I 47CG 09108

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SIf
PAGE 70 OF 78

POLICY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BROADENED COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies coverage provided under the following:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

A. The following replaces SECTION I — COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTYDAMAGE LIABILITY, 2. Exclusions, a.:

a. “Bodily injury” or “property damage” expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured. This exclusion
does not apply to “bodily injury” or “property damage” resulting from the use of reasonable force to protectpersons or property.

B. The following replaces SECTION I — COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTYDAMAGE LIABILITY, 2. Exclusions, g. (2):

(2) A wateroraft you do not own that is:

(a) Less than 51 feet long; and

(b) Not being used to carry persons or property for a charge;
C. The following replaces SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS — COVERAGES A AND B, 1. b. and d.:

b. Up to $1,000 for the cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations arising out of the
use of any vehicle to which the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. We do not have to furnish thesebonds.

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or defense ofthe claim or “suit”, including actual loss of earnings up to $500 a day because of time off from work.
D. The following are added to SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS:

11. Waiver of Right of Recovery

We waive rights of recovery when you have agreed to waive your rights of recovery by a written contract.
However, this provision only applies if the written contract was executed prior to the date of the “occurrence.”

E. The following replaces SECTION V — DEFINITIONS, 3.
3. “Bodily injury” means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person. This includes mental anguish,

mental injury, shock, fright, humiliation, emotional distress or death resulting from bodily injury, sickness ordisease.

SRPG26387 Includes copyrighted material of 09108
Insurance Services Office, Inc., with Its permission. Page 1 of I

CopyrIght Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1998.

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 71 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 01 030606

ThIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

TEXAS CHANGES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. With regard to liability for Bodily Injury, Property
Damage and Personal And Advertising Injury, unless
we are prejudiced by the insured’s or your failure to
comply with the requirement, no provision of this
Coverage Part requiring you or any insured to give
notice of “occurrence”, claim or “suit”, or forward
demands, notices, summonses or legal papers in
connection with a claim or “suit” will bar coverage
under this Coverage Part.

CG 01 030606 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2005 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 72 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
CG 20 11 01 96

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - MANAGERS OR LESSORS OF
PREMISES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

1. Designation of Premises (Part Leased to You):
1TL

2. Name of Person or Organization (Additional Insured):

“inr

3. Additional Premium: None

(If no entry appears above, the information required to complete this endorsement wilt be shown in the Declarations asapplicable to this endorsement.)

WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the Schedulebut only with respect to liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the premises leased to youand shown in the Schedule and subject to the following additional exclusions:
This insurance does not apply to:
1. Any occurrence” which takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises.
2. Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of the person ororganization shown in the Schedule.

CG 20 11 01 96 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1994 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 73 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 68FWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
CG 20260704

ThIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED — DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s)
As Requested and Endorsed.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to include acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those actingas an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) on your behalf:
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability A. In the performance of your ongoing operations; orfor boddy injury, property damage or personal and
advertising injury” caused, in whole or in part, by your B. In connection with your premises owned by or rented

to you.

CG 20 260704 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 74 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 21470798

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES EXCLUSION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2
Exclusions of Section I — Coverage A — Bodily
Injury And Property Damage Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:

“Bodily injury” to:

(1) A person arising out of any:

(a> Refusal to employ that person;

(b) Termination
employment; or

of that person’s

(c) Employment-related practices, policies,
acts or omissions, such as coercion,
demotion, evaluation, reassignment,
discipline, defamation, harassment,
humHiation or discrimination directed at
that person; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of
that person as a consequence of “bodily
injury” to that person at whom any of the
employment-related practices described in
Paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) above is directed.

This exclusion applies:

(1) Whether the insured may be liable as an
employer or in any other capacity; and

(2) To any obligation to share damages with or
repay someone else who must pay damages
because of the injury.

B. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2.,
Exclusions of Section I — Coverage B — Personal
And Advertising Injury Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:

“Personal and advertising injury” to:

(I) A person arising out of any

(a) Refusal to employ that person;

(b) Termination
employment; or

of that person’s

(c) Employment-related practices, policies,
acts or omissions, such as coercion,
demotion, evaluation, reassignment,
discipline, defamation, harassment,
humiliation or discrimination directed at
that person; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of
that person as a consequence of “personal
and advertising injury” to that person at
whom any of the employment-related
practices described in Paragraphs (a), (b), or
(c) above is directed.

This exclusion applies:

(1) Whether the insured may be liable as an
employer or in any other capacity; and

(2) To any obligation to share damages with or
repay someone else who must pay damages
because of the injury.

CG2I 470798 Copyright. Insurance Services Office, lnc, 1997 Page 1 Of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 75 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY
CG 2151 0989

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT OF LIQUOR LIABILITY EXCLUSION -

EXCEPTION FOR SCHEDULED ACTIVITIES
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE
Description of Activity(ies):

Hosted event(s) where the Named Insured is not required to obtain a license/permit to serve or furnish alcoholic
beverages (with or without a charge). However, coverage does not extend to any insured or additional insured who is in
the business of manufacturing, selling or distributing alcoholic beverages.

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations asapplicable to this endorsement)

Exclusion c. of COVERAGE A (Section I) is replaced by This exclusion applies only if you:
the following:

(1) Manufacture, sell or distribute alcoholic
c.”Bodily injury” or “property damage” for which beverages;

any insured may be held liable by reason of:
(2) Serve or furnish alcoholic beverages for a

(1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of charge whether or not such activity:
any person;

(a) Requires a license;
(2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a

person under the legal drinking age or (b) Is for the purpose of financial gain or
under the influence of alcohol; or livelihood; or

(3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating (3) Serve or furnish alcoholic beverages without a
to the sale, gift, distribution or use of charge, if a license is required for such activity.
alcoholic beverages.

However, this exclusion does not apply to “bodily
injury” or “property damage” arising out of the
selling, serving or furnishing of alcoholic beverages
at the specific activity(ies) described above.

CG 21 51 09 89 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1989, 1992 Page I of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222S11
PAGE 76 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY
CG2I 671204

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

FUNGI OR BACTERIA EXCLUSION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2.
Exclusions of Section I — Coverage A — Bodily
Injury And Property Damage Liability:
2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:
Fungi Or Bacteria
a. “Bodily injury” or “property damage” which

would not have occurred, in whole or in part,
but for the actual, alleged or threatened
inhalation of, ingestion of, contact with,
exposure to, existence of, or presence of, any
“fungi” or bacteria on or within a building or
structure, including its contents, regardless of
whether any other cause, event, material or
product contributed concurrently or in any
sequence to such injury or damage.

b. Any loss, cost or expenses arising out of the
abating, testing for, monitoring, cleaning up,
removing, containing, treating, detoxifying,
neutralizing, remediating or disposing of, or in
any way responding to, or assessing the
effects of, “fungi” or bacteria, by any insured or
by any other person or entity.

This exclusion does not apply to any “fungi” or
bacteria that are, are on, or are contained in, a
good or product intended for bodily consumption.

B. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2.
Exclusions of Section I — Coverage B — Personal
And Advertising Injury Liability:
2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:
Fungi Or Bacteria
a. “Personal and advertising injury” which would

not have taken place, in whole or in part, but
for the actual, alleged or threatened inhalation
of, ingestion of, contact with, exposure to,
existence of, or presence of any “fungi” or
bacteria on or within a building or structure,
including its contents, regardless of whether
any other cause, event, material or product
contributed concurrently or in any sequence to
such injury.

b. Any loss, cost or expense arising out of the
abating, testing for, monitoring, cleaning up,
removing, containing, treating, detoxifying,
neutralizing, remediating or disposing of, or in
any way responding to, or assessing the
effects of, “fungi” or bacteria, by any insured or
by any other person or entity.

C. The following definition is added to the Definitions
Section:

“Fungi” means any type or form of fungus, including
mold or mildew and any mycotoxins, spores, scents
or byproducts produced or released by fungi.

CG2I 671204 C ISO Properties, Inc., 2003 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PS120222SH
PAGE 77 OF 78

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 217001 08

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POUCY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

If aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist acts
certified under the federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
exceed $100 billion in a Program Year (January 1
through December 31) and we have met our insurer
deductible under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we
shall not be liable for the payment of any portion of the
amount of such losses that exceeds $100 billion, and in
such case insured losses up to that amount are subject
to pro rata allocation in accordance with procedures
established by the Secretary of the Treasury.

“Certified act of terrorism” means an act that is certified
by the Secretary of the Treasury, in concurrence with the
Secretary of State and the Attorney General of the United
States, to be an act of terrorism pursuant to the federal
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act. The criteria contained in
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act for a “certified act of
terrorism” include the following:

1. The act resulted in insured losses in excess of $5
million in the aggregate, attributable to all types of
insurance subject to the Terrorism Risk Insurance
Act; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is dangerous to
human life, property or infrastructure and is
committed by an individual or individuals as part of an
effort to coerce the civilian population of the United
States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct
of the United States Government by coercion.

CG2I 700108 © ISO Properties, Inc, 2007 Page 1 of I

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PSO8O222p, MOD 2
PAGE 78 OF 33

POUCY NUMBER: 6BFWC0000005250700 COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY
CG 24070196

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES ThE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRODUCTS!COMPLETED OPERATIONS HAZARD
REDEFINED

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following;

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Description of Premises and Operations:

Food and beverage distribution

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations as
applicable to this endorsement.)

With respect to “bodily injury” or “property damage” Paragraph a. of the definition of “Products-completed
arising out of “your products” manufactured, sold, operations hazard” in the DEFINITIONS Section is
handled or distributed; replaced by the following;

1. On, from or in connection with the use of any “Products-completed operations hazard”:
premises described in the Schedule or ,, . .a. Includes all bodily injury’ and property damage

2. In connection with the conduct of any operation that arises out of “your products” if the “bodily
described in the Schedule, when conducted by you injury” or “property damage” occurs after you
or on your behalf, have relinquished possession of those products.

CG 24070196 COpyright Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1994 Page 10ff

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AIR MEDICAL COVERAGE AGREEMENT

This Air Medical Coverage Agreement is made by the following parties: Travis County, a
political subdivision of Texas and Texas AirLife, Inc. a Texas corporation, doing business as
AirLife.

Recitals

Circuit of the Americas, LLP, (COTA) is developing and will operate an event center that
includes a race track in southwest Travis County. COTA intends to host Formula 1 races each
year as well as providing the center for other events throughout the year. For events attracting
large numbers of spectators or participants, COTA anticipates needing to have air medical
coverage available during the events. In particular, for Formula 1 races, COTA must provide
both continuous coverage by one appropriately staffed aircraft at the Track and another aircraft
on stand-by not more than 10 minutes response time from the Track. COTA has entered into an
agreement with Travis County to provide these aircraft through a combination of its own aircraft
and those of a subcontractor.

Due to the nature of the event center and the events being produced, unforeseen factors,
like inclement weather, may result in the need to delay or extend the period of services originally
requested. Therefore, some flexibility is needed in providing these services.

At this time, Travis County’s primary mission does not allow STAR Flight, its air
medical program, to provide more than one aircraft for this type of coverage. Therefore, Travis
County is seeking another air medical provider with which to contract to provide the services
required under its agreement with COTA. AirLife understands the relationship and contingent
nature of the needs of the relationship and is willing to provide the stand-by aircraft and staff as a
subcontractor.

Agreement

In consideration of the mutual agreements set out below, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
Definitions

1.0 In this Agreement,

1.1 “Agreement” means this Air Medical Coverage Agreement between Travis
County and AirLife.

1.2 “AirLife” means Texas AirLife, Inc., a Texas corporation.

1.3 “CAMTS” means the Commission on Accreditation of Medical Transport
Systems.

1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



1.4 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.5 “COTA” means Circuit of the Americas, LLC; whose primary office is at 301
Congress Ave., Ste. 220; Austin, TX 78701.

1.6 “County” means Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas.

1.7 “FAA” means the Federal Aviation Administration.

1.8 “Patients” means individuals who require first response medical care and may
require transport from the Track to an appropriate medical facility.

1.9 “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent.

1.10 “Stand-by Services” means the services of an appropriately staffed dedicated
aircraft to function as the second aircraft that is available when County is
requested to provide services for events at the Track under its agreement with
COTA and includes the following:

1.10.1 provide one aircraft and one Team based at a location not more than ten
minutes (10) minutes response time from the Track for the hours and dates
during which COTA has requested Stand-by Services,

1.10.2 move this aircraft to the Track when requested so that there is an aircraft at
the Track while the STAR Flight aircraft is transporting a Patient and as
otherwise needed,

1.10.3 provide medical assistance to Patients while at the Track, and

1.10.4 perform the pre-event preparation activities and post-event activities
necessary to this coverage which COTA has acknowledged require one
hour before and one hour after the stand-by times requested by COTA,

1.11 “Team” means one pilot and two paramedics designated to provide air medical
coverage under this Agreement.

1.12 Team Member” means each of the individuals who comprise the Team.”

1.13 “Track” means the Circuit of the Americas race track located at or near 1 2700’/2
Farm and Market Road 812 in Travis County, Texas and operated by COTA.

ARTICLE II
County ‘.s’ andAirLfe ‘s General Obligations

2.1 Purpose. This Agreement is to secure the Stand-by Services at the times and in the
manner provided in this Agreement for services to be provided in compliance with the

2

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Air Medical Coverage Agreement between Circuit of the Americas LLP and Travis
County.

2.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. County and AirLife shall at all times in the
performance of the Stand-by Services comply with all applicable federal, state and local
statutes and regulations. AirLife is not required to provide any Stand-by Service that
would not comply with applicable Federal Aviation Administration regulations. Nothing
in this Agreement requires AirLife to provide Stand-by Services in violation of any
Federal Aviation Administration regulation.

2.3 No Agency Relationship. AirLife does not have the right or authority to enter into any
contract in the name of County or COTA or otherwise bind County or COTA in any way
without the express written consent of County or COTA. County does not have the right
or authority to enter into any contract in the name of AirLife or COTA or otherwise bind
AirLife or COTA in any way without the express written consent of AirLife or COTA.

2.4 Non-Discrimination. AirLife shall not discriminate against any applicant for a position
as a Team Member on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or
disability.

2.5 Non-Exclusive Nature of the Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision of this
Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall be non-exclusive, and County and
COTA reserve the right to retain third parties to provide air medical coverage at the
Track during this Agreement. If COTA exercises its right to retain third parties to
provide air medical coverage, COTA has agreed to provide separate helipads or other
appropriate landing areas for each air medical coverage provider.

ARTICLE III
AirLfe ‘s Obligations

3.1 Accreditation At all times during this Agreement, AirLife shall maintain accreditation
from CAMTS. AirLife shall provide evidence of accreditation annually upon each
renewal and upon request.

3.2 Aircraft For Stand-by Services, AirLife shall provide one helicopter, suitable for
emergency medical services, with medical stretcher package in place which complies
with applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. AirLife shall maintain the
helicopter in accordance with the manufacturer’s guidelines and applicable rules and
regulations established by the FAA. AirLife shall operate the helicopter in accordance
with applicable FAA rules and regulations that may be in effect at the time. In addition,
AirLife acknowledges that unforeseeable and unlikely circumstances might affect
County’s ability to provide its Services under its agreement with COTA through STAR
Flight and, in this event, if requested by County, AirLife will provide both Services and
Stand-by Services at the rates provided for Stand-by Services in this Agreement.

3.3 Staffing Qualifications At all times on the dates and during the hours when Stand-by
Services are requested, AirLife shall provide a Team composed of one pilot and two

3

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



paramedics. For Stand-by Services, AirLife shall staff one (1) AirLife helicopter with a
pilot in accordance with all applicable FAA regulations. AirLife shall provide two flight
paramedics with one acting as a flight safety officer. Flight paramedics and safety
officers providing services under this Agreement shall meet the training and competency
standards that pertain to their qualifications as paramedics or safety officers set forth by
CAMTS. AirLife pilots providing services under this Agreement shall meet the training
and competency standards that pertain to pilots set forth by CAMTS and the FAA.
AirLife shall require the Team Members that it provides to perform the Stand-By
Services in accordance with standards applicable to that Team Member’s field of
expertise. AirLife shall not allow any employee about whom AirLife has received
information of any arrest, indictment or conviction for any offense other than a
misdemeanor or motor vehicle license infraction not involving alcohol or a controlled
substance to be an AirLife Team Member who provides Stand-by Services.

3.4 Removal from Service. AirLife shall only allow any employee to be a Team Member
who provides Stand-by Services if AirLife has not received information concerning any
material restriction, suspension or revocation placed upon that employee’s license related
to the services to be provided by that employee as a Team Member. Upon request by
County or COTA, AirLife shall remove from providing Stand-by Services any Team
Member who (1) is convicted of a felony, (2) has a guardian or trustee of his or her
person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, (3) becomes disabled so as to be
unable to perform the duties required by this Agreement, (4) has any license(s) required
to perform the Stand-by Services either suspended, or revoked, (5) falls to comply with
any of the material terms and conditions of this Agreement after being given notice of
that failure and a reasonable opportunity to comply, or (6) is disruptive or unable to work
with others in performing the Stand-by Services. In addition to removing that Team
Member, AirLife shall obtain, at its own cost and expense, a substitute for the removed
Team Member or otherwise demonstrate its capabilities for continued coverage and
Stand-by Services required by this Agreement.

3.5 Clinical Protocols and Medical Direction. AirLife understands and acknowledges that
AirLife must provide the clinical protocols and medical direction for the paramedics that
staff its aircraft and provide first response medical services under this Agreement.
AirLife further understands and acknowledges that COTA intends to employ physicians
to be at the Track and these physicians may be transported with Patients.

3.6 Stand-by Services. During this Agreement, AirLife shall provide Stand-by Services at
all times that are requested by County not less than two (2) months prior to the dates
Stand-by Services are to be provided.

3.7 Contingent Stand-by Services Timing. During this Agreement, AirLife shall provide
Stand-by Services at times that are contiguous to times that were requested by County not
less than two (2) months before the dates on which Stand-by Services were to be
provided if County is requested to provide Stand-by Services during the additional times
by COTA and these services are required as a result of factors beyond the control of
COTA.

4

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



3.8 Designation and Duties of Head Team Member. Subject to the approval of County and
COTA, AirLife agrees to designate a Team Member as Head Team Member to be
responsible for management of patient care services provided by the Team while based at
the Track. AirLife shall provide County with the names of the Team Members AirLife
intends to schedule for the minimum days needed thirty (30) days before each such event
so that County can provide COTA with these names four (4) weeks before each event
pursuant to its Agreement with COTA. AirLife shall will provide County with the names
of the Team Members AirLife intends to schedule for the contingent days within twenty-
two (22) hours after being notified of the contingent need so that County can provide
COTA with these names within twenty-four (24) hours after being notified.

3.9 Insurance. AirLife shall have the required standard insurance at least meeting the
General Requirements in 3.9.1 and sufficient to cover the needs of AirLife, pursuant to
applicable generally accepted business standards related to risks associated with AirLife’ s
operations at the Track. Depending on activities in which AirLife engages supplemental
insurance requirements or alternate insurance options may apply in addition to the
following:

3.9.1 General Requirements Applicable to All AirLife’s Insurance. AirLife
acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning insurance
requirements which are applicable to AirLife while providing Stand-by
Services under this Agreement:

3.9.1.1 AirLife shall maintain the minimum types and limits of insurance
indicated in 3.9.2 throughout the duration of the Agreement. This
insurance must be considered primary for all covered risks.

3.9.1.2 AirLife shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in the
State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher. If
use of surplus carriers is desired, these carriers are subject to
County approval.

3.9.1.3 Prior to AirLife commencing Stand-by Services, AirLife shall have
the required insurance in force as evidenced by a Certificate of
Insurance written on the state approved form and signed by the
writing agent or carrier.

3.9.1.4 AirLife shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse and
shall not permit its minimum limits of coverage to erode or
otherwise be reduced during any term of this Agreement. AirLife
shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured
retention.

3.9.1.5 AirLife shall submit the Certificate of Insurance to the Travis
County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days after (i)
execution of this Agreement by both parties or by (ii) the effective

5

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



date of this Agreement, whichever comes first. The Certificates of
Insurance for AirLife must include the following:

3.9.1.5.1 the Travis County contract number
3.9.1.5.2 all deductibles and self-insured retention
3.9.1.5.3 an endorsement which names Travis County as

Additional Insured where its interest may appear
3.9.1.5.4 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for

all claims
3.9.1.5.6 a Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) endorsement
3.9.1.5.7 a Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form

420601) endorsement

3.9.1.6 Upon its request and without expense, County is entitled to receive
certified copies of policies and endorsements.

3.9.1.7 AirLife acknowledges that County has the right to review
insurance requirements during any term of the Agreement and to
require that AirLife make reasonable adjustments when the scope
of its activities has changed or expanded.

3.9.1.8 Insurance coverage specified in this Agreement is not intended and
will not be interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the
AirLife.

3.9.2 Specific Requirements. The following requirements apply to the activities
of AirLife under this Agreement. AirLife shall comply with the following
aviation and non-aviation insurance requirements:

3.9.2.1 Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

3.9.2.1.1 Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits
outlined in the Texas Workers’ Compensation Act

3.9.2.1.2 Employers’ Liability limits are:
$250,000 bodily injury each accident
$250,000 bodily injury by disease

3.9.2.1.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

3.9.2.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance with air ambulance
professional healthcare liability clause for non-aviation related coverage:

6

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



3.9.2.2.1 Minimum limits for Coverage per occurrence:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage: $1,000,000
Damage to Rented Premises: $1,000,000
Medical expense (any one person) $5,000
Personal Injury or Advertisement $1,000,000

3.9.2.2.2 Policy aggregates:

General aggregate $3,000,000
Products Completed Operations aggregate $3,000,000

3.9.2.2.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

3.9.2.3 Automobile Liability Insurance Policy, any owned automobile:

3.9.2.3.1 Combined single limit each accident: $1,000,000

3.9.2.3.2 These policies shall apply to State of Texas and include
the following endorsements in favor of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

3.9.2.4 Aircraft Physical Damage and Liability Insurance as required by
FAA regulations:

3.9.2.4.1 Minimum limits for Coverage per occurrence:

Physical Damage: per monthly report
Aircraft Liability $50,000,000
Medical payments per person $50,000
Personal Injury or Advertisement $1,000,000

3.9.2.4.2 Policy aggregates:

General aggregate $3,000,000
Products Completed Operations aggregate $3,000,000

3.9.2.4.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)

7

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

3.9.2.5 Professional Liability Insurance:

3.9.2.5.1 Minimum limits for Coverage per paramedic:

Professional Liability: $1,000,000

3.9.2.5.2 Policy aggregates:

General aggregate $1,000,000

3.9.2.5.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of the State of
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor
of Travis County:

Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)

3.10 Accidents and Injuries to Team Members. AirLife will be responsible for any Track-
related accidents or injuries suffered by AirLife Team Members as a result of its
negligence or willful misconduct. COTA shall be responsible for these damages suffered
at the Track if they are caused by COTA’ s negligence or willful misconduct. AirLife will
be responsible for any accidents or injuries suffered by AirLife Team Members as a result
of its negligence or willful misconduct or that of its Team Members while en route to or
from Travis County and while in Travis County to provide Stand-by Services.

3.11 HIPAA Business Associate Agreement. AirLife shall execute and deliver the HIPAA
AirLife Business Associate Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B to
County simultaneously with this Agreement.

3.12 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys. At the end of each event for which
Stand-by Services are requested and before leaving County property, AirLife shall return,
and require that its Team Members return, all keys, access cards and other means of
access to county property that is provided to AirLife or its Team Members pursuant to
section 4.3 of this Agreement. AirLife shall not permit its Team Members to take or
retain any County property or any property of County employees from the hanger or the
crew quarters or the hanger. At the end of each event for which Stand-by Services are
requested and before leaving County property, AirLife shall return, and require that its
Team Members return, all emergency communications equipment provided by County
pursuant to section 4.4.

ARTICLE IV
County Obligations

4.1 Notification of Scheduling. County will notify AirLife of a request for Stand-by Services
within two weeks after receipt of notice of the request from COTA. The notification
shall be in writing and shall include the dates for which the aircraft and Team Members

8

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



are required for events, noting the minimum number of days for which Stand-by Services
are needed and estimating the additional number of days which might be needed on a
contingent basis. Not less than twenty (20) days before a scheduled event, County shall
notify AirLife of the dates and times Stand-by Services are to be provided by AirLife for
the minimum number of days and for the times Stand-by Services might be needed for
any contingent days. Not less than twenty (20) hours before additional contingent times
are needed, COTA shall notify County of the dates and times the Stand-by Services are to
be provided by AirLife for any contingent days.

4.2 Training for Team Members. County, through COTA, at COTA’s expense, shall provide
training for AirLife employees who might be Team Members. This training shall include
at least the following types of information: familiarization with the Track facilities and
procedures, the Track incident command structure, safety procedures at the Track
applicable to Stand-by Services, the applicable division of medical roles and
responsibilities, and any other Track related information needed by AirLife Team
Members to perform Stand-by Services.

4.3 Base Location for AirLife Aircraft. County shall provide AirLife with a secure location
with a helipad to land and keep its aircraft while providing Stand-by Services and for up
to twenty four (24) hours before the date and time for the first day on which the Stand-by
Services have been requested for an event and for up to two hours after the Stand-by
Services are completed on the final day on which Stand-by Services have been requested.
County shall also provide AirLife with access to its crew quarters at the Travis County
hanger, including allowing AirLife Team Members to stay overnight in the crew quarters,
while the AirLife aircraft is located at the secure location provided by County.

4.4 Emergency Communications Equipment. While AirLife is providing Stand-by Services,
County shall provide AirLife with appropriate wireless communications equipment, such
as portable radios used for emergency communications in Travis County for use by
AirLife Team Members.

ARTICLE V
Financial Arrangements

5.1 Stand-by Services Cost. County shall pay AirLife the amount invoiced at the rate of
Three Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and No Cents ($375.00) per hour for Stand-by
Services provided by AirLife. The number of hours invoiced include the hours that
County requested that the aircraft be available within a ten (10) minute response time
plus one (1) hour before the time County requested that the aircraft begin stand-by and
one (1) hour after the end of the time that County requested that the aircraft end stand-by
or the time that COTA releases the aircraft, whichever is later. County shall pay for the
hours that AirLife provides Stand-by Services, including the pre-event and preparation
activities and post event activities even if no other Stand-by Services are provided, on the
scheduled event days and for each additional day at the hourly fees in section 5.1.

5.2 IRS Pre-payment Requirement. AirLife shall provide County with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9, Request For Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, that is

9

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations,
before any agreement funds are payable.

5.3 Invoicing. AirLife shall invoice County by the 10th business day of the month following
the month in which Stand-by Services are rendered. AirLife shall submit the invoice to
the address to the STAR Flight Program Manager at the address in the address for notice.
Invoices shall include:

5.3.1 Name, address, and telephone number of AirLife and similar information
in the event payment is to be made to a different address;

5.3.2 County Contract or Purchase Order number;
5.3.3 Identification of services by dates and hours of service as outlined in the

agreement;
5.3.4 Number of hours, applicable hourly rates, and total amount; and
5.3.5 Any additional payment information which may be called for by the

agreement.

5.4 Payment. County will pay these invoices by check or warrant within thirty (30) days of
receipt of a complete and accurate invoice by Travis County Auditor, or upon satisfactory
performance, whichever is later. For any invoice not paid within thirty (30) calendar days
of receipt, County shall pay AirLife, in compliance with the Prompt Payment Act, TEx.
Gov’T CODE ANN. ch. 2251 and that invoice bears interest in compliance with the Prompt
Payment Act.

5.5 Offset. Despite anything to the contrary in this agreement, if the AirLife is delinquent in
payment of property taxes at the time of providing Stand-by Services, AirLife hereby
assigns an amount of the equal to the amount AirLife is delinquent in property tax
payments to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent
taxes.

5.6 Other Expenses. Flight expenses associated with transfer from AirLife’ s hanger or crew
quarters are included in the fee in Section 5.1.

5.7 Patient Expenses and Transport. AirLife shall bill medical expenses and transport fees
related to Patient transport to an appropriate medical facility to the Patient, and County
and COTA shall have no financial responsibility for these expenses and fees. AirLife
may bill transport fees at its normal rates. Medical expenses and transport fees are the
responsibility of the Patient.

ARTICLE VI
Term and Termination;

6.1 Term. This Agreement shall begin on September 1, 2012 and end on December 31, 2015,
unless sooner terminated in accordance with this Agreement.

10

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



6.2 Renewal. At the end of December, 2015, if COTA and County extend the agreement
between them related to the services provided under this Agreement, AirLife and County,
upon mutual agreement, may renew this Agreement for one or more successive terms.

6.3 Termination without Cause. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, after
December 31, 2012, either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or
without cause, upon providing the other party with at least ninety (90) days written notice
of its intent to terminate the Agreement.

6.4 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time if the
other party engages in an act or omits doing anything that results in a material breach of
any material term or condition of this Agreement. In that circumstance, the party electing
to terminate this Agreement shall provide the breaching party with written notice
specifying the nature of the breach. The breaching party then has ten (10) County
working days from the date of the notice of breach to remedy the breach or to present a
mutually agreeable plan of correction designed to conform its conduct to this Agreement.
If corrective action is not taken within that time, that failure allows the aggrieved party to
terminate the Agreement at the conclusion of the ten (10) County working days from the
date of the notice of breach.

6.5 Immediate Termination by AirLife. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
AirLife may terminate this Agreement immediately upon any of the following events:

6.5.1 Upon County’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors, County’s petition
for relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of debtors, or
upon the initiation of such proceedings against County if the same are not
dismissed within forty-five (45) days of service; or

6.5.2 Upon COTA’s failure to comply with section 8.8.1 in this Agreement.

6.6 Immediate Termination by County. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
County may terminate this Agreement immediately upon any of the following events:

6.6.1 Upon AirLife’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors, AirLife ‘s petition
for relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of debtors, or
upon the initiation of such proceedings against AirLife if the same are not
dismissed within forty-five (45) days of service.

6.6.2 Upon AirLife’s failure to comply with the HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
it has executed in compliance with section 3.13.

6.6.3 Upon AirLife ‘s failure to maintain continuous insurance coverage required to be
maintained by AirLife under section 3.9.

6.6.4 Upon COTA ceasing operations of the Track; or

11

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



6.6.5 Upon COTA’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors, COTA’s petition for
relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of debtors, or upon
the initiation of such proceedings against COTA if the same are not dismissed
within forty-five (45) days of service.

6.7 Funding Out. Despite anything else to the contrary in this agreement, if, during the
budget planning and adoption process, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for
this agreement for the following fiscal year of County, County may terminate this
agreement after giving AirLife at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice that this
agreement is terminated due to failure to fund it.

6.8 Reporting. AirLife shall notify County within ten (10) working days of being served with
a summons or other legal document alleging professional negligence, or other injury
arising from the Stand-by Services of AirLife or an AirLife Team Member.

6.9 Reporting. County will notify AirLife within ten (10) working days of the date it receives
information concerning County’s general assignment for the benefit of creditors,
County’s petition for relief in bankruptcy or under similar laws for the protection of
debtors, or upon the initiation of such proceedings against County if these are not
dismissed within forty-five (45) days of service.

6.10 Effect of Termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement, neither party has further
rights against, or obligations to, the other party except (i) with respect to any rights or
obligations accruing prior to the date and time of termination, including any payments
due to AirLife hereunder, and (ii) any obligations, promises or agreements which
expressly extend beyond the termination.

6.11 Proprietary Information. AirLife agrees that upon termination of this Agreement, all of
COTA’s proprietary information in its customers, including but not limited to customer
lists, business processes, copyrighted items, software and related processes, diagnostics,
methodologies, formulas, works of authorship, submissions, customer information,
business plans and all business assets, tangible or intangible items which AirLife or
AirLife Team Members become aware of during this Agreement (collectively, “COTA
Proprietary Information”), remains the sole and exclusive property of COTA, and AirLife
shall not acquire any interest in COTA Proprietary Information or right to use COTA
Proprietary Information without the express written consent of COTA.

ARTICLE VII
Miscellaneous Provisions

7.1 Notice. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to be
given upon the earlier of (i) actual delivery to the intended party or its agent, or (ii) upon
the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. Any such notice shall be delivered to
the respective addresses set out below or to such other address as a party shall specify in
the manner required by this Section. The respective addresses are:

12

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



If to AirLife Texas AirLife, Inc.
Shawn Salter, President/CEO
7500 Highway 90 West
AT&T Bldg, Suite 220
San Antonio, TX 78227

If to County: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M.
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767-1748

With copies (certified or registered, not required) to:

Travis County
7800 Old Manor Road
Austin, Texas 78724
Attn: Casey Ping
STAR Flight Program Director

And to: David Escamilla
Travis County Attorney
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
File: 260.583

7.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B, and C, contains the entire
agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements, contracts and
understandings, whether written or otherwise, between the parties relating to the subject
matter of it.

7.3 Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be legally invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of the Agreement remain in full
force and effect provided the fundamental rights and obligations remain reasonably
unaffected.

7.4 AirLife. AirLife is performing the Stand-by Services and duties under this Agreement as
an independent contractor and not as an employee, agent, partner of, or joint venture with
County or COTA. AirLife is responsible for determining the manner in which Stand-by
Services are provided and insuring that Stand-by Services are rendered in a manner
consistent with this Agreement. No Team Member providing Stand-by Services is an
employee of County or COTA. County and COTA do not have and nothing in this
Agreement may be construed as giving that degree of control or direction on the part of
County or COTA that creates an employer-employee relationship between County or
COTA and any of the AirLife Team Members. County and COTA shall not control or
direct the practice of medicine or transport by AirLife. If an AirLife Team Member is
considered to be exercising medical or aviation judgment in the performance of the
Stand-by Services, the AirLife Team Member will employ his or her own means and

13

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



methods and exercise his or her own independent judgment in such instance; and in that
regard will not be subject to the control or direction of County or COTA with respect to
the means, methods or judgment so exercised by the AirLife Team Member.

7.5 Corporate Practice of Medicine. Nothing contained herein is intended to constitute the
use of a medical license or other health care-related license for the practice of medicine
by anyone other than a licensed physician, or other health care provider, such as nurses
and paramedics, or aid County or COTA or any other entity to practice medicine when, in
fact, such entity is not licensed to practice medicine.

7.6 Mediation. The parties firmly desire to resolve all disputes arising hereunder without
resort to litigation to protect their respective business reputations. Accordingly, any
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof,
shall first be submitted to mediation administered by a mutually acceptable mediator or
one appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with the Texas Civil
Practice and Remedies Code. Conclusions reached during such mediation shall be non
binding on the parties and shall be kept confidential by the parties to the greatest extent
possible without contravening the Texas Public Information Act. No disclosure of the
mediation proceeding shall be made by the parties except as required by the law or as
necessary or appropriate to effectuate the terms thereof. This section shall not prevent
either party from electing to terminate this Agreement in accordance with its termination
provisions or from pursuing all available legal remedies.

7.7 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into for the sole benefit of AirLife
and County. Nothing contained herein or in the parties’ course of dealings may be
construed as conferring any third party beneficiary status on any person or entity not a
party to this Agreement.

7.8 Confidentiality: Disclosure of Patient Information.

7.8.1 COTA is not permitted to request any exchange of protected health information
(PHI), as defined by the Health Information Privacy and Accountability Act
(HIPAA). If any PHI is required by COTA, before requesting the PHI, COTA is
required by its Agreement with County to execute and deliver the HIPAA
Business Associate Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A to the
Travis County Attorney at 314 West 11th Street, Austin, Texas during regular
County business hours.

7.8.2 AirLife and County acknowledge that in connection with the performance of the
Stand-by Services; AirLife, County, COTA, and their respective employees,
contractors and agents may acquire and make use of certain trade secrets and
confidential information of the other which may include management reports,
business or financial information, internal memoranda, reports, customer lists,
confidential technology, and other materials, records and/or information of a
proprietary nature (“COTA’ s Confidential Information”). Therefore, to protect
such Confidential Information, AirLife agrees that it and its employees,
contractors and agents shall not after the Effective Date of this Agreement use or

14

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



disclose COTA’s Confidential Information except as required in connection with
the performance of Stand-by Services. Upon termination of this Agreement,
AirLife shall not take or retain, without prior written authorization of COTA, any
of COTA’s Confidential Information of any kind. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
AirLife may use and retain such records as are necessary for purposes of medical
malpractice defense or as required by law.

7.9 Other Activities. It is agreed and understood by County that this Agreement shall not
prohibit AirLife or Team Members from engaging in the private practice of medicine
and/or other personal or professional ventures.

7.10 Headings. The section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for
convenience of reference purposes only and do not affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

7.11 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the state of Texas, without giving effect to its conflict of law provisions. All
Stand-by Services are performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue in the case of any
disputes shall be in Travis County, Texas.

7.12 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this agreement, the time shall
be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day
of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a day that Travis County has declared a
holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation. All hours
stated in this agreement are stated in Central Standard Time or in Central Daylight
Savings Time, as applicable.

7.13 Gender and Number. Words of any gender in this agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the
other unless the context in the agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.12 Amendment. This Agreement can be amended only by an instrument in writing signed
by both parties. Any change to the terms of this Agreement or any attachments to it shall
be made in writing and signed by both parties. The Purchasing Agent may at any time,
by written document, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement in any
one of the following:

7.12.1 Description of services;
7.12.2 Place of delivery; or
7.12.3 Any aspect of agreement to correct errors of a general administrative

nature or other mistakes, the correction of which does not affect the scope
of the Agreement and does not result in expense to AirLife.

If any change under subsection 7.12.3 causes an increase or decrease in the cost, or time
required for performance under this Agreement, the Commissioners Court shall make an
equitable adjustment in the fees and modify the Agreement. AirLife must submit any
“proposal for adjustment” to the Purchasing Agent within thirty (30) calendar days after

15

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



the date of receipt of the written order. The Purchasing Agent shall present AirLife’s
requests to Commissioners Court for consideration.

It is acknowledged by AirLife that no officer, agent, employee or representative of
County has any authority to change the scope of this agreement or any attachments or
exhibits to it, unless expressly granted that specific authority by the Commissioners
Court.

7.13 Assignment and Change of Name. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the
express written consent of the other party.

If a change of name is required due to any action initiated by AirLife, AirLife shall notify
the Purchasing Agent immediately. No change in the obligation of AirLife will be
recognized unless such change is approved by Commissioners Court.

ARTICLE VII
County General Terms and Conditions

8.1 Airlife Certifications.
8.1.1 AirLife certifies that it is a duly qualified, capable, and otherwise bondable

business entity that it is not in Receivership and does not contemplate same, and
has not filed for bankruptcy and does not contemplate same. AirLife further
certifies that it is not currently delinquent with respect to payment of property
taxes within County.

8.1.2 AirLife warrants that all applicable copyrights and licenses which may exist,
before or after this Agreement, exist on products or materials used in this
agreement have been and will be adhered to and further warrants that County is
not liable for any infringement or misappropriation of those rights. Any rights
granted to County shall apply for the duration of the Agreement. AirLife, at its
own expense, shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless County, its officers,
agents and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, losses,
damages, causes of action and liability of every kind including expenses of
litigation, other associated expenses, court costs and attorneys’ fees for damages
to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual
infringement or misappropriation of existing licenses or copyrights applicable to
products or materials used in this agreement. However, nothing in this subsection
may be construed as a waiver of county’s sovereign immunity and County retains
all of its affirmative defenses.

8.2 Monitoring. County reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of AirLife’s
compliance with the terms of this agreement, and of the adequacy and timeliness of
AirLife’s performance under this agreement. After each monitoring visit, County shall
provide AirLife with a written report of the monitor’s findings. If the report notes
deficiencies in AirLife’s performances under the terms of this agreement, it shall include
requirements and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by AirLife. AirLife

16

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



shall take the action(s) specified in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified
by County.

8.3 Disputes and Appeals. The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the
issuance and administration of this Agreement. Any document, notice, or
correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County
representative is null and void, unless otherwise stated in this agreement. If AirLife does
not agree with any document issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized
County representative, AirLife must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent
within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document and outline the exact points of
disagreement in detail. If the matter is not resolved to AirLife’ s satisfaction, AirLife may
submit a Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent,
within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply. AirLife then may
be heard by Commissioners Court. However, nothing in this section may be construed as
a waiver of County’s sovereign immunity and County hereby retains all of its affirmative
defenses.

8.4 Non-Waiver Of Default.
8.4.1 No payment, act or omission by County may constitute or be construed as a

waiver of any breach or default of AirLife which then exists or may subsequently
exist.

8.4.2 The rights and remedies of County under this agreement are cumulative. All
rights of County under this agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to County under
it. The exercise by County, in whole or in part, of any right or remedy under this
agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this
agreement or under any law, nor shall any right or remedy by be deemed a waiver
of any other rights or remedies.

8.5 Subcontracts:
8.5.1 In 8.5.1, “Historically Underutilized Business” or “HUB” means any entity or

association formed for the purpose of making a profit in which one (1) or more
persons who are educationally or economically disadvantaged because of their
identification as members of one of the following groups: African Americans,
Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, Native Americans or Women of any
ethnicity have the following rights:

8.5.1.1 Own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of the
shares of stock or other equitable securities and have incidents of
ownership, including an interest in profit and loss, equivalent to the
percentage of capital, equipment or expertise contributed to the business
where ownership is measured as though the community property interest of a
spouse is the separate property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in
writing that the non-participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her
spouse, and his or her community property, and not as if it is subject to the
community property interest of the other spouse; and

17

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



8.5.1.2 Have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation
in the control, operation and management of the busines&s affairs; where
control means having recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day
decisions affecting the business, and is be known to, and at least tacitly
acknowledged in day-to-day operations by employees of the business and by
those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title commensurate
with that control.

8.5.2.. ..AirLife shall not enter into any subcontracts for any service relating to the
performance of this agreement without the prior written approval or the prior
written waiver of this right of approval from County. It is acknowledged by
AirLife that no officer, agent, employee or representative of County has the
authority to grant such approval or waiver unless expressly granted that specific
authority by the Commissioners Court.

8.5.3 If a subcontract is approved, AirLife must make a “good faith” effort to take all
necessary and reasonable steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be
subcontractors under this Agreement. AirLife must obtain County approval of all
proposed HUB subcontractors through the Purchasing Agent. Failure by AirLife
to make a good faith effort to employ HUBs as subcontractors constitutes a
breach of this Agreement and may result in termination of this Agreement.

8.6 Force Maieure. If the performance by County of any of its obligations under this
agreement is interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own
conduct, whether such occurrence be an act of God or the result of war, riot, civil
commotion, sovereign conduct, or the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party
to this agreement, then County is excused from performance for the time reasonably
necessary to remedy the effects of that occurrence.

8.7 Forfeiture Of Agreement:

8.7.1 In 8.7, “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

8.7.1.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or other valuable
thing which is worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal
services or for purchase or use of any property interest, either real or personal,
either legal or equitable; or

8.7.1.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, services, or goods or otherwise
creating or having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more
than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year;

but does not include:

8.7.1.3 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting
Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the general public; or

18

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



8.7.1.4 Any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person
for personal, family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines
applicable to similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by
Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; or

8.7.1.5 A transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on
behalf of AirLife which is a national or multinational corporation by an agent,
employee or other AirLife representative who does not know and is not in a
position that he or she should have known about this Agreement.

8.7.2 In 8.7, “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Ethics
Affidavit attached as Exhibit C.

8.7.3 AirLife shall forfeit all benefits of the agreement and County shall retain all
performance by AirLife and recover all consideration or the value of all
consideration, paid to AirLife pursuant to this agreement if:

8.7.3.1 AirLife was doing business with any Key Contracting Person at the time
of submitting its proposal or had done business during the 365-day period
immediately prior to the date of which its proposal was due; or

8.7.3.2 AirLife does business with a Key Contracting Person at any time after the
date on which the proposal that resulted in this agreement and prior to full
performance of the agreement.

8.8 Conflict Of Interest Questionnaire. If required, AirLife shall file and update the Conflict
of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code.
AirLife acknowledges that the law requires the County to provide access to this
questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet Website.

8.9 Certification Of Eligibility: AirLife certifies that at the time of execution of this
Agreement, it was not on the federal government’s list of suspended, ineligible, or
debarred contractors. If AirLife is placed on the list during this Agreement, AirLife shall
notify the Purchasing Agent. False certification or failure to notify may result in
termination of this agreement for default.

8.10 Exemption From County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to the Texas :Local Government Code
section 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement be exempt from
the requirements of the County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of
professional services.

19

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and TEXAS AIRLIFE, INC. have duly executed this
Agreement as of the dates set out beneath their respective signatures.

Travis County (“County”)

By:

_____________________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge

Date:______________________________________

TEXAS AIRLIFE, INC.

2
By: ,.,-f7

Shawn Salter
President/CEO

Date: //,

Approved as to Legal Form By:

___________________________

Assistant County Attorney

Funds Verified By:

_________________________

Travis County Auditor

Approved by Purchasing:

__________________________

Travis County Purchasing Agent

20

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Exhibit A

COTA Business Associate Agreement

This Business Associate Agreement is made by the following parties: Circuit of the Americas,
LLC, 301 Congress Ave., Ste. 220, Austin, TX 78701 (“COTA”) and Travis County, a political
subdivision of Texas (“County”) pursuant to an Air Medical Coverage Agreement between them.

A. HIPAA Dominance. The purpose of this agreement is to satisfy the standards and requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), codified at 45 C.F.R. parts 160 and
164 and the federal Health Infonnation Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act codified at 42
U.S.C. Sections 17921-17953, as may be amended from time to time (“HITECH”). Capitalized terms
which are not defined shall have the meaning set forth in HIPAA or HITECH as applicable. In the event
of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of any other agreement between the Parties and this
language, this language controls. This language is required by HIPAA and HITECH. The parties
acknowledge and agree that, beginning with the effective dates under HIPAA and HITECH, COTA will
comply with its obligations under this agreement and with all obligations of a business associate under
HIPAA, HITECH and any implementing regulations, as they exist at the time this agreement is executed
and as they are amended from time to time, for so long as this agreement is in place. To the extent that
COTA receives, processes or creates information which constitutes Protected Health Information (“PHI”),
COTA is a “Business Associate” who is directly subject to and must independently comply with the
business associate provisions of HIPAA and HITECH notwithstanding the provisions contained in this
agreement.

B. Protected Health Information. For purposes of these obligations PHI means all PHI in COTA’s
possession or under its control (e.g., agents) and all PHI collected, created or received by COTA or its
agents on pursuant to this agreement.

C. Employees. COTA agrees to instruct its employees and temporary agency employees regarding
the confidentiality, privacy and security of PHI. COTA shall not disclose to its personnel or permit them
to access, view, obtain, copy, review or use any PHI that is not necessary to their services to County.
COTA agrees to maintain performance standards in accordance with its policies and procedures,
including disciplinary actions, with respect to wrongful access to, copying, viewing, misuse or disclosure
of PHI.

D. Agents and Subcontractors. COTA shall ensure its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) (if
agents or subcontractors are permitted) are advised in writing of COTA’s obligations with respect to PHI.
COTA shall require that the permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) agree in writing to the restrictions
and obligations required by HIPAA. COTA also shall require its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s)
to agree in writing to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all County PHI. COTA agrees to make a list of such
agents and subcontractors available to County upon request.

E. Permissible Uses of PHI.
1. Using and Disclosing PHI. COTA may use or disclose PHI only as permitted by HIPAA
including management and administration of COTA, use of PHI as required by law, and use of PHI as
necessary to perform services pursuant to this Agreement.
2. Handling PHI. COTA further agrees to return or destroy any PHI that is erroneously shared or
delivered to COTA.
3. Minimum Necessary. COTA is permitted to access and use the minimum necessary PHI to the
extent required to perform its duties under this Agreement.

21

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



4. COTA’s Internal Management Uses of PHI. COTA may use PHI for management and
administration of COTA.
5. COTA Use for Own Purposes. COTA agrees not to use data that identifies County or PHI for its
own purposes or for the benefit of its other customers, without County’s prior written consent.

F. Security, Reporting and Recordkeeping.
1. Safeguards. COTA agrees to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical
safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all PHI. COTA agrees to implement
reasonable electronic security practices for County PHI which is transmitted, stored, received, or used in
electronic form.
2. Reporting. COTA will promptly report any actual or suspected privacy or security violations
made by its employees and/or agents to County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official and will
cooperate with County in the investigation of these incidents. Furthermore, COTA will (i) promptly
report to County any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by this HIPAA and! or HITECH language;
(ii) any successful security incident of which COTA becomes aware; and (iii) in summary form, upon
request of County, any unsuccessful security incident of which COTA becomes aware. If the definition
of “Security Incident” in the HIPAA regulation is modified to remove the requirement for reporting
“unsuccessful” security incidents, section (iii) above shall no longer apply as of the effective date of such
regulation modification.
3. Recordkeeping. COTA agrees to implement an appropriate record keeping process to enable it to
comply with HIPAA.
4. Following the discovery of a breach as defined in HITECH or HIPAA, COTA shall notify, in
writing, County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official within twenty-four (24) hours of any suspected
or actual Security Incident or breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or
electronic PHI (“ePHI”). The notice shall include, to the best extent reasonably possible, the identification
of each individual who’s unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to
have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed during the breach.
5. Mitigation. COTA agrees to mitigate any harmful effect that is known to COTA, including
known to its employees/agents / subcontractors, of a use or disclosure of PHI by COTA in violation of the
requirements of this Agreement.

G. Patient Rights With Respect To PHI.
1. COTA is advised that under HIPAA patients have the right to review their PHI; amend their
health records; request an accounting of disclosures of PHI and request restrictions on the use and
disclosure of PHI.
2. Notice of Patient Contact. COTA shall promptly notify the privacy officer of County if a patient
contacts COTA in connection with the patient’s PHI.
3. Assistance. To assist County in complying with HWAA, COTA shall, at any time during this
Agreement, make County PHI in its possession or under its control available to County within five (5)
business days of a County request.
4. Electronic Health Records Related to Treatment, Payment. or Operations. In the case of a direct
request for an accounting from an individual to COTA related to treatment, payment or operations
disclosures through electronic health records, COTA shall provide such accounting to the individual in
accordance with the applicable effective date of Section 13405(c) of HITECH. COTA shall document
such disclosures and provide County notice of the disclosure.

H. Notice of Legal Contact. If permitted by law or court order, COTA shall notify County in writing
of a disclosure request prior to disclosing County PHI if such disclosure is required by law or court order.

22

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



I. Amendment. Upon enactment of any law, regulation, court decision or relevant government
publication and/or interpretive policy affecting the use or disclosure of PHI, the parties will negotiate in
good faith to amend this Agreement as necessary to comply with same.

J. Access for Audit. COTA shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use
and disclosure of any PHI available to authorized government investigators for purposes of determining
COTA’s and County’s compliance with the HIPAA.

K. Termination of Relationship for Failure to Comply.
1. Immediate Termination and Cure. If COTA has violated a material requirement related to
HIPAA, County may immediately terminate its relationship with COTA upon written notice to COTA
specifying in detail the alleged violation without damages or liability to COTA.

2. PHI Obligations upon Termination or Expiration. COTA shall return (and not retain any copies
of) all PHI in its possession or under its control as soon as possible (in no event more than twenty (20)
business days) after the termination/expiration of this Agreement. If it is not feasible for COTA to return
PHI, then COTA shall notify County of the reasons for being unable to return PHI in writing and must, at
a minimum, maintain PHI in confidence as required by this Agreement and HIPAA for so long as the
County PHI exists in COTA’s possession. COTA shall not transfer possession of County PHI without
prior written approval of County. If at any time COTA determines it is unable to protect County PHI,
COTA shall destroy all County PHI and all copies and maintain proof of such destruction.

Travis County (“County”)

By:

____________________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge

Date:_____________________________________

CIRCUIT OF THE AMERICAS, LLC (“COTA”):

By:______
Title:______

Date:______

23

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Exhibit B

AirLife Business Associate Agreement

This Business Associate Agreement is made by the following parties: Texas AirLife, Inc., Shawn
Salter, President/CEO, 7500 Highway 90 West, AT&T Bldg, Suite 220, San Antonio, TX 78227
(“AirLife”) and Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas (“County”) pursuant to an Air Medical
Coverage Agreement between them.

A. HTPAA Dominance. The purpose of this agreement is to satisf’ the standards and requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), codified at 45 C.F.R. parts 160 and
164 and the federal Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act codified at 42
U.S .C. Sections 17921-17953, as may be amended from time to time (“HITECH”). Capitalized terms
which are not defined shall have the meaning set forth in HIPAA or FIITECH as applicable. In the event
of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of any other agreement between the Parties and this
language, this language controls. This language is required by HIPAA and HITECH. The parties
acknowledge and agree that, beginning with the effective dates under H1PAA and HITECH, AirLife will
comply with its obligations under this agreement and with all obligations of a business associate under
HIPAA, HITECH and any implementing regulations, as they exist at the time this agreement is executed
and as they are amended from time to time, for so long as this agreement is in place. To the extent that
AirLife receives, processes or creates information which constitutes Protected Health Information
(“PHI”), COTA is a “Business Associate” who is directly subject to and must independently comply with
the business associate provisions of HIPAA and HITECH notwithstanding the provisions contained in
this agreement.

B. Protected Health Information. For purposes of these obligations PHI means all PHI in AirLife’s
possession or under its control (e.g., agents) and all PHI collected, created or received by AirLife or its
agents on pursuant to this agreement.

C. Employees. AirLife agrees to instruct its employees and temporary agency employees regarding
the confidentiality, privacy and security of PHI. AirLife shall not disclose to its personnel or permit them
to access, view, obtain, copy, review or use any PHI that is not necessary to their services to County.
AirLife agrees to maintain performance standards in accordance with its policies and procedures,
including disciplinary actions, with respect to wrongful access to, copying, viewing, misuse or disclosure
of PHI.

D. Agents and Subcontractors. AirLife shall ensure its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) (if
agents or subcontractors are permitted) are advised in writing of COTA’s obligations with respect to PHI.
AirLife shall require that the permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s) agree in writing to the restrictions
and obligations required by HIPAA. AirLife also shall require its permitted agent(s) and subcontractor(s)
to agree in writing to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all County PHI. AirLife agrees to make a list of such
agents and subcontractors available to County upon request.

E. Permissible Uses of PHI.
1. Using and Disclosing PHI. AirLife may use or disclose PHI only as permitted by HIPAA
including management and administration of AirLife, use of PHI as required by law, and use of PHI as
necessary to perform services pursuant to this Agreement.
2. Handling PHI. AirLife further agrees to return or destroy any PHI that is erroneously shared or
delivered to AirLife.

24

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



3. Minimum Necessary. AirLife is permitted to access and use the minimum necessary PHI to the
extent required to perform its duties under this Agreement.
4. AirLife’s Internal Management Uses of PHI. AirLife may use PHI for management and
administration of AirLife.
5. AirLife Use for Own Purposes. AirLife agrees not to use data that identifies County or PHI for
its own purposes or for the benefit of its other customers, without County’s prior written consent.

F. Security, Reporting and Recordkeeping.
1. Safeguards. AirLife agrees to implement reasonable administrative, physical and technical
safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all PHI. AirLife agrees to implement
reasonable electronic security practices for County PHI which is transmitted, stored, received, or used in
electronic form.
2. Reporting. AirLife will promptly report any actual or suspected privacy or security violations
made by its employees and/or agents to County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official and will
cooperate with County in the investigation of these incidents. Furthermore, AirLife will (i) promptly
report to County any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by this HIPAA and/ or HITECH language;
(ii) any successful security incident of which AirLife becomes aware; and (iii) in summary form, upon
request of County, any unsuccessful security incident of which AirLife becomes aware. If the definition
of “Security Incident” in the HIPAA regulation is modified to remove the requirement for reporting
“unsuccessful” security incidents, section (iii) above shall no longer apply as of the effective date of such
regulation modification.
3. Recordkeeping. AirLife agrees to implement an appropriate record keeping process to enable it
to comply with HIPAA.
4. Following the discovery of a breach as defined in HITECH or HIPAA, AirLife shall notify, in
writing, County’s Privacy Official and/or Security Official within twenty-four (24) hours of any suspected
or actual Security Incident or breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or
electronic PHI (“ePHI”). The notice shall include, to the best extent reasonably possible, the identification
of each individual who’s unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to
have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed during the breach.
5. Mitigation. AirLife agrees to mitigate any harmful effect that is known to AirLife, including
known to its employees/agents I subcontractors, of a use or disclosure of PHI by AirLife in violation of
the requirements of this Agreement.

G. Patient Rights With Respect To PHI.
1. AirLife is advised that under HIPAA patients have the right to review their PHI; amend their
health records; request an accounting of disclosures of PHI and request restrictions on the use and
disclosure of PHI.
2. Notice of Patient Contact. AirLife shall promptly notify the privacy officer of County if a patient
contacts AirLife in connection with the patient’s PHI.
3. Assistance. To assist County in complying with HIPAA, AirLife shall, at any time during this
Agreement, make County PHI in its possession or under its control available to County within five (5)
business days of a County request.
4. Electronic Health Records Related to Treatment, Payment, or Operations. In the case of a direct
request for an accounting from an individual to AirLife related to treatment, payment or operations
disclosures through electronic health records, AirLife shall provide such accounting to the individual in
accordance with the applicable effective date of Section 13405(c) of HITECH. AirLife shall document
such disclosures and provide County notice of the disclosure.

H. Notice of Legal Contact. If permitted by law or court order, AirLife shall notify County in
writing of a disclosure request prior to disclosing County PHI if such disclosure is required by law or
court order.

25

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



I. Amendment. Upon enactment of any law, regulation, court decision or relevant government
publication and/or interpretive policy affecting the use or disclosure of PHI, the parties will negotiate in
good faith to amend this Agreement as necessary to comply with same.

J. Access for Audit. AirLife shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use
and disclosure of any PHI available to authorized government investigators for purposes of determining
COTA’s and County’s compliance with the HIPAA.

K. Termination of Relationship for Failure to Comply.
1. Immediate Termination and Cure. If AirLife has violated a material requirement related to
HIPAA, County may immediately terminate its relationship with AirLife upon written notice to AirLife
specifying in detail the alleged violation without damages or liability to AirLife.

2. PHI Obligations upon Termination or Expiration. AirLife shall return (and not retain any copies
of) all PHI in its possession or under its control as soon as possible (in no event more than twenty (20)
business days) after the termination/expiration of this Agreement. If it is not feasible for AirLife to return
PHI, then AirLife shall notify County of the reasons for being unable to return PHI in writing and must, at
a minimum, maintain PHI in confidence as required by this Agreement and HIPAA for so long as the
County PHI exists in COTA’s possession. AirLife shall not transfer possession of County PHI without
prior written approval of County. If at any time AirLife determines it is unable to protect County PHI,
AirLife shall destroy all County PHI and all copies and maintain proof of such destruction.

Travis County (“County”)

By:

_______________________

Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge

Date:______________________________

TEXAS AIRLIFE, INC. (“AirLife”):

By:___________________
Shawn Salter
President/CEO

Date:__________

26

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Exhibit C

ETHICS AFFiDAVIT
STATE OF TEXAS §

§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

Date: -

Name of Affiant:

______________________

Title of Affiant: &est ci ‘t4
. c-

Business Name: _Texas AirLife, Inc.__________________________
County of AirLife: (Z

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by AirLife to make this affidavit for AirLife.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. AirLife has received the list of Key Contracting Persons which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit 1 to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit A with whom AirLife is doing
business or has done business during the 365-day period immediately before the date of this affidavit.

Signature of Affiant

5jJ Sci4z
Printed name

Address of Affiant

J 4,q,4 ,); 7_ 7?z; i

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by /7& on Z4 2O

Notary Public, State of Texas

2 //‘t’yped or pri ed name of notary

My commission expires: ///2’’/r

27

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



EXHIBIT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

March 27, 2012

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant Cheryl Aker
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct I (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Kurt Sauer Daffer McDaniel, LLP
Executive Assistant Loretta Farb
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Leonard 1-luber Retired
Executive Assistant Carry Brown
Executive Assistant Lori Duarte
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Susan Spataro, CPA
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Joe Harlow
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Tamara Armstrong
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge
Director, Health Services Division Vacant
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter*
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant TV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P.
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Waich
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant LII C.W. Bruner, CTP
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis
Star Flight Program Director Casey Ping

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Oralia Jones, CPPB 07/31/12
County Executive, Planning & Budget Rodney Rhoades 08/19/12
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Diana Gonzalez 12/16/12
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 03/09/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M 03/14/13

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By: Darla Vasterling Phone #: 854-7564 
Division Director/Manager: Ann.a M. Btlin ACCP, Division Director of 
Development Services c-'<7'(A:WLt\ 
Department Head: Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR
 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the use of an
 
Alternative Fiscal Agreement for the Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 3 in Precinct
 
One.
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:
 
The developer of the subject subdivision requests to enter into an alternative fiscal
 
agreement with Travis County. Under the alternative fiscal agreement the plat will be
 
held in abeyance while the street and drainage facilities are constructed.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the use of the subject
 
agreements meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends the
 
approval of the proposed motions.
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
 
Under Alternative Fiscal the County Executive of TNR holds the plat in abeyance
 
and, upon completion of the items listed below, the Division Director of Development
 
Services authorizes the issuance of a Basic Development Permit #08-0219 for
 
construction of streets and drainage facilities.
 

Plat Status
 
Staff has reviewed the plat and all comments have been addressed. It meets current
 
standards and has everything in place such that it could be recommended for
 
approval and recordation at this time. It is the City of Pflugerville's procedure not to
 
approve the plat until the improvements are built.
 

Restoration/Erosion Control Fiscal
 
The fiscal for the subdivision restoration and improvements have been posted with
 
Travis County using a Letter of Credit in the amount of $165,000.00.
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 15



Page 2
 
June 5,2012
 

Access to Publicly Maintained Road
 
The Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 3 takes access from Winding Shore Lane and
 
Misty Shore Lane in the Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 1. The Lakeside at
 
Blackhawk Section 1 is maintained by Travis County.
 

WasteWater Service
 
Wastewater service for this subdivision will be provided by the City of Pflugerville.
 

Construction Plans and Engineer's Estimate of Construction Cost Approved
 
All comments by Travis County staff have been addressed and the reviewer is
 
prepared to sign the cover sheets of the plans and issue permit #08-0291. The
 
estimated cost of the improvements is $1,678,153.18. This amount includes all costs
 
related to the construction of all streets and drainage facilities (including temporary
 
erosion controls and all structures contributing to the total detention).
 

The developer has signed the attached statement acknowledging that this action
 
does not imply or guarantee plat approval by the Commissioners Court and that
 
he/she understands the constraints related to the use of alternate fiscal. An
 
Extension of Sixty-Day Period for Completed Plat Application Final Action is also
 
included.
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Alternative Fiscal Acknowledgment
 
Exhibit "A" - Description
 
Extension of Sixty-Day Period
 
Letter of Credit
 
Plat
 
Location Map
 

~QUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
dl 11\1 

McDonald""~ynthia~t" Financial Manager Tt\lR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director, TNR 854-7561 

Development Services 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



cc.
 
John Ellis Engineering Review TNR 854-9805 
Michael Hettenhausen Subdivision Planner TNR 854-7563 

AB:SM:dv 
1101 • Development Services· 
1105· Subdivision· Lakeside at Blackhawk Sec 3 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Exhibit 82.401 (D) 
(d) Alternative Fiscal Policy Request and Acknowledgement 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

TO THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS: 

The undersigned Owner proposes to subdivide that certain tract of land more 
particularly described in Exhibit "A", which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. The owner requests that the Travis County's Transportation and Natural 
Resources Department ("TNR") hold the proposed plat of the land in abeyance 
until all of the proposed subdivision Improvements have been constructed to 
Travis County Standards for the Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivision (the "Standards") to the satisfaction of the Executive Manager of 
TNR. In order to qualify for this Alternative Fiscal Policy, the proposed 
subdivision must meet the access criteria set forth in the Standards. 

Under this Policy. the Owner is not required to post fiscal Security to secure the 
construction of the Improvements, but is required to obtain a Travis County 
Development Permit. The owner will be required to post fiscal for boundary street 
improvements if they are not to be completed during the construction of the 
Improvements. Additionally, the Owner shall file Security with the submitted Final 
Plat to secure restoration of disturbed areas should construction not be 
completed. 

Upon satisfactory completion of the Improvements. the submitted plat shall be 
forwarded by TNR to the Commissioners Court for approval and recording. 

If the Owner elects to proceed under this option, the Owner acknowledges and 
agrees that, until the plat is filed the Owner may not use the proposed 
subdivision's description in a contract to convey real property, unless the 
conveyance is expressly contingent on the recording and approval of the final 
plat and the purchaser is not given the use or the occupancy of the real property 
before the recording of the final plat, under penalty of prosecution under Section 
12.002 of the Texas Property Code. In addition, the approval of Alternative Fiscal 
in no way constitutes approval of the proposed plat. 

If the plat is to be approved and filed, the Owner must post Security in the 
amount of 10% of the cost of the Improvements to secure the performance of the 
construction of the Improvements for one year from the date of the approval of 
the plat and the acceptance of the construction by the County. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Executed this __ day of _ 

OWNER: 

By: _~:::.....---=~____=::... _ ~--
Name: ~6af IIr;{"u(U44, 

TrtJe: "<~
AuthOrizeRei)resentative 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

By: __--:-- _ 
County Judge 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS §
 
§
 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me by on the 
__ day of , in the capacity stated herein. 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 

Printed or typed name of notary 
My commission expires: _ 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 3 - 27.60 Acres 

A PARCEL OF LAND IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A PORTION OF THE A. BAILEY 
SURVEY No. 34 AND A PORTION OF THE VW. SWEARENGEN SURVEY No. 32 AND 
BEING A PORTION OF THAT 88.189 ACRES TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ROBERT M. 
TIEMANN BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT No. 2000127193 OF THE OFFICIAL 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT 
95.256 ACRES TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SAID ROBERT M. TIEMANN BY DEED 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 12625, PAGE 570 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGIN at 1/2" iron rod found for the southeast corner of Lakeside At Blackhawk Section 1, a 
subdivision according to the plat of record in Document No. 200200011 of the Official Public 
Records of Travis County, Texas, same being in the south line of said 95.256 acres tract and 
the north line of Fairways of Blackhawk, Phase IV, a subdivision according to the plat of record 
in Document No. 200200058 of the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE with the east line of said Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 1 plat the following eight (8) 
courses: 

1.	 N.49°07'14"E. a distance of 265.38 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set on a non-tangent curve to the left, 

2.	 northwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 44.82 feet (said curve having a 
radius of 375.00 feet, a central angle of 06°50'51" and a chord bearing N.44°18'12'W., 
44.79 feet) to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ SURVEYING" previously 
set, 

3.	 N.42°16'23"E. a distance of 120.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set, 

4.	 N.73°04'15"E. a distance of 169.28 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set, 

5.	 N.25°37'45'W. a distance of 66.73 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set, 

6.	 N.64°24'03"E. a distance of 170.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set on a non-tangent curve to the left, 

7.	 northwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 59.73 feet (said curve having a 
radius of 450.00 feet, a central angle of Or36'16" and a chord bearing N.29°24'05'W., 
59.68 feet) to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ SURVEYING" previously 
set, and 

8.	 N.56°47'47"E. a distance of 163.79 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set; 

THENCE crossing said 88.189 acres tract the following ten (10) courses; 

1.	 S.20052'56"E. a distance of 118.68 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, . 

2.	 S.1r18'12"E. a distance of 81.91 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

3.	 S.54°19'41"E. a distance of 90.50 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

4.	 N.73°55'00"E. a distance of 87.47 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

5.	 S.16°05'00"E. a distance of 30.47 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

6.	 N.80007'14"E. a distance of 273.04 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

7.	 S.10016'01"E. a distance of 179.99 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set on a non-tangent curve to the right, 

8.	 westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 4.29 feet (said curve having a radius 

Page 1 of 2
 
S:\LAND851-900\857\857-FNs.rtf
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 3 - 27.60 Acres 

of 634.63 feet, a central angle of 00°23'15" and a chord bearing S.79°55'37'W., 4.29 
feet) to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ SURVEYING" set, 

9.	 S.80007'14'W. a distance of 6.95 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" set, 

1O. S.09°52'46"E. a distance of 120.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set for the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block B, Lakeside at 
Blackhawk II, Phase 1A, a subdivision according to the plat of record in Document No. 
200700072 of the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas; 

THENCE with the south and west lines of said Lot 3, Block B the following two (2) courses: 

1.	 S.12°46'45"E. a distance of 332.52 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set, and 

2.	 S.8r19'46"E. a distance of 539.44 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set for the southeast corner of said Lot 3, Block B, same 
being in the west line of Lot 2, Block B, said Lakeside at Blackhawk II, Phase 1A; 

THENCE with said west line of Lot 2, Block B the following two (2) courses: 

1.	 S.06°55'02"E. a distance of 366.89 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set, and 

2.	 S.13° 14'00'W. a distance of 387.05 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RJ 
SURVEYING" previously set in the south line of said 88.189 acres tract for the 
southwest corner of said Lot 2, Block B; 

THENCE N.59°58'22'W., with said south line of said 88.189 acres tract a distance of 1049.90 
feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for an angle point in said south line of the 88.189 acres tract; 

THENCE S.31°32'54'W., with said south line of the 88.189 acres tract a distance of 37.66 feet 
to a 1/2" iron rod found for the northeast corner of said Fairways of Blackhawk, Phase IV; 

THENCE N.60005'25'W., with said south line of the 88.189 acres tract and the north line of said 
Fairways of Blackhawk, Phase IV, a distance of 780.58 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for the 
southwest corner of said 88.189 acres tract, same being the southeast corner of said 95.256 
acres tract; 

THENCE N.60010'13'W., with said south line of the 95.256 acres tract and the north line of said 
Fairways of Blackhawk, Phase IV, a distance of 173.11 feet to said POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 27.60 acres, more or less. 

~:~nfY~ tI~~. (7; :t,tJt7,9 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5741
 
State of Texas
 

RJ Surveying, Inc. 
1212 East Braker Lane 
Austin, Texas 78753 

Page 2 of 2
 
S:\LAND851-900\857\857-FNs.rtf
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



---

EXHIBIT 82.201 (C) 
EXTENSION OF SIXTY DAY PERIOD FOR COMPLETED PLAT APPLICATION FINAL ACTION 

Date: _ 

Owner's Name and Address: Rowe Lane Deve1 oprnent, Ltd. 

4421 Rowe Ln. 

PflugeNille, TX 78660 _ 

Proposed Subdivision Name and Legal Description (the "Property"): Lakeside @ Blackhawk Section 3 

The undersigned Owner and the Executive Manager of Travis County Transportation and Natural 
Resources Department hereby agree that the sixty (60) day period for final action to be taken on a 
Completed Plat Application for the Property is hereby extended by mutual agreement and without 
compulsion until the date that all subdivision requirements have been met to Travis County standards to 
the satisfaction of the Executive Manager of TNR. 

Executed and affective as of the date set forth below. 

:nec ;;v;;;_n__
Name: 

Title: 
Authorized Representative 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 23rd day of January ,20 0 8 

by Robert Tiemann of Travis County, Texas known to me personally or on the basis of an 

approved form of identification, in the capacity stated. 

flt:·--ew 
No\-dry Public, State of T_e_~_a_s _ 

My Commission Expires: 2/ 1 1 /08 

JENNY A. POLlARD 
Nolaly Pul:Aic, Slate 01 Texas 
My~Expiras 

FEBRUARY 11,2008 

Jenny A. Pollard 

(Printed Name of Notary) 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County ~!Jl 

By: ~~ 
\.J

County Executive 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

'/ ~+h J1I . 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the L!::J day Of~ ,20 /2 
by 5te,,"{1'1 fn .11)Cli1·l.H.a.... of Travis County, Texas known to me personal y or on the basis of an 

approved form of identification, in the capacity stated. 

Notary Public, State of ----'-i... _(J,,"'-'=C;;;.:l""5'-

My Commission Expires: 4- -/1 -2[)14
Q(U'1)I~Vl Jj) }YfiJ _ 

(Printed Name of Notary) 

After Completing Return To: 

Travis County, Texas 
Attention: Carolyn Draper 
Transportation and Natural Resources uepartment 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Letters of Credit Department 
1200 San Bernardo AveJ9JIBC laredo, TX 78040 
Tel: (956) 722· 7611 Ext. 26~)20 Fax: (956) 72",,674BANK$ Ernail: icdepartment@ibC.com C";\jI,'IFT: iBGLUS,i4 

We Do More Member International Bancshares CQrp<"rallont\il'~r\t)er FDiC 

IRREVOCABLE L.ETTER OF CREDIT NO. SBP702266 

TO:	 Travis County, Texas
 
411 W. 13th Street, 9th Floor
 
Austin, TX 78701
 

ISSUER:	 International Bank of Commerce 

CUSTOMER:	 Robert M. Tiemann and wife, Carrie Parker Tiemann
 
4421 Rowe Lane
 
Pflugerville, Texas 78660
 

AMOUNT:	 USD 165,000.00 (One Hundred and Sixty Five Thousand U.S. Dollars) 

SUBDIVISION:	 Lakeside at Blackhawk Section 3 

DATE:	 May 18,2012 

EXPIRATION DATE:	 July 18. 201 5 

The ISSUER hereby establishes this Credit and shall duly honor all drafts drawn and presented in 
accordance with this Credit. Travis County may draw on the ISSUER for the account of the CUSTOMER 
up to the aggregate AMOUNT. 

This Credit is conditioned on the performance of the duties of the CUSTOMER prior to the Expiration 
Date to provide for the construction and completion of the street and drainage improvements in the 
SUBDIVISION to current Travis County Standards for the construction of Roads and Drainage in 
Subdivision (the "Standards"), so that the Improvements arc performing to the Standards upon the 
approval of the construction of the Improvements and the acceptance of the public Improvements by the 
Commissioners Court and at the end of the one-year public Improvement construction performance 
period, which commences upon the acceptance. 

The only requirement necessary to draw on any part or all of the total amount of this Credit is a letter 
from the County judge indicating that the County considers a drawing on this Letter of Credit necessary 
in order to complete all or part of the SUHDrVISION Improvements to the County Standards. No further 
substantiation of the necessity of the draw is required by this Letter. 

Partial reductions in the amount of this Credit may be allowed. MUltiple recoveries less than the IOtal 
amount of the Credit are allowed. Upon the acceptance of the Improvements, the Credit will be reduced to 
ten percent of the cost of the public Improvements which include common area sidewalks. If this Letter of 
Credit is unenforceable as a statutory obligation, the ISSUER shall be bound by this contract as a 
common law obligation. 

5131'702266 Page 1 01'2 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Leiters of Credit Deparunoot 
1200 San Bemardo Ave J9JIBC 
Laredo. TX 78040 
Tef: (956) 722-7611 Ext 2652iJ Fax: (956) /;)(:)·667·1BANK» Email: Icdepartmenl@ibC:.com SWiFT: i8CLUS44 
fy1amber fn1eroAtlonai Bancshares Cor~)Qranon~r\ilernbor FUleWe Do More 

Drafts must be presented on or before the EXPIRA nON DATE by the close of business and will be 
honored within five (5) calendar days of presentment. In lieu of drawing on the Security, the County, in 
its discretion, may accept a substitute Security in the then current amount of the estimated cost of the 
constructing the Improvements. This credit may be revoked only by the written consent of the ISSUER 
and the County. 

Except as expressly set forth herein, this credit is governed by the "Uniform Customs and Practices for 
Documentary Credits [International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 600 (2007 Revisionj]. 

ISSUER: International Bank of Commerce 

ADDRESS OF ISSUER: 
1200 San Bernardo Ave. 
Laredo, TX 78040 

SBP702266 Page 2 of2 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



~-.( / , 

\ 

/	 {, / 

2_	 ',< ROBtRT M. TTDJANN
BLOCK 2 \	 l/EMA!NIJ[J/ OFTRACT / 

L2 88. o H58'''' ,', 
U ". ' HRDU~"''' 
L4 • 82. H.'03,n,·

' lS ss. Hm3,n,' 
'8 '( . ""03''''''' 
L7 

\ 

/:/
/, 

// I 
// I 

/ -: I 
I 
I 

LOCATION MAP 
SCAl.£: '-.800' 

.I 

I 
I 

4'~0-t. 
N	 "'0' 6'0-00 

~1ft.-6"
 
~"'" -<>~
 

51,..DATk	 "1~o? ~<l'~	 'e 
.;REk 27.60ACRES ~S&i:'1«; SURVEY.'	 A. 8A1LtrSUR1£(NO. J4 t/I,l" &('"L< 

~ W SI!fARENCEN SURVEr NO. J2 4y tb,(5'~<'O 
LOIS: 54 t" If1. ;t::.~ 6/ SINGlE rAJ/it Y q .1 0o?< 

.e 1 UFT STArrOl/, OPEN SPACE, PIJ8IJC PARK. O£ I< PUE (lOT I, 8/.OCK 2) ~k°<l' 
1 OPEN SPACE (lOT6. 8/.oCK I)
 
1 OPEN sPAC£, PUBUC PARK, Of, I< PfJE (LOT 26, BLOCK 2)
 

BLOC/(S: 4i 
f
 

UNEAR FEET OFNEW SIIIff,,"
 
19()(J /JIsrr SHORt LANE
 

785 1+tN00NG SHORE LANE ~~
 
15$ MOI1Nl! WA TER LAN( 

!	 
s2841 TOTAL I£GENO, . ~/"lsb,..9
 

/:<4~
 
aU//J)iNG SETBACKS PROPERTY DOOFR I SVBO/lAOER: DE DRAINAGE EASEMENT "'l:;%"%(~ ~
 

PUE PUBUC umtr EASS/ENT .,..~
 
.n	 LAK£SID€ ATBLACKHAItK 4, LID. .~,,", 

CONTACT: ROBERT M. TIEMANN25' - FRONT WIlf WASIl" WA ~ EASEMENT
 
2D'- R£AR P.O. BOX1190 SLE S1CHT UHf fAS£JJENT v

e <l<)p0
 Sh 
5' - SlOl Pfl.UG(R't1l.1£ TCXAS 7869/	 CENTfRUNf O<~!i110' - CORNER LOT. STREIT SlOE 

FOONO 1/2' I!ION ROO•	 I§!<~ 
o srr 1/2' IRON ROO 11171/ RJSURVE'r1NG GAP

OATEo' AUG. J, 2011 SCALE': i: "'" 100' 
CONCRfTC MONUMENT•

RANDALL JONES & ASSOCIA TES ENGINEERING, INC. Iill]] "'NIUUU nNI:JI£D FlOOR ElEVATION	 ~ ._ .. - -_ ...__ . ", .. ",_.. _.. - ----

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



I
lIJ 
U 

:::!: 
a.. 

""" """ r:..: 
a 
n 
IX) 
a 
a 
N 
<, 
N 

<, 
N 

LOCA TlON MAP (NOT TO SCALE) 

LAKESIDE AT BLACKHA WI< SECTION J 
DATE: FEB. 12, 2008 SCALE: NONE 

RJ SURVEYING &' ASSOCIA TES, INC. 
1212 E. BRAKER LAN£ AUSnN, TEXAS 78753 

(512) 836-4793 FAX: (512) 836-4817 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By: David Greear, P.E. Phone #: 854-7650 
Division Director/Manager: Donald W. Ward, P.E., Division Director, Road 
Maintenance and Flee~ices . f.0c
 

-~ . 

Department Head: Steven M. Ma~E.. ounty Executive-TNR
 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Gomez, Precinct Four
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the Transportation
 
Plan inculded in the Mass Gathering Permit Application submitted by Circuit of the
 
Americas (COTA) with regards to the Formula One Grand Prix to be held November
 
16-18, 2012 as well as related traffic regulations in Precinct Four.
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:
 
COTA has submitted a transportation plan as part of the overall Mass Gathering
 
Permit for the Formula One Grand Prix that summarizes their approach for getting
 
120,000 spectators to the race. The Plan includes different modes of transporation,
 
directions and amount of traffic entering/exiting from different locations as well as the
 
use of contra-flow lanes. County regulations will need to be approved to allow the
 
use of contra-flow as well as restricting pedestrians, bicycists and parked vehicles
 
from surrounding roadway right-of-ways.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed transportation plan as well as the
 
related regulations.
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
 
N/A
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
 
All costs for developing and implementing the Transporation Plan are borne by
 
COTA.
 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS:
 
Transportation Plan
 
Regulations
 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 16

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text



Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc:
 
Don Ward, TNR Stephanie Jensen 
(854-9317) COA Public Safety 

GIS, (974-6446) 
David Greear, TNR TCSO Dispatch 
(854-7650 (974-0845 +3) 
Del Valle lSD, Bussing ESD #11 
(386-3150) (243-3477 

0101 - Administrative 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 
PREPARED FOR THE 

2012 UNITED STATES GRAND PRIX 
PREPARED BY PREPARED FOR 

.........1InII KimlIl'f'Hcm ............ CIRCUIT,· 

........., ., and Assoc:iaI8s, Inc.
 ~AMERICAS 
© 2012 KIf.1LEY-HoRN AND ASSOCIATES, INC 

DAVID SWEAZY, VICE PRESIDENT, OPERATIONS
 
]01 CONGRESS AVENUE, SUITE 220
 

AUSTIN, TX 78701
 
(512) 536-1458 DAVID,SWEA1Y@CIRCUITOFTHEAMERICASCOM
PLAN DEVELOPED: MAY 25, 2012 

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE 

// 
_.-./ 

C

,~8 to

~'~ (lJ 

S '\ t 
.::,,'1l I 0 

""ti.-€'r . I----.~ ~ 
Sto'€, " ~t ';~':"'(Z;>7 

--- :', ' <,, '<,.--- 13. <,---------. "" 'ABIA "-...B 

~!It~!l} 
. C~ 

'IJ/)O/) 

'!\ 
'1" i!' 

1i, .rji-:-;~"l 
, .,.. 
! kt2~T. 

/ 
ISltr/€,SO~ 

l 
.8 

cE.19 

.23 

~2 

~ ~ 
""Oy 

54-57 
• • (j 

40 • 
41. t' 

42" i:'!....., 

43. 
4".45' 

""""""P, 
'1l 'S " , 

S S<:: ~"""ie . [i •~":J 

l1400r~ 

16 
17 

5 Q) «.~ 
'IJ 26. 

27 

3, 
.38
• 

~ 

. 'f:::3~ 1148 7<./ 
4t. 37• . C'/f€'I)~i 

48 €' 

4!9 

or" 50~I
J 

•
001 
~ 

3 

qC'o ~(lJ
'6S0 'IJ- "V'.$' 

• 
34 

.,<. 
9 
-, 
"'-~-----
1. .~ 
~ 

t-!)O 
'IJ}€, V, 

.20 ~6'€'y 

e ,o€, 
qrC'€,<;::i

(lJ 

.30 

~,?,"".1 
.,33 
J. ~ 

"41

.,/ 

I~
969 Travis 

County 

Center 
Expo 

I~ 

/1;,"0 

~' 

_.sly 
',~,Bastrop County 

:..y..~"-/ - --;'! .. 
.... ~__S_HJJ..-f--J---.-?...---"'".".

&-;, 
':<",'J,:/ ~ 

j?/ '/)
'" 

-----~ ..11 
'" <S'ly
"~""""<7 ...~ 

....,"-. 

'- -. -,
~ 

~o ", 
...."" 

.21 
e32 

1:"114s.]sI:"~ "". 
'9€'rr>, "
 

""'S/
 

INDEX OF SHEETS 
1 Contact Info and General Notes 
2 PLACEHOLDER (for potential future use) 
3 Summary of Quantities 
4A Pre-Event Schematic - With Kellam 
4B Pre-Event Schematic - Without Kellam 
5A Post-Event Schematic - With Kellam 
5B Post-Event Schematic - Without Kellam 
6 Downtown Shuttle Route 
7 Expo Center Shuttle Route 
8 SH 71 & FM 973 
9 SH71&SH130 
10 SH 71 & Ross Road 
11 SH 71 & Wolf Lane 
12 SH 71 & SH 21 
13 US 183 & Metropolis Drive 
14 Ross Road & Thome Valley Drive 
15 US 183 & McKinney Falls Parkway 
16 FM 973 & Pearce Lane 
17 SH 130 & Pearce Lane 
18 Pearce Lane & Ross Road (W) 
19 Pearce Lane & Ross Road (E) 
20 Pearce Lane & Kellam Road 
21 Pearce Lane & Wolf Lane 
22 SH 21 & FM 535 
23 Ross Road & Heine Farm Road 
24 US 183 & Burleson Road 
25 Burleson Road & Emma Browning Avenue 
26 FM 973 & Elroy Road 
27 SH 130 & Elroy Road 
28 Elroy Road & Ross Road 
29 Elroy Road & McAngus Road 
30 Elroy Road & CoTA Boulevard/Kellam Road 
31 Elroy Road & Fagerquist Road 
32 Fagerquist Road & Linden Road 
33 Elroy Road & Jacobson Road 
34 Linden Road & Jacobson Road 
35 US 183 & FM 812 
36 FM 973 N & FM 812/McAngus Road 
37 FM 973 S & FM 812 
38 FM 812 Roadway Typical Section 
39 FM 812 & SH 130 
40 FM 812 Roadway Typical Section 
41 FM 812 & CoTA Boulevard 
42 FM 812 & Piland Triangle (W) 
43 FM 812 & Piland Triangle (E) 
44 FM 812 Roadway Typical Section 
45 FM 812 & Elroy Road 
46 FM 812 Roadway Typical Section 
47 SH 21 & FM 812 
48 US 183 & McKenzie Road 
49 FM 973 & McKenzie Road 
50 FM 973 & Moore Road 
51 SH 130 & Moore Road 
52 Moore Road & Burklund Farms Road 
53 US 183 & FM 973 
54-57 CoTA Boulevard 
58-61 Interchange Ramps 

Detail Sheets 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



CONTACT INFORMATION 

City of Austin 
GaryW. Schatz, P.E., PTOE 
Assistant Director 
Transportation Management 
505 Barton Springs Road, Suite 800 
Austin, TX 78704 
512-974-7189 
Gary.Scnat2@austintexas.gov 

Travis County 
David K. Greear, P.E. 
Traffic Program Manager 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
411 W. 13th Street 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, TX 78767 
512-854·7650 
David.Greear@co.lravis.Lx.us 

Lt. Jose Escribano, Jr. 
Travis County Sheriff's Office 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, TX 78767 
512-854-9770 
Jose.Escribano@co.travis.tx.us 

TxDOT 
Imelda Barrett 
Director 
Tr.msportation Operations - Austin 
7901 N 1-35 
Austin, TX 78753 
512-832-7115 
Imelda.Barretl@txdol.gov 

Capital Metro Transportation Authority 
James W. Bush 
Transportation Coordinator 
Operations 
2910 East Fifth Street 
Austin, TX 78702 
512-369-6545 
James.Bush@startran.org 

Jennifer A. Golech 
Transportation Planner 
Planning 
2910 East Fifth Street 
Austin, TX 78702 
512-369-6586 
Jennifer.Golech@capmelro.org 

Circuit of The Americas 
David Sweazy 
Vice President 
Operations 
301 Congress Avenue. Suite 220 
Austin, TX 78701 
512-536-1458 
David.Sweazy@circuitoftheamericas.com 

Kimley-Hom and Associates. Inc. 
Aaron W. Nathan, P.E., AICP 
Vice President 
801 Cherry Street, Unit 11, Suite 950 
Fort Worth, TX 76102 
972·770-1300 
Aaron.Nathan@kimley-horn.com 

GENERAL NOTES 

1.	 Necessary Operational Procedures: 
1.1.	 Set-up cones, vertical panels, and barricades in accordance with
 

Pre-Event Plan;
 
1.2.	 Set-up temporary signs; 
1.3.	 Cover eXisting confllcting signs; 
1.4.	 Coordinate with all existing traffic signal owners to modify signal
 

operations, as noted in the plans; and
 
1.5.	 At the designated time (approximately 15 minutes after event start time), 

transition from Pre-Event Plan to Post-Event Plan. 
2.	 Speeds shown on plans indicate design speeds for the traffic control plan. 
3.	 All traffic control signs and devices shail be placed and installed in accordance 

with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(Texas MUTCD) and TxDOT Traffic Engineering Standard Sheets for Barricade 
and Construction Standards. 

4.	 Any variations to the traffic control plan shall be approved by the Engineer, the 
City, and/or the County, as appropriate. 

5.	 Contractor shall provide access to all businesses and residences along 
roadways at all times. 

6.	 Along all facilities with operations modified to full contra-flow, contractor shall 
place one-way (R6-1) signs at all public streets and driveways, except those 
driveways serving a single-family dwelling unit. 

CONTRA-FLOW AND MODIFIED ROADWAY SEGMENTS 

The following assumes Kellam Road between Elroy Road and Pearce Lane is constructed 
FULL = all lanes operating in one direction 
PARTIAL =two-way traffic with operations modified from typical conditions 

Pre.c.vent 
FULL 
•	 Pearce Lane from SH 130 SBFR to Kellam Road 
•	 Kellam Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road 
•	 McAngus Road from FM 973 to Elroy Road (excluding portion serving the Taxi lot) 

PARTIAL 
•	 FM 812 from -500' west of FM 973 N 10 CoTA Boulevard 
•	 FM 812 from Travis County I Bastrop County line to SH 21 

f..2!!:E:!!!!!. 
FULL 

Pearce Lane from Kellam Road to SH 130 NBFR 
Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 
McAngus Road from FM 973 10Elroy Road (excluding portion serving the Taxi lot) 

PARTIAL 
FM 812 from CoTA Boulevard to -500' west of FM 973 N 

FM 812 from Elroy Road to SH 21 

LIMITED ACCESS ROADWAY SEGMENTS 

Shuttles Taxis and Local Residents Only (Pre- and Post-Event) 
•	 Elroy Road from FM 973 to CoTA Boulevard 

FM 973 from Elroy Road to McAngus Road 

•	 McAngus Road from FM 973 to Elroy Road 

Emergency CoTA Official and Local Residents Only fPre- and Post-Event) 
•	 Moore Road from SH 130 to Maha Loop Road 
•	 Maha Loop Road from Moore Road to Piland Triangle 

SHUTILE REQUIREMENTS 

Downtown: 36,250 people (estimated) 
@ 2 people / car = 18,125 parking spaces needed 

Assumptions: 45 people I shuttle 
80 minutes / trip = 3 trips in 4 hours 

# of Shuttles = (36,250 people) / (45 people / shuttle) / (3 trips) = 269 shuttles 

Expo Center: 36,250 people (estimated) 
@ 2 people I car = 18,125 parking spaces needed 

Assumptions: 45 people / shuttle 
70 minutes I trips = 3 trips in 3.5 hours 

# of Shuttles =(36,250 people) I (45 people / shuttle) I (3 trips) =269 shuttles 

Total: # of Shuttles to serve 72,500 people = 269 + 269 = 538 Shuttles 

ON-SITE VEHICLE SERVICE TIME CALCULATIONS
 
(Service Time = Total time required to clear CoTA property, if ail vehicles left
 

simultaneously)
 

Assumes Kellam Road between Elroy Road and Pearce Lane is constructed. 

17,000 Vehicles On-Site (estimated) 
+5000 Other Vehicles (estimated) 
22,000 Total Vehicles 

Scenario 1 (700 vphpl) 

Travel Lane Capacity = 700 vehicies / hour I lane 
# of Travel Lanes = 10 lanes (see Sheets 4A and SA) 
System Capacity = 700 vehicles / hour / lane' 10 lanes = 7,000 vehicles I hour 

Service Time = 22,000 vehicles / 7,000 vehicles / hour = 3,14 hours 

Scenario 2 (1,000 vphpl) 

Travel Lane Capacity = 1,000 vehicles / hour I lane 
# of Travel Lanes = 10 lanes (see Sheets 4A and SA) 
System Capacity = 1,000 vehicles / hour I lane • 10 lanes = 10,000 vehicles I hour 

Service Time = 22,000 vehicles / 10,000 vehicles / hour = 2,20 hours 

-

~ 

! 
1 

J
l! 

u" 
~ 

tl ~h~s go"
~' .. 

~~ ~~"B 
•,,~i ~ 19~;
;;l"~ 

II Wi 
U "i 

-

I:: ~= I
I~ g~ I 

:J ~ ~ 

~(f) 
UJ 

f-Zf
uQO
«f-Z 
f-«...J 
z~« 
00::0:: 
UO UJ 

u. Z 
zUJ o 

~ ·1Jl ~ ~ <t 
C:U 

...J is a: t~
Ci ~ ~ Jw 
UJ 5 ~ ~l
Z u:t_ct 
UJ o IE ~Ou:: 

u, 

~ ~ 
I- ~ 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



.
 

~ 

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES: PRE-EVENT ~ 
SHEET LOCATION OFFICERS CONES FLAGS BARRICADES SIGNS PCMS PANELS 

DOWNTOWN 

EXPO CENTER 

SH 71 & FM973 !SH 71 & SH 130 
SH 71 & ROSS ROAD 

~ 

SH 71 & WOLF LANE 

SH 71 & SH21 

US 183 & METROPOLIS DRIVE ~ 

ROSS ROAD & THOME VALLEY DRIVE l1US 183 & MCKINNEY FALLS PARKWAY 

FM 973 & PEARCE LANE ~f
SH 130 & PEARCE LANE 

11PEARCE LANE & ROSS ROAD (W) 

PEARCE LANE & ROSS ROAD (E) 

PEARCE LANE & KELLAM ROAD ~ PEARCE LANE & WOLF LANE 

SH 21 & FM535 II 
ROSS ROAD & HEINE FARM ROAD UUS 183 & BURLESON ROAD 

BURLESON ROAD & EMMA BROWNING 

FM 973 & ELROY ROAD .~ 

SH 130 & ELROY ROAD ;;; .
2' ;1:5 I 

ELROY ROAD & ROSS ROAD "l ~~ I 
ELROY ROAD & MCANGUS ROAD ~~ I!! 

ELROY ROAD & CoTA BOULEVARD ~ 

ELROY ROAD & FAGERQUIST ROAD o N ~ ~ no _ 
" . 

FAGER QUIST ROAD & LINDEN ROAD Oi~o 
~ IiiE~~ > • 

ELROY ROAD & JACOBSON ROAD 
8 • 8 

:3 :> ':I 6 I ~ JACOBSON ROAD & LINDEN ROAD " ~ 
US 183&FM812 

FM 812 & FM 973 (N)/MCANGUS ROAD LL(/) 

FM 812 & FM 973 (S) OW 
FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION >-o:::t:: 
FM 812 & SH 130 «I
FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION ~Z 
FM 812 & CoTA BOULEVARD ~« 
FM 812 & PILAND TRIANGLE (W) 

=:J=:J 

FM 812 & PILAND TR IANGLE (E) 
(/)0 

FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION 

FM 812 & ELROY ROAD z lIl~ 
FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION ::i C 
SH21 &FM812 I-Cl. ~\:! 
US 183 & MCKENZIE ROAD Z 5'" -0:ui 0::"' JWFM 973 & MCKENZIE ROAD > f 0 

FM 973 & MOORE ROAD 
UJ z ~ U~ 

I 0 « ~'l:
SH 130 & MOORE ROAD 

UJ o ft 

MOORE ROAD & BURKLUND FARMS ROAD 
0::: ~ g: 

~u,c..u.. 
US 183 & FM973 ..: 

0:: ~ CoTA BOULEVARD f-

INTERCHANGE RAMPS 
~ 

SHEETNUt.lBER 

TOTALS 
PRE-3 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



~ 

~SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES: POST-EVENT 
PCMS PANELSLOCATION FLAGS BARRICADES SIGNSSHEET OFFICERS CONES 

DOWNTOWN
 
EXPO CENTER
 
SH 71 & FM 973
 ~ 
SH 71 & SH 130 ~ 
SH 71 & ROSS ROAD
 

SH 71 & WOLF LANE
 
SH71 &SH21
 
US 183 & METROPOLIS DRIVE
 i 

ROSS ROAD & THOME VALLEY DRIVE
 
US 183 & MCKINNEY FALLS PARKWAY
 
FM 973 & PEARCE LANE
 
SH 130 & PEARCE LANE
 
PEARCE LANE & ROSS ROAD (W)
 

PEARCE LANE & ROSS ROAD (E)
 il 
~ 

PEARCE LANE & KELLAM ROAD
 
PEARCE LANE & WOLF LANE
 ~ 
SH21 & FM535 II 
ROSS ROAD & HEINE FARM ROAD
 
US 183 & BURLESON ROAD
 U 
BURLESON ROAD & EMMA BROWNING
 
FM 973 & ELROY ROAD
 - r~ 
SH 130 & ELROY ROAD If 
ELROY ROAD & ROSS ROAD 

b ~~ I 
'5 ~ I 

~g ~ELROY ROAD & MCANGUS ROAD 
~ ELROY ROAD & CoTA BOULEVARD 

.~ ~ ~ !ELROY ROAD & FAGERQUIST ROAD 
" -c~~ ~~ ~ !iiFAGERQUIST ROAD & LINDEN ROAD g:~ !ii ; 

ELROY ROAD & JACOBSON ROAD 
t;~ e 
~ ~~ ~•• I3 5 " 

JACOBSON ROAD & LINDEN ROAD
 
US 183 & FM812
 
FM 812 & FM 973 (N)/MCANGUS ROAD
 LL(/) 

OWFM812 & FM973 (S) >-
FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION o::::!::: 
FM812 & SH 130 «!:::

:2:L.FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION :2:«FM 812 & CoTA BOULEVARD ~~ 
FM 812 & PILAND TRIANGLE (W) (/)0 
FM 812 & PILAND TRIANGLE (E)
 

FM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION
 
FM812 & ELROY ROAD
 OO~z ,CFM 812 ROADWAY TYPICAL SECTION 1-:5 'uSH 21 & FM812 Z~ 1-WOO' -0:US 183 & MCKENZIE ROAD >o::&' JW 
FM 973 & MCKENZIE ROAD W ~~ 

~ U~I 0
FM 973 & MOORE ROAD I- o n. ~~ U) (J ~ SH 130 & MOORE ROAD
 
MOORE ROAD & BURKLUND FARMS ROAD
 ° u:: n. ~ a..~
US 183 & FM973 0:: 

f- ~ 
CoTA BOULEVARD
 
INTERCHANGE RAMPS
 SHEETNUtolBER " 

TOTALS POST-3 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



, 
~ 
J
O
~
d

 en 
lIlIII'I"'15oo;;J1l1Y

J$ 

\ .oaacn 

IP
S

 
J"U

....v
~

 

~
v

 
lil([Jl'l:l'lS

](J 

~
O
H
5

 
5 .... 

l"l\'O
S

 

G
'L

O
l'A
V
~

 

"V
O

 
O

Q
L6Z

1':69Q
 

l
:
J
:
J
'
~
d

 
V

H
:>

I 

ovos V
IIV

l13>
l 

H
llM

 
811V

V
ll3H

8S
 

lN
3

1
\3

-3
C

ld
 

S
V

X
'31 

N
lls

n
v
 

SVJl~i1"=:,~,,(5'...
 

~O.:l
 a
3
~
'
V
d
3
~
d

 

N
\fld lO

lH
N

O
::J ::JloH

\flJl 

l
N
3
/
\
3
-
3
~
d

 

a
n

u
a

A
\;f 

6
U

!U
M

O
..A

H
 

'O
W

L
.l] 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
.=

-
"
 

---=


-0 
e o 
I>

: 

" 
)1

c, 
o o 
:>

: 

p
u
o
~

 
5

W
J'O

j 
p

u
n

l>
iJ

n
a

 

-0 
o o 

I>
: 

" -N
 

~t
 

u 
:>

: 

ru 
00 

ru 
lit

a; 
:>

: 
to. 

§l n 
~ " ~

 
o 
;;: 

-0 
0

" 
~ 

III 
+

' 
~

 
0 

U
 

0 
U

 
Q

. 
E

 
=

' 
o 

~
 

"
'to

. 

I 
I 

" ~ 
In 

.
<
:
~

 

" 
0

>
 T

j 

>.~ 
~
o

 

" 
+

'
(
J
l-



·x ~ ~ 
d 

E
 

__ 
>

-w
u

 
I 

I 
I 

-0 
o o 

'" ;; ~
 

w
 

" u s, 
o " c, " ~jt 
-! 

I V
1 

"
-
_

_
~
~

 
"-_

-.=
-_

--'£
""8

1
 sn

£81 
sn 

~
.

 , 
:: 

:; , 
+

=
 e· 

, 
+

=
 

I 
~

 

-
-

--. 
-

®
 

0
-0

 ~ ~ 
r 

.... 
III 

" 
Ill>

' 
~
-
g

::::::). 
=

' 
0 

0
0

8.-[ 
e 

~
 t 

III 
0 

~
 

0 
to

..Y
 

~I>:l 
'<>1>: 

0
'"

 
s, 

0 
s, 

>
-0

 
~

 
L:J1Il 

+
' 

,,"-
'" 

Q.J:§
" 

0 
:>

: 
0 

,,
~

 
"
,
0

 

u 
U

 

:>
: 

"" '''''''~''V.'' ...~-'.,"''' Ol .,~ .." '''''Ill••• 
,~ .. '" '..'0'''.'.... ,.. 

"
o
~
_
I
".."., ",,0,•••00.0"'''0'''''"''0 "',"', ,"H,,,. ,..""".. "" """'"",.,_ ....."YO '0••_ 

,.,,<io,o .... II."... "" ".,~ """' ..,<1>" 
'.".... ,", ..., ,,,., .......,...J '.,,,... " 

,,''''M
''' ""0 ',,..., ..,.....0 

•..6
,_

 , ....,.., ...., 
"
"
 
,"

"
 .. ",060, ,.•"..."•• "" 

"P 
dl't1 

,onl 
o
~
u
o
~
~
S
I
-
;
O

 
llO

l 
d

m
 

ID
O

l ~
~
"
"
)

 
r
;
1
-
r
;
O
-
~
I
D
r

 
0011:) 

O
O

U
ll6

9
0

 
0
1
d
l
~
M
U

 
')4 

w
 
6
~
'
f
l

 (0
 

rlO
l 

'il 
o
~

 
I
-
~
'
d
:
l
n

 
D

l 
0
4
)
l
'
\
~
S

 
,~~~s.

 
w

D
p". 

'u<l.Q'~-·lI
 
P
.
l
\
~
'
d

 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



-" 
u, 

-0 
::> 

FM 812 

~c:::;;;:: 

." 
d 
o 

'" 

-=. 

." 
d 
o 
'" 
c-, 
o 
c 
W 

Pre-Event Plan 
Without Kellam Road 

FM 812 

I 
V) 

'" ~ 

=---

I 

'" ~ 

"" 

"=. 

FM 812 

PE'a.rce La.ne 

Moore Roa.d 

__ ~A~g~s-.B~~ I 

M 
r-, 

'" :E 
L.

M 
r-, 

'" :E 
L.

o 

,
~ 

~~:: d 
0' 

OJ 
S c 
~ 
o 
s, 

"'~
de 
< 
< > 
w<t 

o 
Moores 
Bridge 

Bicycle 
Pa.rking 

FM 812 

Austin 
BergstroM 

Airport 

SH71~1; ~ 
"" 

'" ::J 

McKenzie 
~.oo.d I MC~:Zie ~oo.d 

o 

I 
11 

Burleson 
Rond 

l -11 

I~ 

M~trop~lis ~ 1: 
11 Dr-ive ~ 

~ 

Dee Gubriei 
Collins Roa.d 

-----.=-
------=------

McKinn~y Fetta l~': 
Purkwuy II 
---, 

, 
;.:11, 

0; 
~ ~ 
=:c 
d d 

.L.--"r, ~ 
'" ... ... 
.... x 
w ~ ~I'L,"" 

V) 

CIRCUIT oFTHE AMERICAS 
Transportation Management Plan 

:;

w ~ 

• 

~ 

03) - Signalized Intersection 

~ - Toll Collection Location 

- COTA Site Boundary 

Locct Tra.ffic 

- Event Traffic 
- Shuttle Route 
- Ta.xi 

EMergency Vehicle 
- Circuit Officia.ls 

= - RUMp Closed 

[::J  Full Contruflow 

~ 

C 
d 

J1lb-71 

il
l! 

~l 

~ 
II 
U 

- .-;~ 

~ ~ ~ u a c, 

:J ~ ~ 

E ~ ~ ! 
~~ Iii >- lii 

-c ~. ~ 
~ d ~ 

o 
!z~f-C5 
w~=:lo:: 
G;:2~:2,Wf-<t:
WI---l 
O::O:5:--l 
C-(J) W 

~ 

~~ 
~ ~ 

I- n, f-~ 
z 61j-O:w 0: u, JW> !z ~ U~ 
U;J 8 ~ ~< 
~ ~ g:UJ 
o, LJ.. , 

~ 
f

48 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



-
~ 
~ 

J1tb-71 VSQ 
I 
~~'===-=t.......,~
 

c '" 
111.3 ~_~i 

u, 
o 

il 
~ 

!!l 

~ 
II 
U 

;~ 

- i ~ I 

~ ! ~ iu ,~ 

::J ~ g ~ 

• 
N ~ ~ !

C::J - Full Contra flow ~~ ~~ ~ >- ~ 
~~;:§~",~"'~ 
~~ :J; ~ 11 ~ 

1-0 0
tsi= C§/il 

0 0 

><cID::: 
W~I-~ 

>M ~12 -:-: ~/ / ~ ~W~<c 
UlI ...J 
00 ...J 
c..Ul W 

~~~/:;; 

)~
 Z "IJI ~~
 

:'5 ~1
Cl. U 

II i} m6 i5 c~> go ~ JUj
W Z :i!U l ~ 8:t~« 
Cf)S2:E~Ott 
n, ~ ~ 

I- ~ 

SA 

M .. 
f-

X 
wSH 7l~1;:= ~w 
~

~~_ L

:::::c:J c:::~~ := 
® ® 

n ~ )
j Austin 

C"1 Ber-q s tr-on 
,I. CJJ Airport~ 

=> 

Dee Gabriel 
Collins Roa-d 

® 

McKenzie 
Roo.d 

Ht 
It 

il t! 

I~ 

'"::J 

-" 
~j 

® 

I I Pearce 
'!:; 

Lane 

Ij~ ~ ~ 

'" wI d ~ 

I I ~ 

11M ~ 

~- =:e 

FM 812 

~ 

McKenzie Road 

FM 812 

Nnnre Roa.d 

:>: 
u, 

<> 
!:J 
I 

'" 

::> 
Pearce 
Lane 

,--------, ~ 

." 
d 
a 

'" c 
." '" 
C 
:J 

"=

~ 

® - Signalized Intersection 

181 - Toll Collection Location 

- COTA Site Boundary 

--+ - Local Tra ffic 

- Event Traffic 

...... - Shuttle Route 

- Taxi 

- - EMergency Vehicle 
- Circuit Officials 

= - Ranp Closed 

l 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



'" -.; :I! CIRCUIT OF THE AMERICASf 
=~ 
d d X

SH W71:=_J1~:= II,, L.....J 

._'" _ ~1'LsH71
 Transportation Management Plan 
:= Post-Event Plan 

~~ ::::: 
Without Kellam Road ~ ® ~ @III~t 

M.. 1;rop~li5 I t 
Drive 

Austin 
BergstroM


'" Airport
~=-------,~ 
Pearce LaneMcKinney Falls 

I
1~ 

OJ !:; -=.Parkwa.y! r 
'"•a
c ® 

j~
I

s,
 

"''''
d<: 

~ t 
Burleson E '" E > ,., w <[~ I 4= I! _ I~~" :;d - _V'-q '" " 

, =:; =. 
I~In - @ = 

MOOrlo?5 
Bridge 

Bicycle 
Parking 

Dee GabriF!l FM 812 
Coll~ 

~ 

@ 

Itt 
If 

McKenzie Itt 

l 
' OO' :,:,' 'c~<;'';'o'' 

I~ 
Vl 
OJ 

=- 

__ MSA~g~s~~d _ 

FM 812 

MOore Road 

r-, 
CJ' 
'" 
:E 
L.. 

-
~
 
~
 

g'" I
 
"5 sI
 

____:E_"'J 

'" ~ 
:r: 
Vl 

d " a 
'" c-, 
a 

FM 812 
~ 

W 

)t 

-gIl
,,0 
<:'" 
-'l ~ 
-" E c, c, 
~ d:r: "'L..

Vl 

~J 1h71 ~ 

~~ 

'"<: 
d 

...J 

4

<5 
:> 

~ 

~ - Signalized Intersection 

l8:J - Toll Collection Locution 

- COTA Si1;e Boundar-y 

- Local Traffic 

- Event Truffle 
- Shu-t-tle Rou-te 
- Taxi 

- E.... ergency Vehicle 
- Circuit Dfficia.ls = -RUMp Closed 

C:J - Full Con-tr-cFtow 

11 

il 
l!2l 
~ 
II 
U 

I: 
~ ! ~ 
~ 

::J 

,~ 

5~ 

o§ 5 
g~~N 

~ ~ i 
<C <II -c 

ro~ro 
~g: ~~ 
ss ~ 

~. ~ 
~ I ~ 

1-0 0 
Z-I-« 
W~::J0
~~OC::: 
,wI~ 
~I!:::5
Oo:5:--J 
ll..U) W 

~ 

((I ~ 
I- ~ ~" 
Z ~ f-~
W 05-0:
> ~ ~ JW 
U;J 15 ~ U2 
I- o ~ ~< 
C/)S![~Ott 
n, ;2 ~ 

I- ~ 

d " a 

'" 

FM 812 

.:; 

58 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Remote User 

BarretC 
ITraffic Management Plan_finaI05212012.pdf 
e:J05/25/12 03:34 PM 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
 

............... CIRCUIT'::::>f'
 
~AMERICAS"" 

Traffic Management Plan 

Draft 1, May 21st, 2012 

Formula One United States Grand Prix 

November 16-18,2012, Austin, TX USA 

Pg. 1 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Circuit of The Americas
 
2012 Formula One United States Grand Prix
 

Transportation Management Plan
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Qualifications and Introduction 3 
Organizations Involved 4 
Mission Statement 4 
General Overview 4 
Objectives 5 
Airport Operations 5 
Schedule of Events 6 
Communications and Public Relations 6 
Internal Signage 6 
On-Site Parking 7 
Off-Site Parking 7 
Parking Permit 8 
Limousine Parking 8 
Charter Buses 8 
Bicycle Access 8 
Cash Parking Lots 8 
Taxi & Hotel Shuttles 9 
Directions to Taxi Lot 9 
On-site parking directions 9 
Park-n-Ride Locations 10 
Bus-shuttle Routes 10 
Temporary Closures and Forced Directional II 
Helicopter Surveillance II 
Sustainable "Green" Practices (current/future) II 
Future Improvements II 

FIGURES & ATTACHMENTS 
FIGURE 1 - Bicycle Route (map) Figure 1 
FIGURE 2 - Bus Routes Expo (map) Figure 2 
FIGURE 3 - Bus Routes Downtown (map) Figure 3 
FIGURE 4 - Website information Figure 4 
FIGURE 5 - Parking Hang Tags example Figure 5 
FIGURE 6 - Way Finding Plan TBD 
FIGURE 6 - Sign Schedule sample TBD 
Attachment I - Traffic Control Plan, Ingress & Egress 
Attachment 2 - Law Enforcement Posts (Travis County) 

Pg. 2 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Qualifications 
This traffic and transportation plan is based on the needs and requests of the Circuit of 
The Americas (COTA). This plan is based from experiences of the security and 
transportation task force and the intricacies of COTA. This plan is a work in progress 
and will continue to develop as information becomes readily available. Public safety and 
emergency services are the highest priority in the development of this plan. 

Introduction 
Circuit of The Americas (COTA), located in Travis County, TX, approximately 16 miles 
southeast of the central business district of the City of Austin, on FM Highway 812, 2 
miles east of SH 130, was selected to host the 2012 United States Grand Prix. This 
important and prestigious United States Grand Prix racing event will occur over three 
days on Novemberl6 through 18,2012, with Sunday, November 18 having the largest 
expected attendance of approximately 120,000 attendees. It is important, not only for the 
economic impact it will bring to the region, but also for the worldwide attention this 
event will bring to City of Austin, Travis County, and the State of Texas. 

This large event will add a significant volume of traffic to local roadways surrounding 
COTA as well as traffic throughout greater Austin. With the goals, objectives, and the 
strategies presented in this working document, we intend to meet all challenges, 
including: sustainability initiatives; paved parking challenges; and any inconveniences to 
local residents and businesses. With the help of an integral team of transportation, 
security and special events experts, we plan to safely and efficiently accommodate 
thousands of attendees using a variety of modes of transportation and proven techniques. 

Recognizing the need to manage traffic flow both inside and outside of track property, 
COTA has commissioned Kimley-Hom and Associates, Inc. (Dallas) and Vasta & 
Associates, Inc. (Chicago) to assist in this plan..Kimley-Hom and Associates, Inc. is a 
traffic-engineering firm while Vasta & Associates, Inc. is a special events company that 
specializes in transportation planning and implementation for large events (for 
background information on Kimley-Hom and Associates, Inc., see www.kimley
hom.com and for Vasta & Associates, see www.vasta.com). The pertinent portions of the 
Traffic Control Plan details have been attached here to as Exhibit A. 

Pg. 3 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Organizations Involved 

Austin Bergstrom International Airport (ABIA) 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority(CapMetro) 
Carlson, Brigance, & Doering Inc. (CBD) 
Circuit of The Americas (COTA) 
City of Austin Convention and Visitors Bureau (Austin CVB) 
City of Austin (COA) 
Fd2s-Wayfinding Consultants (fd2s) 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (KHA) 
League of Bicycle Voters (LBV) 
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDoT) 
Travis County (TC) 
Vasta & Associates, Inc. (VAI) 

Mission Statement 
Ensure safe and effective transportation during the 2012 Formula One United States 
Grand Prix weekend event(s) for spectators, participants, media, sponsors, staff, 
volunteers, and special guests. 

General Overview 
The staging of the 2012 United States Grand Prix presents a number of challenges that 
will need to be overcome. One key challenge of a successful Formula One event will be 
to provide safe and efficient transportation through various systems to and from a track 
that is located in a unique rural environment with limited roadways and access points. A 
variety of park & ride operations, shuttles, and other resources and strategies will be 
utilized to overcome these challenges. 

Due to the limitations of the existing infrastructure surrounding COTA, it will be critical 
to look at this plan in a series of rings that will affect traffic throughout all of greater 
Austin. The provided transportation plan will be based on the input and lessons learned 
from past Formula One Grand Prix events, special events in Austin, and other motor 
racing events in the United States. Developing a flexible and accurate transportation plan 
will also require a close examination of the how the race will impact the existing 
transportation network throughout Austin. In order to bring successful results to COTA, 
the following four major areas will need to be addressed: 

1.	 Mobility: To establish a transportation system and services that 
respond to the unique needs of visitors, participants and staff with a minimum 
disruption to the existing travel activities and resources within the local 
community. 

Pg.40f16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

2.	 Existing Facilities: To maximize the use of both private and public resources, 
such as equipment, facilities, parking lots, and vacant space or real estate. 

3.	 Levels of Service: To balance travel demand by mode to minimize traffic 
delays and congestion to both visitors and residents while meeting sustainability 
and green initiatives. Accommodate the mass of spectators and to separately 
accommodate a level of VIP attendees such as Formula One officials, COTA 
officials, local officials, media, participants, owners, sponsors, and other 
stakeholders. 

4.	 Awareness: To assure that information regarding transportation choices 
and services is readily available and understood by attendees, staff, vendors, 
media, and the local community. Develop and share the plan in a timeline as part 
of the vital marketing and public relations plan (PR) to coincide with the COTA's 
overall public relations and other agencies PR plans. 

Objectives
 
The four basic objectives of the security / transportation task force are:
 

1.	 To safely transport all track patrons to and from COTA with minimal disruption 
to local residents and businesses. 

2.	 To transport key personnel (FI Officials, COTA Officials, and participants), 
media, sponsors, support staff, and ticketed patrons in the safest and most 
efficient manner possible, utilizing designated routes, parking options, shuttles, 
car pools, event strategies, and other sustainable practices and sustainable 
incentives; 

3.	 To inform and assist all local residents with their options and maintain minimal 
disruption to their normal traffic flow; 

4.	 To assist the responsible traffic and law enforcement agencies to ensure a 
functional flow of traffic (both vehicular and pedestrian) and parking during the 
Formula One and any other large movements for that week. 

Airport Operations
 
Under development with City of Austin, Department of Aviation.
 

Pg. 5 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Schedule of Events (under development) 
Monday, November 12 

Tuesday, November 13 

Wednesday, November 14 

Thursday, November 15 
• Formula One practice, lOam to 4pm 

Friday, November 16 
• Spectator shuttles, 8am to 7pm (start/end times under development) 
• Formula One Practice Sessions 1 and 2, lOam to 4pm 

Saturday, November 17 
• Spectator shuttles, 8am to 7pm (start/end times under development) 
• Formula One Practice Session 3 and Qualifying, lOam to 4pm 

Sunday, November 18 ----United States Formula One Grand Prix, 1:00 pm 
• Spectator shuttles, 7am to 8pm (start/end times under development) 

Communications and Public Relations 
The internal and external communication capabilities surrounding the Formula One are 
vital to successfully operating an event of this size, and Circuit of The Americas is 
committed to communicating information pertaining to its transportation plan to the 
appropriate groups and individuals. This part of the plan will fall under COTA's 
Communications Department. The plan will coordinate communications from officials 
representing all city, county and state agencies involved with executing the transportation 
plan, and then at the appropriate times will be disseminated with ongoing updates to all 
key stakeholders and audiences (See Figure 6). 

Internal Signage 
Enhanced signing "Way finding" will be in place to guide patrons through the internal 
roadways and into the proper seating or parking lots of COTA. The environmental 
graphic design firm fd2s has been hired by COTA to design and implement this plan. Exit 
signs will also be necessary, as some vehicles may be forced to exit a different way that 
they may have entered into COTA lots in order to improve the exit operation. Trailblazer 
signs leading to exits, SH 130 and other major roadways will be used where beneficial to 
traffic flow. A specific sign schedule will be developed with exact locations of where 
enhanced signing will be located. 

Pg. 6 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

On-Site Parking 
COTA will have approximately 17,000 on-site parking spaces reserved for pre-paid suite 
holders, certain ticket holders, participants, media, and other designees. Parking will 
involve best efforts to coordinate with the ticket purchase proximity (parking to seating) 
in order to minimize walking distances and coordinate pedestrian flow. 

COTA 0 SOtI Parki simafIOnsn- e mg E f 
DESIGNATION GROUP QTYo OF SPACES 
Lot A Ticket holders 3192 
LotB Ticket holders 178 
LotC Ticket holders 645 
LotD Ticket holders 199 
LotE Ticket holders 535 
LotF Ticket holders 5060 
LotG Ticket holders 370 
LotH Ticket holders 690 
LotJ Ticket holders 389 
LotK Ticket holders 535 
LotL Ticket holders 2600 
LotM Ticket holders 965 
LotN Ticket holders Future lot 
LotP Ticket holders 2480 
Orange Lot (McAngus Rd.) Bus Shuttle to Expo Ctr. Loading est. 15-30buses 
Orange Lot Bus Shuttle to Airport 
Blue Lot (McAngus Rd.) Bus Shuttle to downtown Loading est. 26-52 buses 
Yellow Lot (McAngus Rd.) Taxi cabs TBD 

Off-Site Parking 
Off-site parking locations are currently under negotiation with the Travis County Expo 
Center, Travis County, City of Austin, and Capital Metro Transit in order to facilitate a 
park-n-ride operation to COTA. 

The park-n-ride lots will drop patrons on-site at bus depot areas currently being 
developed on the NW comer of COTA property. There will be a minimum of two (2) bus 
depot areas in this area accessible exclusively for buses near McAngus and Elroy Roads. 

Pg. 7 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Parking Permits 
Parking permits will be issued along with the tickets no later than four weeks prior to 
event. 

Parking permits will be in the form of a hanging tag and will be approximately 4" by 7" 
with driving/parking instructions printed on the back. Permits shall be displayed at all 
times while vehicles are parked in their appropriate parking lot (See Figure 8). 

All vehicles will be required to have a permit to access vicinity points on all roads 
leading into COTA, and to access their appropriate parking lot. Vehicles will not be 
allowed in and out privileges. 

COTA will work with area residents and businesses to ensure that all parties have access 
to their residences and businesses at all times during the event. 

Limousine Parking 
Limousines will be parked in the appropriate lot for which they purchased parking as 
their permits designate. All patrons will disembark their chauffeured vehicles from their 
parking space and also return to their parked vehicles. No drop-offs or pick-ups will be 
allowed. The COTA parking attendants will attempt to park all chauffeured vehicles at 
the front of their respective lots as a courtesy to those patrons who have contracted 
chauffeured vehicles. As the parking lots become filled closer to the start of events, 
attendants will make appropriate decisions to fill all available parking spaces. 

There will be dialogue and correspondence with the Texas Limousine Association in 
order to estimate the number of chauffeured vehicles attending this event. Parking 
permits for any vehicles, including limousines are required, and must be obtained from 
COTA. 

Charter Buses 
Groups chartering buses will require the purchase of a Charter Bus Parking Permit from 
COTA. Charter buses will be designated to park on-site at one of the COTA lots TBD. In 
and out privileges will not be allowed for private charter buses. 

Bicycle Access 
People choosing to ride a bicycle to the event will not be able to ride ontoCOTA 
property. Bicyclists will be able to park and lock their bikes in a bicycle depot located at 
the comer of Moore Bridge Rd. and FM 973. From there, bicyclists will be shuttled to 
the Bus depot lot on McAngus road. The suggested route for bicyclists from downtown 
Austin is presented in the attached documents (see Figure 1). 

Pg. 8 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Cash Parking Lots (day of the event) 
Cash parking lots will not be available on-site at COTA. Cash parking lots may be 
available at the following locations on a first come-first served basis: TBD 

Hotel Shuttles 
Taxis and hotel complimentary shuttle service to and from COTA will not be allowed 
into the facility. Hotel shuttles will be allowed to shuttle to/from the COTA park-n-ride 
lots. 

Directions to Taxi Lot 
Taxis will only be allowed to enter COTA property at McAngus and Elroy Roads. The 
preferred route to access this parking lot facility is: 

1. From downtown, proceed to SH45/130 Toll Road. 
2. Travel South on SH45/130 exit on Elroy Rd .. Tum left onto Elroy Rd. 
3. Travel East on Elroy Rd. to McAngus Rd. Tum Right onto McAngus Rd. 
4. Proceed on McAngus Rd. to Taxi lot. 

Directions to On-site parking lots 

COTA Lot's - A, B, C, D, E, F (9,809 approximate parking spaces) 

From SH 45 / 130 Toll Rd. (Northbound / Southbound) 

1. Exit FM 812. 
2. Proceed eastbound on FM 812 to COTA entrance. 

COTA Lot's - G, H, J, K, L, M (5,494 approximate parking spaces) 

From SH 45 / 130 Toll Rd. (Northbound / Southbound) 

1. Exit Pearce Ln. Tum left and proceed East to Kellam Rd. 
2. Tum right on Kellam Rd. and proceed South to COTA entrance. 

COTA Lot P (2,480 approximate parking spaces) 

From SH 45 /130 Toll Rd. (Northbound /Southbound) 

1. Exit FM 812 and travel eastbound on FM 812. 
2. Proceed eastbound on FM 812.Tum Left on Elroy Road. 
3. Proceed on Elroy Road to COTA Lot P. 

Pg. 9 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUIVIENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

McAngus Bus Lots - Blue and Orange 

From SH 45/ 130 Toll Rd. (Northbound / Southbound) 

1. Exit Pearce Lane. 
2. Travel East on Pearce Lane to FM 973. Go South on FM 973 to McAngus Rd. 
3. Tum left onto McAngus Rd. to Lot on right side before Elroy Rd. 

Park-n-Ride Locations 

Downtown @ Waterloo Park: Utilizing parking spaces at Capitol Garages and 
numerous other downtown parking options. 

Travis County Expo Center: Located at the intersection of FM 3177 and Loyola Lane. 

Bus Shuttle Routes 

Downtown @ Waterloo Park: 

ToCOTA 
1. Depart load zone at Trinity and 15th Street. 
2. Travel North on Trinity to MLK Blvd. Tum Right onto MLK. 
3. Proceed East on MLK to SH 130. 
4. Take the Southbound exit onto SH 130 and Proceed to Elroy Rd. 
5. Take a Right on Elroy Rd. to FM 973. 
6. Go South on FM 973 to McAngus Road. Turn Left. 
7. Proceed on McAngus Road to Bus-depot lots. 

FromCOTA 
1. Exit Bus lot onto McAngus Road heading north. 
2. At Elroy, tum Left and proceed to SH 130. Go North on SH 130. 
3. Exit at FM 969 and head west on FM 969 (MLK). 
4. Travel West on MLK to IH-35 frontage Rd. Tum left and proceed South. 
5. Travel South to 15th St. and tum Right. Travel west on 1St St. to Trinity. 
6. Tum right on Trinity and proceed North to Load-zone. 

Travis County Expo Center: 

ToCOTA 
1. Depart Expo Center on to Decker Lane travelling east. 
2. Tum Left onto FM 973 and proceed to SH 130. 

Pg. 10 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

3. Go South on SH 130 to Elroy Rd. Exit Elroy Rd. and Turn Right. 
4. At FM 973 tum left and head south to McAngus Road. Turn Left on McAngus. 
5. Travel East on McAngus to Bus-depot lots. 

FromCOTA 
1. Exit Bus lot on to McAngus Road heading north. 
2. At Elroy, tum Left and proceed to SH 130. Go North on SH 130. 
3. Exit at FM 973 and tum left off exit. 
4. Travel on FM 973 to Decker Lane. 
5. Tum Right on Decker Lane and proceed to south entrance at Expo Center. 

Temporary Closures and Forced Directional 
See Attachment 1 

Helicopter Surveillance / Fixed Wing Aircraft 
TBD 

Command Centers 
TBD (CCTV / surveillance of traffic flow on- and off-site). 

Sustainable "green" Practices 

• Satellite park-n-ride locations, capable of transporting 80,000 people 
• On-site parking will be limited to fewer than 18,000 spaces 
• Actively seeking bus/motorcoach providers who have low-emission buses 
• Bicycle access route, from downtown Austin is under development 
• Bike riding incentives at park-n-ride locations 
• Contra-flow lanes in and out of site will reduce idling vehicles 
• Continuing to identify new ideas with the committee 

Future Improvements 
Improvements that can increase traffic flow in the future: 

• Construct additional lanes on existing roads out of COTA 
• Construct new roads in/out of COTA 
• Identify and use park-n-ride lots in closer proximity to COTA 
• Construct a light-rail system to airport and COTA 
• Construct a sustainable "green" parking garage at AUS and/or at COTA 

Pg. 11 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
 

Figure 1: Bike Route 

PROPOSED F1 BICYCLE ROUTE
 

~ 

.: 

i 
a. 

s 
« 

« 
'" Q
a; 
« 
"'.$ 
;;; 
z 
>

'" co 

:;: 
~ 

:L 

Legend C 

____...;",__..,;,-;''os -:<It :. 

Pg. 12 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
 

Figure 2: Bus Route, Travis County Expo 

f'-':'-\ L til')1.'::'::-1 

- . ~"'" 
in 

.1 

'.• ~ I.'
\ .-) 

, .....', 

Pg. 13 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Figure 3: Bus Route Waterloo Park 

ustm 

• 

• J', 

:.",.,.1(, ~f~r'i'"!'\J 

C,i·~n 

", -," 

\' K,.,·-·, •. eCl'. 

.', -f" .l~ ,,',~, 

, II":L; 'Ii '",I 

,,": I' .. , ~- , .' , 

Pg.I4ofI6 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Figure 4: Website Language (First Phase) 

A limited number of pre-paid parking permits or the COTA shuttle will be the only way
 
to access the COTA area. There will be no cash parking on-site and roads leading into
 
COTA will be restricted to permitted vehicles.
 

The recommended transportation to COTA is by the official shuttle bus network operated
 
by COTA in partnership with the City of Austin, Travis County, and Capital Metro.
 
Check here soon for details on where to pick-up the shuttle throughout greater Austin.
 

Parking permits may be purchased with your ticket purchase on a first come, first served
 
basis. Please call 512-301-6600 for ticket and parking information or purchase online
 
here starting June.
 
For those that anticipate having an on-site parking permit, we recommend obtaining a
 
TxTag (toll tag) for your vehicle prior to the event. This will ensure easy access to, from,
 
and along SH 130. You can sign-up your vehicle here: http://www.txtag.org/
 

Limos (or any chauffeured vehicle) will be required to have proper licensing in order to
 
operate in greater Austin. Please see Marcy Cardona or call 512.974.1551 for the City's
 
requirements.
 
Properly licensed limos will then require the proper parking placard to enter COTA and
 
must follow the parking instructions on the back of that placard in order to enter. Limo
 
operators can purchase their parking placard from COTA, or their client may have
 
already purchased the parking placard. Please confer with your client.
 

Taxicabs will be required to have proper licensing in order to operate in greater Austin.
 
Please see Marcy Cardona or call 512.974.1551 for the City's requirements.
 
Properly licensed taxis will then require the proper parking placard to enter COTA and
 
must follow the parking instructions on the back of that placard in order to enter.
 
Taxicabs must enter the Taxicab lot in order to unload or load. This will be strictly
 
enforced.
 

Parking directions will be supplied with your parking permit and itis extremely
 
important that these directions be followed! Or your access into COTA will be
 
challenged.
 

Parking for Recreational Vehicles will require a pre-paid permit and will also be sold
 
on first come, first served basis. Check back here, starting early June.
 

Parking for people with disabilities will require proper documentation submitted to
 
COTA by November 10, 2011, by submitting your request and your State ID to
 
info@circuitoftheamericas.com. All documentation will be reviewed to assure
 
authenticity.
 

--Please continue to check the website here for the most current information--

Pg. 15 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Circuit of The Americas SENSITIVE SECURITY DOCUMENT 
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

Figure 5: Parking Hang Tags (samples under development) 

Draft disclaimer language on parking permits:
 

This parking permit is issued for ONE VEHICLE and will not be replaced if lost.
 

This parking permit is subject to the following conditions:
 

1) Parking lots are for the specific use of patrons who are attending the event. 
Patrons utilizing the parking areas for any other purpose, or who in the opinion of 
management, are disturbing other patrons, loitering, or failing to enter the lot in a 
timely manner, may be asked to vacate the premises. 

2) The failure of any person to obey the instruction, direction, or request of parking 
lot personnel or park signage may be subject to eviction from the parking lot and 
forfeiture of this parking permit, without compensation. 

3) Management is not responsible for, and assumes no liability arising from fire, 
theft, damage to, or loss of vehicle or any article therein while on park premises. 

4) Resale or attempted resale of this parking permit is prohibited. 
Any alteration of this parking permit is prohibited. 

Pg. 16 of 16 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY
 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
 

INTRA-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM
 

May 25,2012 

TO: Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources 

THROUGH: Donald W. Ward, P.E. 
Division Director, Road Maintenance & Fleet Services 

FROM: David Greear, P.E. 
Engineer 

SUBJECT: Traffic Regulations 

Engineering and traffic investigations have been completed on the following roads within Travis 
County: 

• Elroy Road 

• Pearce Lane 

• Ross Road 

• Heine Farm Road 

• McAngus Road 

• Piland Triangle 

• Maha Loop Road 

• Moore Road 

• Fagerquist Road 

• Kellam Road 

Based on such investigations I recommend the traffic regulations listed in the attached Order. 

Requests for a public hearing concerning this matter were received within seven days of publishing the 
notice of the proposed traffic regulations, and these regulations will be included in the Public Hearing 
scheduled for June 5, 2012 with regards to the Mass Gathering Permit for the Formula One Grand Prix 
at the Circuit of the Americas site on November 16-18, 2012. 

This recommendation is made in accordance with duly delegated authority from the Travis County 
Commissioners' Court under Chapter 251 of the Texas Transportation Code. 

DG 

File 4115	 Elory Road, Pearce Lane, Ross Road, Heine Farm Road, McAngus Road, Piland 
Triangle, Maha Loop Road, Moore Road, Fagerquist Road, and Kellam Road 

Attachment	 Traffic Management Plan (Draft 1, May 21, 2012) 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

ORDER NO.	 _ 

WHEREAS, engineering and traffic investigations have been made on the below 

named Travis County roadways by the Road Maintenance Division - Traffic Program within 

the Transportation and Natural Resources Department, which has recommended traffic 

regulations in Precinct Four; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was requested within seven days of the advance notice of 

the proposed traffic regulations and the public hearing is held on June 5, 2012; then 

BE IT THEREFORE ORDERED that the following regulations are hereby adopted 

and that appropriate signs giving notice thereof shall be installed. 

PRECINCT FOUR: 
No Stopping, Standing or	 Elory Road from SH130 to FM 812 
Parking in the ROW from	 Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lane 

Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road November 16-18, 2012 
Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 
McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 
Piland Triangle in it's entirety 
Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 
Road 
Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 
Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 
Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

No Pedestrians or Bicyclists	 Elroy Road from SH130 to FM 812 
Pearce Lane from SH130 to Wolf Lanein the ROW from 
Ross Road from Pearce Lane to Elroy Road November 16-18, 2012 
Heine Farm Road from Ross Road to Elroy Road 
McAngus Road from FM973 to Elroy Road 
Piland Triangle in it's entirety 
Maha Loop Road (aka Burkland Farms) from FM812 to Moore 
Road 
Moore Road from Maha Loop Road to FM973 
Fagerquist Road from Elroy Road to Wolf Lane 
Kellam Road from Elroy Road to Pearce Lane 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Contraflow operations from Pearce Lane (EB prior to race) (WB post race) from SH130 to 

November 16-18, 2012 Kellum Lane 
McAngus Road (EB prior and post race) from FM973 to Elroy 
Road 
Kellum Lane (SB prior to race) (NB post race) from Pearce Lane 
to Elroy Road 

EXECUTED THIS DAY OF , 2012.
 

STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E.
 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE
 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
 

PURSUANT TO DULY DELEGATED AUTHORITY FROM THE
 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT
 

UNDER CHAPTER 251 OF THE TEXAS TRANSPORTATION CODE
 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Pictures of Public Notice Signs for Public Hearing to occur on June 5, 2012 

regarding the Formula One Grand Prix race scheduled for November 16-18, 2012. 

'\
 

FM 812 (EB) near Elroy Road At main entrance to COTA on FM 812 

FM 812 (WB) at SH130 Fagerquist Road (EB) at Elroy Road 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Elroy (WB) at SH130 Elroy (EB)at SH130 

Pearce lane (WB) at Ross Road Pearce lane (EB) at Ross Road 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: 06/05/2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Tien Dao/854-3988
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Tina Morton
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

• CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ASSUMPTIONS FOR TRAVIS COUNTY 
REGARDING THE FOLLOWING:  

A.  PROPERTY TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND 

  

B. 2012 PARCEL FEE RATE. (TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR) 

  
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 17



May 23, 2012

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE
        PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS
        PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT
        PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER
        PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ

FROM: Tina Morton, Tax Assessor-Collector

SUBJECT: Property Tax Rate Considerations and 2012 Parcel Fee Rate

Property Tax Rate Considerations

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for Travis County.  We and the Planning 
and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the following parameters:

A.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% 
      (lower estimates may be used only with justification).  

B.  Debt Buy Down: The debt service (and resulting debt rate) may be reduced 
      using year-end or reserve balances from the bond or general fund.  We 
      recommend no buy down of the debt rate.

C.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).

As the Court may take action at a later time, we note the current policy but 
recommend no action at this time for the following parameters:

D.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: Currently $65,000.  
     
E.  Historic Exemptions: Currently 100% on the structure and 50% on the land 
     for residences or non-profit agencies; and 50% on the structure and 25% on 
     the land for all other historic properties. 

T R A V I S   C O U N T Y   T A X   O F F I C E
T   I   N  A    M  O  R  T  O  N

T A X   A S S E S S O R   A N D   C O L L E C T O R

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD
AUSTIN, TX 78751

(512) 854-9473

Page 1 of 3

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



2.  2012 Parcel Fee Rate  

In accordance with Texas Property Tax Code, Sec.6.23, 6.24, and 6.27, we have 
attempted to fairly allocate expenses incurred while assessing and collecting for all 
taxing jurisdictions involved in Travis County's consolidated collection program for 
the 2012 tax year.  Per the costing model used in years past, these tax collection 
expenses include:

ACCOUNTING - Reconciliation of collections; report and fund disbursements.

DELINQUENT COLLECTIONS - Administrative and legal costs to research, 
         process, and collect delinquent taxes.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE AD - Newspaper publication notices required by 
         Texas Property Tax Code Sec.26.04 (e).

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE CALCULATIONS - Compilation and calculation of 
         information required by Texas Property Tax Code Sec.26.04.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS LABOR SUPPORT - ITS labor support costs.

COMPUTER/RPD SYSTEM ANNUAL UPKEEP - Annual maintenance 
         supplies, printing and licensing costs.

COMPUTER SYSTEM COST - AS/400 system annualized costs based on a 
         five year pay out.     
    

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS / PURCHASES - Expenses incurred in 
         addition to the above.
         
The fair sharing of costs allocated to the jurisdictions is solely based on the relative 
number of parcels.  The allocated expenses and per parcel fee calculation are shown 
on the attached.

The Planning and Budget Office recommends the Court adopt the calculated 
2012 parcel fee rate of $1.03.  The current parcel fee rate is $0.96.

If my staff or I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632.

Attachment: Tax Year 2012 Parcel Rate Calculations and Parcel Rate Fact Sheet

TM/td

cc: Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget
Leroy Nellis, Planning and Budget
Susan Spataro, County Auditor

Page 2 of 3

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



PROPERTY TAX COLLECTION EXPENSES
(Jurisdiction Allocation)

Delinquent Collections

Accounting 218,367

Compliance Division 493,909

Legal (Atty ad litem) & Tax Sale Costs 27,250

County Attorney Collections Division 745,272

Effective Tax Rate Ad 17,987

Effective Tax Rate Calculations 18,840

Information Systems Labor Support 20,039

Computer/RPD System Annual Upkeep 46,430

Computer System Cost 9,178

Special Considerations / Purchases 0

TOTAL ALLOCATED COLLECTION COSTS 1,597,272

1,548,086 Parcel Count ÷ Costs = 

TAX YEAR 2012 PARCEL RATE CALCULATIONS
Prepared		by	the	Travis	County	Tax	Office

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

PER PARCEL RATE CALCULATION
(Jurisdictions other than Travis County)

1.03$

PARCEL RATE REVENUES
(Revenue may differ from costs due to rounding)

1,594,529$Parcel Rate x Parcel Count = 

Page 3 of 3

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



May 23, 2012

● The calculated 2012 parcel fee rate is $1.03.

PARCEL RATE FACT SHEET

Summary

● Calculated rate is 7 cents  higher than the current (2011) parcel fee rate.

● The 2012 projected revenue is $1,594,529.

● Projected revenue is $116,902 more than the 2011 projected revenue.

● There are 0 jurisdictions new to the Travis County Tax Office.

T R A V I S   C O U N T Y   T A X   O F F I C E
T  I  N  A    M  O  R  T  O  N

T A X   A S S E S S O R   A N D   C O L L E C T O R

● The 2012 parcel count for jurisdictions in Travis County excluding the County is 1,548,086.

● Parcel count is 8,891 more than 2011 parcel count used in calculations.

Special Notes

Preliminary Budget will likely have a 3.5% increase in compensation,  
5.68% increase in healthcare and a 5.05% increase in retirement.

Increases in existing personnel costs and a new internal auditor position in 
our accounting department comprise the majority of the parcel fee increase.

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tien Dao/854-3988 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Tina Morton 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

• CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR 
THE TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT DBA CENTRAL HEALTH.  (TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR) 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 18



May 23, 2012

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE
        PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS
        PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT
        PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER
        PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ

FROM: Tina Morton, Tax Assessor-Collector

SUBJECT: Travis County Healthcare District Property Tax Rate Considerations

Property Tax Rate Considerations

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for the Travis County Healthcare District 
d/b/a Central Health.  We and the Planning and Budget Office recommend the Court 
adopt the following parameters:

A.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% 
      (lower estimates may be used only with justification).  

B.  Debt Buy Down: The debt service (and resulting debt rate) may be reduced 
      using year-end or reserve balances from the bond or general fund.  We 
      recommend no buy down of the debt rate.

C.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).

As the Court may take action at a later time, we note the current policy but 
recommend no action at this time for the following parameters:

D.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: Currently $65,000.  
     
E.  Historic Exemptions: Currently 100% on the structure and 50% on the land 
     for residences or non-profit agencies; and 50% on the structure and 25% on 

If my staff or I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632.

TM/td

cc: Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget
Leroy Nellis, Planning and Budget
Susan Spataro, County Auditor
John Stephens, Chief Financial Officer, Travis County Healthcare District
Michael Heath, Advanced Certified Paralegal, Transactions

T R A V I S   C O U N T Y   T A X   O F F I C E
T   I   N  A    M  O  R  T  O  N

T A X   A S S E S S O R   A N D   C O L L E C T O R

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD
AUSTIN, TX 78751

(512) 854-9473

Page 1 of 1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Deborah Trotter 854-7069 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Estela P. Medina 854-7069 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Travis County Juvenile Board, Travis County, and the 
following Independent School Districts: Austin, Del Valle, Eanes, Lake 
Travis, Lago Vista, Leander, Manor, Pflugerville, and Round Rock 
regarding the Travis County Juvenile Justice Alternative Education 
Program for the 2012-2013 school year. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department operates the Travis County 
Juvenile Alternative Education Program (JJAEP) as mandated by Chapter 
37 of the Texas Education Code under the oversight of the Travis County 
Juvenile Board. Further, Section 37.011 of the Texas Education Code 
requires the Travis County Juvenile Board and all of the school districts in 
the county to enter into a joint memorandum of understanding that 
addresses certain specified requirements for the operations of the JJAEP 
annually. 

The proposed Memorandum of Understanding for the JJAEP of Travis 
County, to be effective September 1, 2012 through August 31, 2013, is 
between Travis County, the Travis County Juvenile Board ("TCJB"), and 
the following school districts: Austin, Del Valle, Eanes, Lago Vista, Lake 
Travis, Leander, Manor, Pflugerville, and Round Rock. The MOU was 
approved by the Travis County Juvenile Board on May 23,2012. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Travis County Juvenile Probation Department respectfully 
recommends approval of the Memorandum of Understanding. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office. CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 20



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tien Dao/854-3988 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Tina Morton 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
  

• CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR 
THE NORTHWEST TRAVIS COUNTY ROAD DISTRICT #3 (GOLDEN TRIANGLE).  (TAX 
ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR) 

  
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



May 23, 2012

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE
        PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS
        PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT
        PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER
        PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ

FROM: Tina Morton, Tax Assessor-Collector

SUBJECT: Northwest Travis County Road District #3 Property Tax Rate Considerations

Property Tax Rate Considerations

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for the Northwest Travis County Road 
District #3.  We and the Planning and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the 
following parameters:

A.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% 
      (lower estimates may be used only with justification).  

B.  Debt Buy Down: The debt service (and resulting debt rate) may be reduced 
      using year-end or reserve balances from the bond or general fund.  We 
      recommend no buy down of the debt rate.

C.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).

As the Court may take action at a later time, we note the current policy but 
recommend no action at this time for the following parameters:

D.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: Currently $65,000.  
     
E.  Historic Exemptions: Currently 100% on the structure and 50% on the land 
     for residences or non-profit agencies; and 50% on the structure and 25% on 

If my staff or I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632.

TM/td

cc: Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget
Leroy Nellis, Planning and Budget
Susan Spataro, County Auditor

T R A V I S   C O U N T Y   T A X   O F F I C E
T   I   N  A    M  O  R  T  O  N

T A X   A S S E S S O R   A N D   C O L L E C T O R

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD
AUSTIN, TX 78751

(512) 854-9473

Page 1 of 1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tien Dao /854-3988 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Tina Morton 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 

• CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR 
THE TRAVIS COUNTY BEE CAVE ROAD DISTRICT #1.  (TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR) 

  
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



May 23, 2012

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE
        PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS
        PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER SARAH ECKHARDT
        PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER KAREN HUBER
        PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ

FROM: Tina Morton, Tax Assessor-Collector

SUBJECT: Travis County Bee Cave Road District #1 Property Tax Rate Considerations

Property Tax Rate Considerations

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for the Travis County Bee Cave Road 
District #1.  We and the Planning and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the 
following parameters:

A.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% 
      (lower estimates may be used only with justification).  

B.  Debt Buy Down: The debt service (and resulting debt rate) may be reduced 
      using year-end or reserve balances from the bond or general fund.  We 
      recommend no buy down of the debt rate.

C.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).

As the Court may take action at a later time, we note the current policy but 
recommend no action at this time for the following parameters:

D.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: Currently $65,000.  
     
E.  Historic Exemptions: Currently 100% on the structure and 50% on the land 
     for residences or non-profit agencies; and 50% on the structure and 25% on 

If my staff or I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632.

TM/td

cc: Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget
Leroy Nellis, Planning and Budget
Susan Spataro, County Auditor

T R A V I S   C O U N T Y   T A X   O F F I C E
T   I   N  A    M  O  R  T  O  N

T A X   A S S E S S O R   A N D   C O L L E C T O R

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD
AUSTIN, TX 78751

(512) 854-9473

Page 1 of 1

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action to 1) approve membership dues of 
$300.00 for two memberships in the Texas Affiliation of Affordable Housing 
Providers; and 2) approve registration fees of $790 for two attendees to the 
Texas Housing Conference held in Austin, Texas July 23 through July 25, 
2012 to be paid for by the Corporation. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: The 
Texas Affiliation of Affordable Housing Providers (TAAHP) is a non-profit 
501 (c)(6) trade association serving affordable housing industry providers. 
Their principal goal is to increase the supply and quality of affordable 
housing for Texans with limited incomes and special needs. 

Founded in 1997, TAAHP is considered the "Voice of Affordable Housing in 
Texas," and represents housing industry professionals involved in the 
financing, design, development, and management of affordable housing 
communities in Texas. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Manager/854-9066 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.



Updated 6/1/12, 11:00 a.m.


	Item 01 and 16 Mass Gathering Permit Application
	Item 01 A 
	Item 01 B 1
	Item 01 B 2
	Item 01 B 3
	Item 01 C
	Item 01 D
	Item 03
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 20
	NWTCRD Item 01
	TCBCRD Item 01
	TCHFC Item 01



